AGENDA

Committee
Date and Time
of Meeting

Venue

Membership

» County Hall
x { / ’ Cardiff
,/ CF10 4UW
(/ Tel: (029) 2087 2000
X ‘».
~A)

Neuadd y Sir

CARDIFF Caerdydd
I 5 CF10 4UW

‘RDYDD Ffon: (029) 2087 2000
POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 11 MARCH 2020, 4.30 PM

COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Councillor Walker (Chair)
Councillors Ahmed, Berman, Bowen-Thomson, Henshaw, Lister, Mackie
and McKerlich

Time
approx.

1 Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest

To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3 Minutes (Pages 5 -12)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15
January 2020.

Digital Strategy (Pages 13 - 54) 4.35 pm
Progress update on the Councils Digital Strategy.
Procurement Strategy (Pages 55 - 92) 5.35 pm

Early policy development of Procurement Strategy and scoping future
work.

Scrutiny Impact Assessment Model (Pages 93 - 232) 6.30 pm

Task & Finish report of the Committee

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



7 Forward Work Programme (Pages 233 - 236)
8 Way Forward

a) Digital Strategy
b) Procurement Strategy

9 Urgent Items (if any)

10 Date of next meeting - 5 May 2020

Davina Fiore

Director Governance & Legal Services

Date: Thursday, 5 March 2020

Contact: Kate Rees, 029 2087 2427, kate.rees@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



WEBCASTING

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except
where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on
the website for 6 months. A copy of it will also be retained in
accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have
consented to being filmed. By entering the body of the Chamber you
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the

public gallery area.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or
email Democratic Services

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg


mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
15 JANUARY 2020

Present: Councillor Walker(Chairperson)
Councillors Berman, Henshaw, Lister, Mackie and McKerlich

48 : APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor Bowen-Thomson.
It was noted that there was a vacancy on the Committee.
49 : DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None received.

50 : MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2019 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chairperson.

51 : SICKNESS ABSENCE

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Chris Weaver, Cabinet Member Finance,
Modernisation & Performance, with portfolio responsibility for human resources;
Tracey Thomas, Acting Senior HR People Partner, HR People Services; Anita
Batten, HR People Partner, HR People Services; Councillor Michael Michael, Cabinet
Member Clean Streets, Recycling & Environment; Sarah McGill, Corporate Director
People & Communities and Matt Wakelam, Assistant Director Street Scene to the
meeting.

The Chairperson advised Members that the Committee is responsible for monitoring
progress on tackling sickness absence. The Committee aims to do this on a 6
monthly basis. However, following Committee’s last sickness report, and an informal
briefing from the Waste Management service it was felt it would be useful to look
more closely at those services facing the greatest challenges in bringing down rates
of sickness absence. The Chairperson advised that he had therefore asked that, in
addition to monitoring corporate sickness absence levels at quarter 2 2019/20, the
Cabinet Member, Clean Streets, Recycling and Environment Cllr Michael Michael
and his officers with responsibility for the Street Scene service be invited, to facilitate
a closer scrutiny of the management of sickness within the service area.

The Chairperson advised that the scrutiny would start with the overall corporate
picture, and he would take questions on this before moving on to the case study.

The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member, Finance, Modernisation &
Performance, Clir Chris Weaver to make a statement, in which he said that is was
valuable to look at service area specific challenges as well as the corporate picture
with regards to Sickness Absence.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 5



The HR senior team updated Members on the corporate position in respect of
sickness absence at Q2, after which the Chairperson invited questions and
comments from Members:

Members noted that the number of staff taking sick leave was up by 20%. The
Cabinet Member stated that it was the increase in long-term sickness that was driving
the overall increase upwards.

Members referred to the number of days lost due to sickness from 2013 onwards and
asked why there had been an increase from 2013 to 2019. Officers explained that
they were putting all their efforts into preventing sickness, however it was important
to note that during this time there have been changes in the organisation, a reduction
in staff numbers due to austerity, and also non work related stress has increased; but
no further analysis was available.

Members asked if Cardiff would be expected to be different to other local authorities.
Officers advised that compared to other authorities in Wales and Core Cities, Cardiff
sits in the middle of the core cities data. Members noted that Core City comparative
data would have been helpful in the presentation but noted that Cardiff was 4
compared to other Welsh Local Authorities; PRAP had recommended a year ago that
an exercise was undertaken to look at Local Authorities with an average of under 10
sickness days lost per year, and to look at how they are achieving it. The Cabinet
Member stated that they had looked at Merthyr but their figures were now similar to
Cardiff and Glasgow had risen to over 12 days. He added that no Local Authority
has the answer, there are a lot of complicated reasons behind sickness absence and,
whilst they want the figure to come down, Cardiff is likely to have a higher sickness
rate than smaller Local Authorities. Good practice would always be sought as it is an
ongoing process. Members noted the willingness but that outcomes are the issue,
stating that Merthyr currently has 8.7 days lost and the Vale of Glamorgan has
reduced its level from 10 to 9.

Members commended the work being done but noted that it was difficult to
differentiate between work related and non-work related stress, and that stress can
often cause physical conditions too. Members asked what the Council is doing with
regards to an organisation stress risk assessment and managing stress. Officers
stated that currently a stress risk assessment is done on an individual basis and they
are working with Health and Safety to develop a corporate stress risk assessment.
Members noted that despite best efforts the rate is increasing yet the national
average is 4 days and decreasing; Members considered that there needed to be
higher levels of intervention with regards to stress, less stressful jobs and early
retirement options.

Members welcomed the initiatives that have been put in place and asked that the
Council goes beyond these and looks at what private companies offer. The Cabinet
Member stated that there was a growing focus on wellbeing and that it was an
interesting area to explore.

Members noted that there had been new initiatives put in place since this item was
last presented to committee and asked how success could be measured, whether
this was in fact too early to assess or if there had been any impact seen as yet. It
was noted that there had been no impact on the figures as yet and some turnaround

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 6



would have been expected. Officers explained that it was the timing of the report,
which ran until the end of September. Most initiatives were introduced in August and
so a change would be expected in the future. It was also noted that it takes time to
see an impact with regards to illnesses such as Mental Health and Multi Skeletal;
there should be a review in 12 months’ time to assess the impact.

Members asked if more was needed in terms of Long Term Sickness interventions.
Officers explained that they need to try and deal with Long Term Sickness at different
stages, noting that the longer a person is off work the harder it is to return.
Attendance Officers are trying to help people back to work after 3 months, with
phased returns and medical redeployment, changes to working patterns and
arrangements all being considered.

Members noted the figures in relation to non-work related stress and considered that
Cardiff would be impacted more than other cities and asked if there was any data to
suggest that something was happening more widely; if not it could be that work is
impacting on peoples non-work life. Officers agreed that it was difficult to separate
the two; they explained that they do comparisons at the end of the year and will then
ask for data/overall figures and break these down in terms of Wales and Core Cities.
The Chairperson advised that the scrutiny would now move on to the case study and
Matt Wakelam provided Members with a presentation, after which the Chairperson
invited questions and comments from Members;

Members noted that APSE said a year ago that some sickness absence was not
genuine, and asked if this was an issue in this service area. Officers stated that it
was difficult to make that analysis but they didn’t think it was a significant issue,
however they do see people return before the half pay stage. Officers added that
they considered the majority of sickness was legitimate and there was maybe a 90/10
split.

Members noted that the figures overall and for this service area both peak in school
holidays and asked for officers comments on this. Officers stated that it was
important when looking at figures that they look at as much data and patterns as
possible as this helps to build a picture and manage the issue. It was also important
to look at a combination of actual activity; any areas of activity that are problematic
and how individuals react differently. Experience in other areas of the directorate
show that an element of control over work and talking about what’s happening helps.
Information is key to make the right interventions.

Members discussed the comparison between overall sickness and service area
sickness in relation to Liver/Kidney/Eye/Ear problems. Officers explained that it is
higher in this service area so they have looked at how waste matter is handled and
have provided gloves and a laundry.

Members considered that more control over work does help people but asked how
this was done in practice. Officers explained that they would give time to understand
why we do things and its importance, take on ideas for changes and build into the
work we do.

Members referred to previous evidence to Committee and noted that 1 Local
Authority reduced the half pay period and subsequently reduced its sickness figures.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 7



Another Local Authority with an arm’s length waste management company had an
average of 3 days sickness and they don’t accept longer absences, they also
develop their staff and have good staff training opportunities, which has led to a good
work culture and loyal staff.

RESOLVED: The Committee AGREED that the Chairperson writes to the Cabinet
Members on behalf of the Committee to convey their comments and observations.

52 : LOCAL GOVERNMENT & ELECTIONS (WALES) BILL

The Chairperson welcomed the Leader of the Council, Councillor Huw Thomas; Paul
Orders Chief Executive; Gareth Newell Head of Performance and Partnerships, and
Dylan Owen Head of the Cabinet Office to the meeting.

The Chairperson advised Members that this year a significant piece of legislation for
Local Government is making its way through the Assembly, the Local Government
and Elections (Wales) Bill. It is the culmination of many reviews, White papers and
consultations dating back as far as 2013. It contains proposals that the Committee
needs to be aware of, specifically a new system for improving Local Authority
performance and governance based on self-assessment and peer review, which falls
within the Committee’s Terms of Reference.

The Chairperson invited the Leader, Clir Thomas to make a statement in which he
said that this was a significant and long awaited piece of legislation, it deals with a
range of issues which the Council has responded to during previous consultations.
Cardiff is engaged with the Minister and commends the frank and open way that she
has engaged, and also with the WLGA.

Gareth Newell provided Members with a presentation after which the Chairperson
invited questions and comments from Members;

Members noted that there are 19 Governance and Scrutiny committees in Cardiff
alone; the additional expectations to webcast all meetings will cost significantly.
Members asked if there had been any discussions around financing. The Leader
said there hadn’t; he added that the Monitoring Officer sits on a Welsh Government
panel and had outlined the capacity issues it would create but there had been no
indication of additional funding. It was noted that viewing figures only increase if
there is an item of particular interest. Members considered that there may be some
overestimating of public enthusiasm with regards to webcasting.

Members discussed remote attendance and could see it being useful in rural areas
but suggested there was a limited need in Cardiff. The Leader explained that it could
work in terms of sickness, maternity, and paternity leave, but that further reflection is
required with regards to voting especially.

Members asked of the Council has responded to the Bill as it was not listed as a
respondent on the Welsh Assembly website. Officers advised that they hadn’t
responded to the Bill directly but they had responded to all the separate
consultations. The Leader added that there had been some concerns, but they were
committed to the Minister and addressed points through the WLGA. The Chief
Executive stated that there would be a development of detailed guidance as next
steps. Members asked if the Council was broadly comfortable at the moment and the

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 8



Leader stated that there were 2 concerns; the principle of mandating and the voting
structure (1 Local Authority 1 Vote). Members agreed that these were not
representative decisions and hoped the Council were highlighting this. Members also
considered it was a shame the Council hadn’t responded to the consultation and
hoped they were doing so through other methods.

Members referred to promoting innovation and raising funds and asked if there were
any examples of this in England. Officers didn’t have any examples but explained
that the proposal was for Local Authorities (LA’s) to have more freedom. The Chief
Executive also explained that there was an added level of legal comfort if a LA was
involved in projects that were not traditionally LA projects; in reality a commercial
scheme would have the general power of competence which underpins plus the legal
comfort.

Members referred to Part 6 — Performance and Governance of Principal Councils and
asked how officers see this happening in Cardiff. The Chief Executive stated they
anticipate the new administration after the next election would conduct a peer review;
there would be national guidance on the rigour of a peer review process; effective
peer review challenge would not necessarily be confined to the Welsh Pool. The
WLGA would have a role to play hopefully with a reasonable pool of peer advisors.
The Peer Review conducted in Cardiff in 2012 was reasonably robust with a good
balance of expertise. He added that you can'’t just go into the process and take the
lowest common denominator approach. Members considered it was difficult not to
put a good face on reports when people want to be re-elected so this should be
looked at.

With regards to evaluating the effectiveness of scrutiny, Members considered that
more data for scrutiny committees to self-assess would be needed as well as
information on what directorates have done with Scrutiny reports and
recommendations and what they have led to. The Leader explained that there was a
difficult balance in self-assessment and there was merit in strengthening the maturity
of the self-assessment process.

RESOLVED: The Committee AGREED that the Chairperson writes to the Cabinet
Members on behalf of the Committee to convey their comments and observations.

53 : CORPORATE PLANNING 2020/23 & MID-YEAR PERFORMANCE
ASSESSMENT

The Chairperson welcomed the Leader of the Council, Councillor Huw Thomas; Paul
Orders Chief Executive; Gareth Newell Head of Performance and Partnerships, and
Dylan Owen Head of the Cabinet Office to the meeting.

The Chairperson advised Members that at this point in the year the Committee looks
to undertake policy development scrutiny of the Corporate Plan. This year Committee
are advised that the Capital Ambition policy statement has been renewed, with
implications for the 2020/23 Corporate Plan. The Leader, Chief Executive and policy
team are in attendance to explain the corporate planning position. Members were
advised that included in their papers is the mid-year (Q2) monitoring report on
corporate performance for 2019/20.These results are reported against well-being
objectives of the Corporate Plan and the Chairperson had asked for these to be

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 9



included in the papers to remind Committee of the Steps, KPI's and targets in place.
It was not intended to go into detail on Performance Q2, but important that Members
understand how monitoring reports support the Corporate Plan as Committee
considers the new Corporate Planning arrangements.

Members were advised that they would have an opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny
of the draft Corporate Plan at Committee on 19 February 2020, when they would be
able to test the Budget Proposals against the Cabinet’s priorities as laid out in a
refreshed Capital Ambition.

The Chairperson invited the Leader, Cllr Thomas to make a statement, in which he
said that the Council are currently in the process of refreshing the policy
commitments set out in Capital Ambition. Since its approval by Cabinet in 2017, a
number of major policy commitments set out have either been achieved or
significantly progressed. For example, 2 new high schools and 6 new primary schools
have opened, driven up education performance and launched a new vision for
learning in the city. The Council has taken major decisions in the development of the
new Arena, developed a new economic strategy and launched a transformative
vision for transport in the city; as well as some radical reforms to the way we deliver
children’s services, shifting the emphasis to prevention and early intervention through
the new Family Support Services.

There have also been significant developments in the external environment in which
the Council and its partners operate to which the Council must respond, including
managing the impact of the UK leaving the European Union, responding to the
declaration of a Climate Emergency and leading a local response to the Local
Government and Elections (Wales) Bill.

He added that there are areas of challenge, which he has been open about;
Challenges such as financial resilience, driving up recycling rates and responding to
the increasing number of children entering care, many of which are common to cities.
The Administration has therefore chosen, at the mid-point of the municipal term, to
review and refresh its policy agenda.

The refreshed version of Capital Ambition would be considered by Cabinet on the 23
January 2020 and would then be translated into the organisation’s planning and
delivery framework. This meant that Capital Ambition would shape the Corporate
Plan, budget proposals and our performance monitoring framework so that there is
clarity on how our agenda will be delivered. Once Capital Ambition is approved by
Cabinet it will be transplanted into a draft of the Corporate Plan which, and once
again this year, an early draft will be shared with Scrutiny to ensure that Scrutiny is
involved at the policy decision stage. The performance panel will engage with
scrutiny on the finer points of detail in the Corporate Plan and invite comments on the
steps, key performance indicators and targets.

The Leader stated that he believes this approach strengthens the points of influence
of the scrutiny committees and positions the Council well to respond to the
requirements of the Local Government and Elections Bill. The Leader welcomed the
pre-decision scrutiny of the budget and corporate plan in February, ahead of formal
consideration by Cabinet and Council.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 10



The Leader concluded saying that today, he would like to set out in greater detail how
we will take our agenda forward, responding to the requirements of legislation and,
hopefully, strengthen the role of scrutiny.

Officers outlined a presentation for Members after which the Chairperson invited
guestions and comments;

Members supported fewer and more meaningful reports on these topics and asked
how the Council was doing on what’s going well and not so well. Officers explained
that from a performance perspective the improvement in Education was quite striking
and a notable area of improvement. There were challenges such as pressures on
Children’s Services and there were differences between last years and this Corporate
Plan in terms of the quality of information and indicators in relation to Children’s
Services. The Leader added that there would be self-assessment in July; Looked
After Children would be an area of focus as well as the challenges faced in Waste
Management and Sickness Absences; the Leader noted the improvements in
Education and the way the City’s economy is performing; achievements will be set
out in the refreshed Capital Ambition.

The Chief Executive added in relation to self-assessment of strengths and
challenges, the importance of financial resilience and tightening budgets, adding that
the new S151 officer is looking at the issue of savings delivery and this is a priority for
SMT. He has been clear with SMT that proposals for savings have to have a detailed
business case. He added that in relation to the Corporate Landlord they have
identified a key issue in self-assessment due to the inherent risks associated with the
area but there has been significant progress with regards the Health and Safety in
buildings and the position was much better than 4/5 years ago.

Members noted that PRAP had raised the issue of savings delivery previously and
considered that there are shortcomings in performance management and KPI’s which
are important. The Leader stated that he empathises with the point, but it was
important to recognise and differentiate that there will be times when you can’t
identify demand such as Social Services and the National trend in Children’s
Services. He added that the Council has responded to austerity by being innovative
in continuing to deliver services in communities and make savings although not all in
this financial year.

Members considered that the improvement in information to the public was notable.
The Chief Executive responded saying that as a large public sector organisation that
is data rich the analysis has been poor so it was important to strengthen staff at the
centre to improve analytical areas; use data to improve policy development with
savings, so there was lots of scope. The Leader added that it was imperative that
information to the public was clear and gave the example of recycling where it was
important to bring the public on board.

Members asked if there was enough openness about where performance
weaknesses are, and considered that where there are issues, they are not
highlighted or published. Members added that to improve and to aid culture change
there needed to be greater openness about problems and action plans to address
them. The Leader agreed with the points in relation to openness and that there are
challenges and stated that Scrutiny and SMT are aware of these. Members noted

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 11



that these are not stated in the Corporate Plan, and the Leader requested that
scrutiny comments would be reflected upon and incorporated into the draft Corporate
Plan.

The Chief Executive stated that the end of year Performance Assessment should be
a level of agreement on the challenges the organisation is facing; there was a move
away from quarterly reports and the performance treadmill to a more strategic view
with scrutiny and he was happy for PRAP to test the robustness of this at the year
end.

Members considered it would be useful to have an update to PRAP on Facilities
Management, CTS and Self-Assessment.

Members requested that the figures in relation to fly tipping and enforcement are
clarified.

RESOLVED: The Committee AGREED that the Chairperson writes to the Cabinet
Members on behalf of the Committee to convey their comments and observations.

54 : FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
The Principal Scrutiny Officer outlined the Forward Work Programme; Members
considered Budget Proposals in February, and were advised that there will be an All

Member training session on budget papers should they wish to attend.

The Principal Scrutiny Officer invited Members to contact her if they wanted more
bespoke training on budget scrutiny.

55 : URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY)

None received.

56 : DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 10.30AM, 19 FEBRUARY 2020

Committee agreed to change the time of the next meeting; therefore the next meeting
of the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee would be held at 1.00pm
on 19 February 2020, in Committee Room 4, County Hall.

The Chairperson advised that there would also be a meeting of the Committee’s

Performance Panel with the Leader and Chief Executive, to discuss targets within the
new Corporate Plan on Wednesday 12" February 2020 at 10am.

The meeting terminated at 7.15 pm

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 4

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11 March 2020

Digital Strategy - progress report

Reason for the Report

1. To provide the Committee with a progress update on the Council’s Digital

Strategy.

Background

2. The Committee’s Terms of Reference confer responsibility for scrutiny of the

overall operation of the Council’s programme for improvement, including

Organisational Development and Information and Communication Technology.

In July 2018 Cabinet approved a new Digital Strategy to deliver the Capital
Ambition commitment to adopt a ‘Digital First’ approach, making the best use of
new technologies to run the Council’s services, particularly its transactional

services, as efficiently and effectively as possible.

4. The Digital Strategy supports Capital Ambition and the ‘Modernising and

Integrating our Public Services’ well-being objective of the Corporate Plan. The
Corporate Plan agreed at Council in February 2020 states that ‘Delivering
improvement while reducing resources has relied on a bold and ambitious
approach to leading change. We will continue to introduce new technologies to
support the residents of Cardiff in their personal lives, as well as the

Council’s workforce in their professional lives. We now need to push harder at

applying digital thinking ...to reconfigure and automate countless processes and

Page 13



services, delivering savings and improving the services for citizens in the

process.’
5. To achieve the digital ambition the Corporate Plan sets out steps to

e Launch a new bilingual ‘chat bot’ by September 2020;

e Produce an agile working strategy for the Council by December 2020.

e Establish Cardiff as a Smart City, where digital technologies and data are
seamlessly used to enhance the lives of people, by adopting the new
Smart City roadmap by September 2021.

Issues

6. The Digital Strategy, attached at Appendix 1, recognises that customers require
effective automated services as a first contact point and that the Council needs to
do more. The approach will use digital technology to enable working more
efficiently, reassign resources to more critical services, manage the rising cost
and demand pressures that the Council faces, whilst becoming a more agile and

flexible organisation and thereby increasing productivity.

7. The Strategy sets out an approach to transforming the Council based on a set of
five principles

a. The customer experience comes first;

b. Digital interactions will become the first choice for our customers;

c. Modern, fit-for-purpose technology will be used to ensure efficiency;

d. Technology solutions will be re-used, purchased and developed
responsibly;

e. Digital services will support collaborative working to improve outcomes for
our customers; and

f. Digital services will be continually monitored, assessed and improved.
8. Examples of services currently offered digitally are street lighting, parking permits,

payment transactions, Council Tax payment, recycling and waste caddy requests
and school place applications.

Page 14



9. The Strategy has a clear vision, defined via 9 areas of connectivity:

e Connected Citizens

e Connected Management
e Connected Workforce

e Connected Partners

e Connected Business

e Connected Education

e Connected Visitors

e Connected Services

e Connected Elected Members

10.Behind each of the above sits an Action Plan in the form of a diagrammatic
explanation of activity. These are attached at Appendix 2. In April 2020 the
service will deliver an annual report addressing progress on each of these

connected area action plans.

Previous Scrutiny

11.The Committee last scrutinised the Digital Strategy in July 2018, following which it

made observations and received responses as follows:

12.Resourcing & Savings - the Committee was keen to establish the implications
for resources, and the savings that might unfold from greater digitalisation of
Council services, noting that the aim was to reduce the volume of low value
gueries handled by C2C staff. Members highlighted the significant potential for

the strategy to impact on staff.

The Cabinet Member responded he would be happy to bring information on the

impact on staff of digitalisation back to the committee as cases developed.

13.Cardiff App - The Committee felt the functions available from the App were
limited at the time, urged that there should be an increase in the services

available online and requested more information on future proposed transactions.

Page 15



The Cabinet Member confirmed that significant work was underway to identify
suitable services and that the App roadmap for future services would be based on
Service demand, user feedback and Service Area readiness, together with an

offer to return to committee with an update.

14.Councillor support — The Committee stressed the importance of the App
supporting councillors to represent citizens, and was able to advise them that an
issue they have reported is progressing. A Member of the Committee

volunteered for the ‘smart councillor’ test group.

The Cabinet Member agreed that councillors understanding of how the App works
was important and reassured that all technical glitches raised by members would

be looked into.

15.Serving All Citizens - The Committee was particularly keen that the Council did
not confuse the elderly with artificial intelligence, and retained appropriate
mechanisms to assist them manually, echoing a note of caution that the Council
must be able to deal with the demand that ease of access to Council services

creates.

The Cabinet response reassured that all other access channels would remain
open so that people can access services in a way that is most convenient for
them, and offered to return to committee to present the service map.

Scope of the Scrutiny

16.Members may wish to assess progress against the actions listed for each
‘connected’ group in Appendix 2, and follow up on the committee’s previous
observations as listed. The Committee has a governance oversight role in
monitoring how effectively the Digital Strategy will support the aims of the
Corporate Plan 2020-23.

Page 16



Way Forward

17.

18.

To support this scrutiny, in attendance will be Councillor Chris Weaver, Cabinet
Member Finance, Modernisation & Performance; Isabelle Bignall, Chief Digital
Officer, and Phil Bear, ICT Service Manager.

At the meeting, Members will receive a presentation by the Chief Digital Officer,
covering the progress to date and ongoing ambitions for introducing a digital

culture across the Council, following which they will be invited to ask questions.

Legal Implications

19.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters
under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report
with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out
any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions
taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the
Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be
within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the
Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements
imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and
properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in

all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

20.

The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However,

Page 17



financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Recommendations

21. The Committee is recommended to:
i.  Note the progress on the Council’s Digital Strategy;
ii. Consider whether it wishes to offer comments, observations, or

recommendations for Cabinet consideration.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services
5 March 2020

Page 18



STRATEGAITH DIGITAL
Ddigidol  Strategy

Cyngor Caerdydd Cardiff Council

GWEITHIO DROS GAERDYDD, GWEITHIO GYDA’N GILYDD

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS N [S
WORKING FOR CARDIFF, WORKING TOGETH=R

CAPITAL :
CARDIFE
SMBITD CAERDYDD



DIGITAL PURPOSE
STRATEGY

The Cardiff Council Digital Strategy has been established in order to provide guidelines that
will support Cardiff Council’s ambition to digitalise services. It contains the principles that will
enable Cardiff Council to deliver benefits by exploring new ways of working, increasing service
accessibility, and improving customer service.

This document covers the following components;

} Purpose

p Intro

P Where Cardiff is now
P Vision

p Principles

p Governance

This strategy will enable Cardiff Council
to achieve the ‘Digital First” approach set
out in the Capital Ambition programme,
which sets out the Council’s priorities for the
administration over the next 5 years. This
Digital Strategy is intended to run alongside
the Capital Ambition plan and draw out

the digital themes contained within the
modernisation section, and throughout the
document.

Only through the successful
implementation of this digital strategy

will we be able to successful modernise and
integrate our public services, thus enabling us
to achieve the other six wellbeing objectives as
set jointly by the public service board in Cardiff,
as depicted in the diagram below.

Digital initiatives will form part of the Council’s
response to the provisions laid out by the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.
Adopting further Digital projects and ways of
working will directly contribute towards the
Council fulfilling its obligations under this act.

UCHELGAIS

PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL DIGITAL STRATEGY Page 20
AMBITION



DIGITAL

STRATEGY

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

Cardiff is a
great place to
grow up

Cardiff Grows in Cardiff is a great
a Resilient Way place to grow older

Modernising
& Integrating our
Public Services

A Capital City that Supporting people
Works for Wales out of poverty

Safe, Confident
& Empowered
Communities

5*?/
Page 21 CﬁDISFF

CAERDYDD




DIGITAL Introduction
STRATEGY

As we become increasingly reliant on digital devices and digital services, we expect to be
able to communicate with organisations at any time of day or night. We want to find
information, request services or report problems quickly, easily and at our convenience.
We are increasingly reliant on effective automated services as our first contact point with
banks, shops and service providers. For many of us this is the easiest way to interact as we
can choose when we do it whilst avoiding waiting in queues for our calls to be answered.
Cardiff Council should be no different.

As a Council, we already offer online access and automated services in a number of

areas, but we need to do more. By providing simple, accessible means for customers to
communicate with us, we can encourage a shift away from the traditional, more expensive
contact methods such as telephone and face-to-face contact. More of the high-volume,
low-value contacts that we deal with should be completed at our customers’ convenience,
enabling Council staff to focus on the more complex and sensitive enquiries that benefit
from the human touch.

Focussing on digital services doesn’t just make things better for our customers —we’ll

be able to work more efficiently, and reassign our resources to more critical services.
Customers will always be able to speak to a person when they need to, and the person
they speak to will be able to provide improved customer service. Behind-the-scenes, we're
using digital technology to simplify and automate processes which will reduce our reliance
on expensive and bulky physical hardware. All this can help us manage the rising cost and
demand pressure which the Council is facing.

We’re also becoming a more agile and flexible organisation, with staff able to work from
any location as we make more efficient use of physical space and mobile technology.
While working around the city Council staff- such as social workers and the housing repair
teams- carry smart devices which allow them to receive up-to-the-minute instructions and
report on progress without the need to return to base. Simple changes like this mean that
productivity has significantly increased, and our staff can focus on core business rather
than administrative tasks.

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS

%&III?%ION DIGITAL STRATEGY




This is a really exciting time for Cardiff Council. The technology we need to improve our efficiency
and accessibility is becoming more and more affordable, making its adoption both a realistic
proposition and an obvious choice. We continue to face operational challenges because of
ongoing reductions in funding. At the same time we're seeing unprecedented growth across
Cardiff with more businesses, more workers, and more residents choosing to move to the capital.
The only way that we can continue to provide the breadth and quality of services to our citizens is
to make significant improvements in how we operate.

In this Digital Strategy, we’ve laid out our approach to transforming Cardiff Council into a modern,
digitally supported organisation - able to maintain excellent service delivery in a more efficient,
simple and accessible way. We have agreed and adopted a set of simple principles so that we can
all pullin the same direction. Improving outcomes for citizens remains our first priority, and we're
confident that the opportunities afforded to us by new digital technologies will enable us to make

improvements across the board that will be of benefit everyone.

DIGITAL

STRATEGY

Ny

N
CARDIFF

CAERDYDD




DIGITAL Where Cardiff is now

STRATEGY

READY

120

Over 120 free wifi points across the
city via the Cardiff Free Wi-Fi scheme

19 Hubs and libraries across
the city with internet

the use of

s the city have 4G mobile phone service available
er 30M/bits per from 4 or more operators in 89% of the

1S OVEel
(Ofcom Connected area covered by the local authornty
(Ofcom Connected MNations report 2018)

laSafloflef

Home
PC/

Internet

Access

Across Wales 85% of househcolds now
have a home computer and internet
connection (Office of National stafistics)

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL Page 24

AMBITION




9%

increase

2016/17 2017/18

2017/18 website visitors
up by 9% from 2016/17

DIGITAL

STRATEGY

WILLING

19%U

Increase in
webforms via our
website

150% increase
(from 32,000 to 78,000)
in Twitter followers

over the last two years

20%

11,000 followers on Facebook

Ny

Page 25 ﬁDISFF

CAERDYDD




DIGITAL Where Cardiff is now

STRATEGY
ABLE

: - ;__

Y Ny, ©
14,000 connected street lights on 3,300 parking sensors across our city
our road network over 3,000 downloads of the parking

app within the 1st 6 months
19,539

-

19,539 additional transactions Council tax portal
totalling £1.7 million made supports over 35,000 visits
when compared to 2016/17 for citizens to wgw their

account online
PRIFDDINAS
GMBITION DIGITAL STRATEGY Page 26




DIGITAL

STRATEGY
ABLE
GQV APP
Cardiff Gov App launched for Increase in online parking
citizens in June 2018 permit applications

75.7% T.
\ 4

on

75.7% of recycling bags
and waste caddies are
requested online

90%

of school applications are
made online (an increase of
20% on previous year)

}%z/

) S

Page 27 DIGITAL STRATEGY CARDIFF
CAERDYDD




DIGITAL

STRATEGY

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL
AMBITION

Vision for our Digital Strategy

Our digital vision for Cardiff is
a connected city in which
new technologies empower
citizens to get the best from
services that matter to them

Technology e
to interact

CONNECTED informed
ELECTED Council in.
MEMBERS

Technology allows elected
members to better understand
and meet the needs
of citizens

CONNECTED
SERVICES

Technology makes services

more accessible, with better

outcomes delivered through
joined-up working

CONNECTED

VISITORS

Technology improves
accessibility in Cardiff and
makes the city an easier
and more enjoyable
place to visit

CONNECTED
EDUCATION

Technology is used to
improve education
outcomes and embed
digital skills in the
workforce



ECTED
ZENS

ables citizens
ith, and be
about, the
ays that are
t to them

CONNECTED

BUSINESSES

Technology makes
Cardiff a more attractive
place to do business and

encourages innovation

Page 29

DIGITAL STRATEGY

DIGITAL

STRATEGY

\\g/
) S

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD




DIGITAL Key Principles
STRATEGY

PRINCIPLE: DESCRIPTION:

The customer « Delivering exceptional experience to our citizens and staff
experience comes first remains our primary focus.

» No Digital project will ever have a negative impact on the
customer experience. Whether we are delivering changes
to customer-facing processes or behind-the-scenes we will
ensure that the current standard of customer experience is
maintained or, wherever possible, improved.

» We will ensure that the same range of services and customer
experience is available to our customers, regardless of the
channel by which they contact us.

Digital interactions o We will deliver simple, efficient and attractive Digital services
will become the that customers will choose to use instead of the traditional
first choice for our contact channels. We refer to this as making our services
customers ‘Digital First’.

e Over time we will aim to make appropriate services ‘Digital
by Default’, meaning that they will primarily be available

digitally.

e We recognise that not every citizen will be able to use digital

services so we will always ensure that there is an accessible
route for them to interact with us. However, this will become
the exception rather than the norm. We will also work to
improve levels of digital inclusion across Cardiff.

Modern, fit-for- e We aim to use Cloud-based solutions wherever we can in
purpose technology order to reduce reliance on physical hardware that must be
will be used to ensure maintained, repaired and replaced.
efficiency
We will ensure that our technology platforms can be rapidly
scaled up or down to ensure that the associated costs
directly relate to service demand. We should only pay for
services that we use.

We will seek to make the most of emerging technologies;
delivering enhanced customer service through the use of
smart devices, virtual assistants and social media platforms

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS

%&IJIIA%ION DIGITAL STRATEGY




Key Principles DIGITAL
STRATEGY

PRINCIPLE: DESCRIPTION:

Technology solutions will o Our default approach to the procurement of technology
be re-used, purchased and solutions is to re-use before we buy, and to buy before we
developed responsibly develop something new.
o We will re-use existing technology where it is fit-for-purpose
o If our existing technology is not fit-for-purpose we will seek
to procure an existing solution that is the best fit for our
requirements
o If no solution exists that can fulfil our requirements we will
seek to develop a solution

When buying or developing a technology solution we will
ensure that we identify the best fit option to meet our current
and future requirements, and to provide value for money.

We will ensure that existing technology platforms are fully
supported, that solutions are developed to a corporate
standard, and that our ICT Service team has the required
training, knowledge and support to ensure ongoing
maintenance and support can be delivered.

Digital services will support Digital solutions will be implemented across service areas
collaborative working to and external suppliers to improve collaborative working. The
improve outcomes for our adoption of Cloud-based solutions will increase accessibility
customers and agility.

Cardiff Council will prioritise analysis of the service data that
we gather so that we can make better decisions, handle and
forecast customer demand, and improve collaborative working.

Where appropriate we will share data across areas in support
of improved service delivery and to improve outcomes for
citizens. Security controls will be proportionate, to protect data
and services, but not impede user accessibility.

Digital services will be con- We will always test Digital services thoroughly before releasing

tinually monitored, assessed them for general use. This will include piloting them to assess

and improved the customer experience and completing detailed technical
testing to check that they fulfil requirements.

Digital services will be monitored to assess the user experience
and levels of engagement. We will use the data that we gather
to make continual improvements to services.

We will document the lessons we have learn as we expand the
number of Digital services we offer and will seek advice and
guidance from organisations that have experience in Digital
transformation to avoid reinventing the wheel or making the
same mistakes that they have made.

DIGITAL STRATEGY _CARDIFF
CAERDYDD




DIGITAL Governance
STRATEGY

Various groups and boards will have responsibility for providing governance on
Digital projects and initiatives. Key responsibilities are outlined below:

VR

CABINET AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

YA

CAPITAL
AMBITION

DIGITAL | CARDIFF
CORPORATE

DIGITAL
INITIATIVES

N—

SERVICE SPECIFIC
DIGITAL INITIATIVES

N—

o Cabinet and SMT accountable for delivering Digital agenda

e The Cabinet Member for Finance, Modernisation and Performance will
oversee the delivery of the programme

o Digital Cardiff Board to drive Digital First agenda, offering leadership,
support and challenge

o Monthly meetings chaired by Chief Executive

e Regularly updated on initiatives

e Ensure coherent approach, enable and maximise synergies
Strategic management by Chief Digital Officer

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL
AMBITION




Free Wi-F1 throughout Free Wi-Fi at 68 public
the City Centre building sites

Technology enables citizens to interact with, and be informed about, the council in
ways that are convenient to them

Mobile App

Tk ok &

627521  Cardiff's

),

Atotal of Since T multimedia contact

2.37 million Cardiff gov centre, including

visitors - app launched social media

61% of n June 2018, @ 78 058 transactions and

access was there have M ’ web chat

via a mobile been 11,740 functionality. Web

device dqwnloads 9889 chat has increased
with a total of (7 | ’ by 183% in the last
102,924 year.

SOCITIM 4* rated

’ d contacts
website — only local Qi 83, 142
authority in Wales.
Libraries & Hubs Social Media

W
9,J

Over 96% 4G coverage
throughout Cardiff

5G roll outin 2019

109km Council
Owned Fibre

Over 98% superfast

21,224 followers broadband availability

on Facebook

& Like

A network of 19 hubs and
libraries with 3.4 million visits Council presence on Twitter and Facebook
and 215,171 hours of PC platforms with 83k messages received

utilisation having taken place



gé
CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

Technology enables citizens to interact with, and be informed about, the council in

ways that are convenient to them

Digital
Strategy

Cardiff
Council

1. Increase
services and
ability to
self-serve

2. Improve
first point of
contact

6. Increase fibre
infrastructure

5. Work closely \_/ 3. Crow
with '

— social media
telecommunication
; platforms
suppliers

4, Priontise Welsh
Language digital
developments

. Develop a roadmap of services that will become available to

citizens across digital platforms (Cardiff.gov website, mobile
app, emerging technologies) that are fully integrated with back
office systems to secure better, quicker outcomes for citizens.

. Deploy emerging technology in the field of artificial intelligence,

such as virtual agent, to support citizens needs 24/7.

. Apply consistent service standards across social media

platforms to ensure that accessibility and usability is equivalent.

. We will continue to work with suppliers and other public sector

organisations to ensure the Council fulfils its obligations under
Welsh language standards, enabling citizens to access services
in their language of choice.

. We will work closely with telecommunication suppliers to ensure

that digital infrastructure is expanded to provide improved
coverage across Cardiff.

. The laying of greater fibre networks will increase choice, reduce

cost and improve quality of service for citizens. We will work
with internal and external partners to increase fibre availability,
facilitating the use of emerging and future technologies. We will
ensure inclusion of fibre assets in infrastructure projects to
increase and improve connectivity for citizens.

We measure our success by setting ourselves targets, and monitoring our
performance using Key Performance indicators relevant to each priority

We are taking a Digital First moving to a Digital by Default approach, in
order to ensure digitally excluded citizens are accounted and provided for
every step of the way



Gg abed

@) Connected Workforce

% Connected Services

CONNECTED MANAGEMENT

Technology provides the information and tools to manage

Frontline services
generate a lot of data 5
which is labour 21%

Intensive to make best / Caretaking
use of. The right Inspections
completed-
technology can help. Target 21%
Data led performance
management is a proven
method of service
@ Improvement, and can be

made easier by moving the
information collection and
analysis to be more
technology driven.

E :

We use data to understand the
demands on services. C2C
monitor call volumes and call
handling capacity to match rotas
of staff to demand using QMAX.
Mobile Scheduling tools enable
Responsive Repairs Unit to match
appropriate operatives to jobs
based on skills, location and
urgency of required work.

% Connected Citizens

an effective and efficient workforce

Time penod (April 2018 - March 2019)

Where available,
technology automates the
completion of audit
requirements by
collecting the information
as part of day to day
working practices.

Vehicle checks at
start of shift, Fire

v
v

. Safety Checks,
Sickness Absence
procedure through
€ Disicov

Making best practice from combination
of new and reusable technologies with
existing and redesigned processes.
Combine data to better support service
users, management decisions, and
teams in their delivery.

Education
Support
Services moving
42 teams onto
the existing
Capita one
system.

CAPITA :isione

HR currently consolidating employee info to enable
direct management of sickness, leave and recruitment
by managers. DigiGOV and Staff App also aim to
increase accessibility to workforce. Talentlink will
integrate with this in order to reduce the current 4-12
week recruitment lead time.

The Academy offer 1-2-1
training for managers in
DigiGOV.

Management teams
require further support,
training, and assistance to
reach a consistent level of

understanding and ability.
This will enable them to
support staff and lead by
example in adopting new
ways of working. #Digital
8.53% of Return to Work
not completed during
reporting period



CONNECTED MANAGEMENT

Technology provides the information and tools to manage
an effective and efficient workforce

9¢ abed

1. Managing
Data

6. Review and
Refine

2. Sharing
data well

e

3. Training
with
Technology

~

-_—

5. Broad Data

.

AN A TIN~
I A

4. Connected to
workforce

% Connected Workforce

% Connected Services

% Connected Citizens

Managers are supported and enabled to better understand service demand
and delivery, through the use of their own data, and Big Data. Evidence based
decisions for continuous improvement become engrained in management
culture, as does designing processes with data best practice in mind.

Review and realignment of agreements, processes, and integrations to
facilitate the collection, sharing and use of data between council departments,
and with partner organisations. The data will remain identifiable, mappable
and trackable throughout its journey.

Integrated employee data in DigiGOV enhances Workforce Planning. New and
newly promoted staff will have appropriate training automatically identified,
existing staff can have performance management linked to available training
and support resources in a more objective manner. Success of training and
coaching regimes can be evaluated, and worked on within the team, within the
service, and shared with training providers.

Automatic collection of Workforce Information will rebalance management
time, allowing more focus on employee support in Health and Wellbeing,
Development, and Service Delivery Improvement. Availability of resources,
progress and performance will be shared with partners to improve collaboration.
Overtime, mileage, rotas etc. will be automated as much as feasible.

To enhance evidence based decision making, the range of data sources in use
will be expanded, including those from external partners. The introduction and
use of data science techniques, alongside increased understanding, will
incorporate seemingly unrelated datasets, e.g. weather conditions and predicted
demand for Support Services- into a broader view of causes and effects.

Integrate technology into service area plans using data and staff
feedback. Changes will work towards continuous process and service
improvement, maximising use, benefits, and sharing of technologies.
Procurement will align with technologies fitting to and informing
change - neither will be led solely by the other.



CONNECTED WORKFORCE

Technology allows effective engagement and improved working practices

Time period (April 2018 - March 2019)

ICT provisions Mobile Working ] Self - Service
ICT enable the workforce to utilise the Several Departments have bespoke DigiGov - Self service HR Tool. Allows employees to
technology available to them. Over 2,000 systems in order for view their leave requests, track claims and view/edit their
mobile devices provided to staff. staff to bte ableto personal information without contacting HR.
carry ou
Service Desk provide a responsive Role-specific Staff App launched in
ICT support structure across the Woék IemOtleW | November 2016. Allows for
authority with remote and onsite and sectie: staff to access their electronic
sqppgrtth staff. 1(1);Ier SO.OODO T11<ckets [ payslips as well as receive Staff
raised through Service Desk. : o
These systems enable the mobile workforce to Information and notifications
Transition of 47 services from traditional receive and complete their work out and about and (fraining)
o storage documenting methods to SharePoint. away from the office. It allows them to communicate Requests create an
Q 120,000+ documents migrated to date. with colleagues and management to manage auditable trail of actions.
«Q In-built document retention system helps workload more efficiently as well as giving An average of 15,000
@D create robust governance working practises. employees a consistent working pattern. transactions per month
w through system.
\l
Internal Communications | Workforce Stats ‘ Personal Development
Implemented an internal instant messaging | i%l%&gggcg:rinner;trgfﬁcers ‘ Wide-range of online training and modules
service allowing for more efficient 15,000 MTC finos ii the field available through Academy Online Portal.
communications between staff. Reduces on. average per month, More than 24,000 e-leaming courses and
pressures that current email volumes put on modules completed.
o Council ICT infrastructure. 173% increase in 129 Responsive Repair
1 7 3 / Instant Messaging usage across the authority. Operatiyes using electronic
o scheduling system, over 9000 Essential Skills course delivered to front-line
Internal intranet is the online hub for staff visits booked per month. staff in conjunction with Cardiff and Vale college
information. Staff are kept informed of ) _ o has provided staff with basic Digital Skills.
Council news via circulation of Core Brief fhg liztglfuv:;s‘{:gloﬁlleegnyggh )
and Staff Information emails. f g Kers. Provid Lt O The Academy's “Leaming with Technology”
\;\22 tngslb lleoc;,tlioisu;e;a-tersn?o O Weekoffered basic skills such as Excel, Word
ine vi ) basics all the way to Social Media Boot camps.
% Staff Surveys are cornpleted online via ‘ . customer service staff o y D
Connected Manacement web-based form allowing for non-office 0 R . fors o st -
= based emplovees to complete. . rsonal Reviews offers workers to sit down
% Connected Services e b 1 8 k ‘(gvi?r 18,20(()1Ca:et?kmg d with their managers. Allows for training needs to
1S é cart aleci 01}{ arlgngl;ie be identified and courses to be booked in there
Via Larelaking Appicaton. and then via DigiGov. 95% of all staff completed

Connected Citizens

their personal reviews in 18/19



g¢c abed

CONNECTED WORKFORCE

Technology allows effective engagement and improved working practices

1. Digital
Platforms

6. ICT
Infrastructure
Improvements

2. Staff
Self-Service

CONNECTED
WORKFORCE

3. Workflow/
Automated
system
upgrades

5. Improved
Engagement

4. Digital Skills

Migrate all staff to emerging communication, storage and collaborative
platforms. Office 365 allows for easier and more effective communication with
3rd parties via Skype and gives colleagues the ability to work across multiple
devices. Full SharePoint migration allows staff to utilise collaborative digital
work spaces, both internally and with 3rd parties and move away from physical
storage of documents and policies.

Increase the capabilities of the Staff app by granting staff the ability to
submit claims, track request status on the go. Explore integration of Workforce
Planning into DigiGov ensures that relevant training is linked to each job role.
Increase self-service options across ICT Service Desk.

To encourage smarter working, a combination of hardware, software and
networks allows the workforce to take the office with them wherever they work.
Automated workflows guide staff through the steps involved in the business as
usual tasks, and automatically collects required audit and client information.

Strive to adequately equip the workforce with the skills necessary to successfully
deliver digital solutions. By raising digital literacy throughout authority we will
prepare the workforce for the Digital by Default working landscape. By
expanding on the success of Essential Skills workshops we can supply employees
with digital skills that can be utilised both in work and in their personal lives.

With efficiencies found through technology, the workforce has the capacity to
increase their participation in engagement events such as Health and Wellbeing
and Employee Roadshows. It also allows for employees to seek out training
courses and have more 1-2-1 time with their managers.

ICT will continue to work to enable colleagues to utilise the digital
tools available to them. This includes facilitating improvements to

&y Connected Management
O onnecec anademen Wi-Fi in Council buildings, infrastructure improves to support digital

working practices as well as opening up Self-Service tools for
common ICT issues.

% Connected Services

% Connected Citizens



iKCT

KEEP CADWCH
CARDIFF CAERDYDD
TIDY YN DACLUS

Digital platform in place
providing information
and advice to community
organisations.

Cardiff Council and
Housing associations
in the city have a joint
Housing Allocation
Scheme and operate a
common waiting list for
their properties.

3rd Sector
Organisations

Technology makes a real difference to how joined-up services are provided to citizens

Volunteer Cardiff is a
digital platform run by
Cardiff Council that
promotes everything to do
with volunteering in
Cardiff.

It unites key organisations
and signposts Cardiff
residents to all
opportunities available to
support volunteering.

18 council devices in
Cardiff Bay police
station

1 council device in
Cardiff prison

®Cadwyn

-:";::‘:irdiffhousing

Emergency Services

Universities

Agile work stations
enable partnership
and collaborative

working between
Cardiff Council and
Emergency Services.
Teleofal Caerdydd
There is an (((

Telecare Cardiff

agreement for staff to
have access to
computers and digital
infrastructure situated
in each others
buildings.

=

MEALS | PRYD
¥ WHEELS | GLUD

Joint working with our

universities and colleges cyngorar  citizens

to focus on improving
service delivery.

- Working collaboratively
with Cardiff University
on a number of initiatives.
Cardiff Council has
worked in partnership with
the National Software
Academy to develop the
next generation of
Software Engineers.

igo

- Adult Learning liaise with
CAVC on an annual basis
to plan and offer Digital
training.

Gateway Services

Citizen Wellbeing

opeth | advice

Gateway Services are
digitally accessible for
citizens and link with a
wide range of internal and
external partners to
provide advice and
support to citizens.

The Joint Equipment
Stores formal partnership
with Vale of Glamorgan
Council and Health board
provide one service to
citizens. Upgraded ICT
system allows paper-free
end to end processes.

Network of HUBs and
Libraries providing
citizens with access to
numerous services, such
as Citizens Advice.

Dewis Cymru is an online
resource directory which
provides citizens
information and advice
about services available
for health and well-being.



Technology makes a real difference to how joined-up services are provided to citizens

Connected Cardiff Capital H :
5 : osted Services
Network Region City Deal
Services provided to citizens across Wales which interacts seamlessly

Public Sector Broadband on a digital platform with other organisations and local authorities.
Aggregation (PSBA)
\\ connects Welsh public sector WITS - The Wales Rent Smart Wales — Easily

RHWYDWAITH SECTOR THE PUBLIC SECTOR organisations to a private, Interpretation and Transla- accessible website and
CYHOEDDUS cvweu NETWORK FOR WALES secure, wide area network. tion Service deals with training platform which
requests for professional enables digital applications,
Over 110 This enables organisations to UK Government agreed £1.2 billion City Deal for Interpreters and translators. reporting and online training.
o deliver services through a safe, Cardiff Capital Region in partnership with the
organisations fast and resilient connection. Welsh Government and 10 local authorities.
Nearly
5,000
sites

All 22 Local Authorities 34,258 ]_ 1,955
CONNECTED requests licences issued

Local Authorities

Increased collaborative working between local authorities within Wales to provide services to citizens

Wales Pension Adoption Services in Shared Regulatory All Wales Library
Partnership Cardiff are managed by Services covers the council Management
established in 2017 to the Vale, Valleys and areas of Cardiff, Bridgend and ~ System implemented
pool their investments Cardiff Adoption Vale of Glamorgan Council. by 17 local authorities.
with aim to reduce Collaborative and Serving over 600,000 residents
investment costs. The supported by the and 10,000 businesses. The Cardiff and
Cardiff and Vale of National Adoption
Clamorgan Pension Service. : : Vale Integrated

) ) Cardiff & Vale Regional Health and Social

Fund is one of the eight

Safeguarding board in place i
Local Government Central South , o oo 1 2c¢ Care Partnership
K K . N X . pA T\ Cadifi & Vale of Glamorgan Bwrdd Diogelu with representatives from ensures partners
Pension Scheme in this Consortium is a Joint ) Pension Fund Oedollon Rhanbarthol Cardiff and Vale of Gl
artnershi Education Service for 5 ) { Cronfa Bensiwn JORhC arl anc Yo € 0 2 ariotga  work together
. . local authorifies which e EDORNCAF, Council bringing together the  effectively to set
C;)C laut ontlehs V‘; 1 // \ CaVRSAB main agencies that have priorities and
cevelops a school vegiorcl Scfeguaraing day-to-day responsibility for  improve outcomes
lmprovement service to e child and adult Safeguarding and Wenbeing for
raise standards. Bwrdd Diogelu 161 al .
Plant Rhanbarthol (16 in total). citizens.

Caerdydd a Bro Morgannwg
Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
Regional Safeguarding
Children Board



111111

Technology makes a real difference to how joined-up services are provided to citizens

CONNECTED
PARTNERS

Explore the possibilities of creating one view of the citizen for all council
services, in collaboration with partners. Unique identifier provides the ability
for a single departmental view of the citizen to feed their specific data into
multiple views, which can be seen by all relevant, verified partners.

Cardiff Council will look to create an Open Data Strategy. The Council will
investigate publishing key datasets in a non-propriety format to increase
transparency and accountability. Open Data will bring wider benefits to our
entrepreneurial start-ups, businesses and academics by allowing them to
exploit gaps across markets, identify new business opportunities, create new
products and services and develop new business models

Continue to encourage collaborative work within the Welsh region, with the
ambition of implementing shared protocols between partners. This will allow
for service review and recognise best practice.

Increase Gateway Services across the council and with partners, to improve first
point of contact resolution and accessibility for citizens. Introduction of Cardiff
Family Advice and Support service will provide a clear pathway for citizens to
access information and advice.

Wider collaboration with partners to create a Digital Collaboration team, sitting
across all organisations as part of Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA).
Create a collaboration workspace which will allow all organisations involved to
share data, information, systems and to work on joint initiatives. The team will
focus on supporting projects and helping increase the speed of digital delivery of
council services across Wales.

Introduce and apply data science and analytics to services to help
contextualise the data available from the council and partners. This
will inform business decisions, predict behaviours and support early
intervention work.




Digital
Strategy

Cardiff
Council

S 0

SOCIAL MEDIA

BUSINESS CRM

Technology makes Cardiff a more attractive place to do business

and encourages innovation

Twitter and Linkedin are
used to raise profile of
Cardiff at events using
event specific tags and city
branding #ChooseCardiff.
Encourages partner
engagement through
targeted promotion of
parters at these events.

3.8% increase in followers
following attendance at
MIPIM.

.o. 21 %

connected
businesses

A Business CRM has
been implemented
to better manage
relationships with
businesses and
begin building a data
picture of the
Council's support to
businesses by sector
and type of
contact/support.

CARDIFF IX

ASSISTANCE
1,645

new
businesses

EMPOWERING
EMERGING BUSINESS

Cardiff Internet
Exchange n
Enterprise Zone has
21 connected
businesses, the
largest number
outside London.

Businesses have

° improved bandwidth,

reduced latency and
allows for faster data
transfer.

1GB

The business sectors of
Fintech, Creative Industries,
Life Sciences and Complex
Manufacturing have all been
identified as the most
requiring support from tech
infrastructure.

Invest in Cardiff helping
businesses in these sectors

connection best leverage the benefits of
speeds as Cardiff IX and other
standard for infrastructural benefits.

businesses

The Council's economic
development team provide
support and advice to
start-up businesses.
Offering advice and
signposting to help new
businesses secure funding,
find office space that
supports their digital needs
and help establish
relationships with business
support agencies within
Cardiff.

A total of 1,645 new
businesses started in
Cardiffin 2017

', students
on creative;

courses
g

v

TECH READY
WORKFORCE

Ok-IC

\{FE STIEACED
3\‘%\«\&&&“‘ (\E INRUST RIES

Cardiff has one of the fastest
growing tech-based workforces in
the country.

Over 5,000 people employed

in ICT, 3,000 in Life Sciences and
over 15,000 employed in creative
industries in Cardiff.

There is also 5,000 students enrolled
on creative courses across the 3
Cardiff Universities.



It
CAERDYDD

Digital
Strategy

Cardiff
Council

6. Supporting
future workforce

5. City Deal

Connected Services

) Connected Partners

Technology makes Cardiff a more attractive place to do business

1. Website
upgrade

N

CONNECTED
BUSINESSES

4. Business CRM
and Data usage

and encourages innovation

2. Business
Network

3. Smart Cities

‘Invest in Cardiff” website to be upgraded to bring up to modern
standards. Allow prospective parties to self-serve to undertake property
searches and use indicative benchmarking calculators appropriate to
their business needs.

Continue to provide support to Fintech and Creative and Digital sector
by working on upgrading of network speeds across the City and its
region. Investigate feasibility of dedicated network sections for SME.

As part of the Smart Cities strategy we will look to create an open data
platform that will provide opportunities for businesses and start-ups to
create new innovative products and services.

Explore how to better utilise Data coming from the business CRM.
Leading to better business data being collated, analysed and
distributed by Economic Development.

Continue to contribute as part of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal,
working towards creating and supporting an innovation district.

Ensure that current and future generations have the relevant skills
and knowledge in order to succeed in the new digital economy.
Using the Future Generations act and Digital Competency Frame-
work as base to deliver the new Digital Curriculum in Cardiff
Schools.




. Wi-Fi1 provision to all
CAERDYD]
schools

Wi-Fi refresh across

schools in 2018

Technology is used to improve education outcomes and
embed digital skills in the workforce

Digital
Strategy

Cardiff

. Core Service
Council

ICT supply 128 Cardiff Schools
with their core service.

Includes safe, filtered web access
for online resources

schools tralling has opted to use
new delivery I third party filtering
methods, and and broadband

Education Support

All Wales

digital

learning,
providing

resources for

teachers and  —
pupils.

Cardiff was

the first LA to
roll out the ‘ '
use of HWB

Speed and Access

Current total of 2GB
bandwidth to
Schools Network —
Approx 16MB to
each school

Services

Current project to align recording, reporting, and
retention of essential data for 42 teams within Education
Support Services, enabling efficient data sharing

Hosted Web Filtering

Internal
Communications

Several different,
non-integrated,
channels of
communication
used by different

schools and teams. <
Split across 3 main %

suppliers Google,
Microsoft, and
Cardiff. Gov

P
N

Collaboration between ICT and BT (PSBA) to
provide safe web access

First steps towards targets ...and 1GB for
of 100MB for primaries... secondaries
bandwidth

IE.1 [ L]

noME I

4 primaries and 1 secondary so far



. Wi-F1 provision to all
CAERDYD]
schools

Wi-Fi refresh across
schools in 2018

Technology is used to improve education outcomes and
embed digital skills in the workforce

Digital
Strategy

Cardiff

Council Pupils Places

1.25% 13%
Increase in increas_e in
applications applications

made on time, made online

99.99%

school places
applications made
online this year

Cashless payment systems
for catering in all Secondary
schools across Cardiff. \

Top-ups can be
online, or through
on-site machines.

7% of all

transactions
completed online,
accounting to

0,
16% of total Phased roll out

spend. for primary schools,
25 schools are on the system

Pupils Information

Schools Information
Management System — SIMS
—moved to cloud storage to
reduce burden on schools
maintaining individual
systems, and increase use
and availability of info

Computing Unlocked

A set of tools for use in classroom
situations to cover both ICT and

cross curricular use from
Nursery to Year 9.
Ensures consistency

throughout
Cardiff schools.
Implements

the Digital
Competency
Framework

and supports
whole curriculum

o4
L

Digital Competency

Computing in Class

50% of Secondary schools in Cardiff are
teaching Computer Science — Coding,
Programming, Algorithmic design

Framework

Bl

Developed by Welsh Government, utilised throughout Wales.
Mandates use of ICT throughout the curriculum to create
transferable digital skills and knowledge.




It
CAERDYDD

Technology is used to improve education outcomes and
embed digital skills in the workforce

Digital
Strategy

Cardiff
Council

1. Connected
Pupils-and
Parents

N

CONNECTED
EDUCATION

2. Online
Payments

6. Connected
Classrooms

5. Connected
Schools

3. Digital
Record

4. Informed
Safeguarding

1. Connected Pupils and Parents

Align existing resources to ensure teachers, parents, and pupils can
communicate digitally about the things they need to, when they need to

2. Online Payments

Expand the existing cashless catering platform to become a wide ranging
portal for parents to manage their financial interactions with the school

3. Digital Record

Complete the secure, portable, individual digital record for each pupil

4. Informed Safeguarding

Create systems and data sharing agreements to enhance early
intervention for safeguarding purposes

5. Connected Schools

Ensure that all schools are supplied with the required connectivity to
support the Digital Curriculum, Digital Competency Framework, and
creation and use of joined-up data

6. Connected Classrooms

Using Welsh Government’s Education Digital Standards as a baseline,
improve on-site infrastructure by co-operative working between the
stakeholders — ICT, Schools, and Education Support Services - to
ensure best use of the improved connectivity is made



It
CAERDYDD

Technology is used to improve education outcomes and
embed digital skills in the workforce
Digital
Strategy

Cardiff

Council
Our Digital Generations

Digital Competency Framework as a foundation to build better methods
CONNECTED of delivering the new Digital Curriculum, with partners in business,

EDUCATION universities and Smart Cities, and a Culture of Support for the teaching
staff - ensuring future generations have the skills, knowledge, and ability
to flourish in the emerging digital economy

Future Builds

Work with partners in universities, businesses, and Smart Cities to
ensure that new build schools are designed with the infrastructure to
be flexible and fit for the future

Aligned Communications

Strengthen links between Corporate ICT, Education, and Schools staff
by aligning communication channels, increasing collaboration and
share responsibility, and facilitating secure transfer of sensitive pupil
and school information

Aligned Communications

Future Builds

0)
)
&
d
S
~
2
@)

O

Our Digital Generations

Governance

Establish robust governance by all involved stakeholders to ensure
these aspirations can be met, and knowledge can be created, used,
and managed, to best effect.



S CONNECTED VISITORS

Technology improves accessibility in Cardiff and makes the city an easier and

more enjoyable place to visit
Digital
sugtegy Time period (April 2018 - March 2019)

gg;‘:]'iﬁ WEBSITE SOCIAL MEDIA METRICS
The Visit Cardiff Over 140,0QQ followers Google Analytics and
website has over across 15 bilingual social website in-built

Social Media channels. analytics can give

50,000 hits on average fOllowerS Channels aligned to

per month and is

insights into

accessed from more S\I/?e,fﬁéc u;lf,?frfm aton geographical reach and

) Visit Cardiff for : .
than 200 countries. It [ ) Al vis campaign targeting.
acts as a single point potential visitors,

. Cardiff Events for

of reference for visitors events and travel info Informs future
by surfaqng Keeping users up to campalgn approaph
information and events date and acting as and business decisions.
ﬁon.] engaged customer query
businesses and event latform
partners. . P

www.visitcardiff. com

Communications with Cardiff Free WiFi P Visitor experiences are
partner businesses enables Cardiff City ¢ O enhanced by technology.
generally by email. Centre and Cardiff o 3rd party applications like

A Bay visitors to access N Tiger Bay Trail app and
Little integration or A the internet on the

History Points provide a
self-serve currently
OVER'
l 1 [ |

go, for free.

. fuller visiting experience.
available, partly due

° to restrictions on
accessing commonly
used file sharing
platforms.

Visit Cardiff site has
downloadable maps and
links to common map
providers. Downloadable
audio tours available at
Cardiff Castle.

60

ﬂ of website
access via
mobile
device.




CONNECTED VISITORS

Technology improves accessibility in cardiff and makes the city an easier and

more enjoyable place to visit
Digital
Strategy

(@olgellid

Coundil . Curate better visitor experience by creating a more responsive and
searchable events calendar and look into the possibility of ticket
purchasing capabilities. Wider integration provides centralised travel
information from Cardiff Airport, Traveline Cymru, NextBike and useful
apps for car users, all embedded into the website.

1. Web

updates 2. Look to facilitate business partners sharing and accessing information via the

new website. Possibilities of getting events and press releases "to press”
quicker and keeping visitors more up to date. Feedback and analytics can be
: : shared with businesses in a more dynamic and secure manner. Investigate
6. Augmented 2. Aligned with feasibility of business partner portal.

Visits businesses for

/ visitors 3.  Expand on current bilingual content and ensure core visitor information will be

provided in key visitor languages. Look into possible use of advanced Al
translation services in order to make tourism services easier to access for a
wider range of people.

CONNECTED
VISITORS

4. Re-launch of existing social media channels, focusing on user generated content
to improve engagement. Present a view of Cardiff through the eyes of its
residents and visitors.

5. Closing loop 3. Language
on-analytics expansion
5. New interactions provide more useful data, enabling Cardiff to identify

conversion from online visits to actual visits. What attractions and events
brought them? Did they enjoy them? Why?

4. Social Media

Engagement 6. Next generation of mobile applications enhance visits through
Augmented reality, increasing accessibility for people with a wide

Q’:) Connected Businesses £ d
range or needs.

% Connected Citizens

% Connected Parmers



Strategy
Cardiff

Council

@
o

% Connected Partners

@w

INFORMED BEST
PRACTICE

INFRASTRUCTURE

Technology makes services more accessible, with better outcomes delivered

through joined-up working

Participation in City Deal
and Core Cities opens
opportunities for
collaborative working and
sharing of best practise.
Local Gov Digital discuss
and set open standard for
data and provide UK wide
opportunity for
collaborations.

Cardiff Free Wi-Fi model
was Implemented following
City Deal discussions.

Cardiff Council facilitate
relationships between
property developers and
telecommunications
companies to ensure new
builds, both commercial
and residential, are
equipped with Fibre and
are ready for 5C.

Councils own network
supports Council Public
Buildings and Cardiff Free
Wi-Fi in the City Centre and
Cardiff Bay. Enables more
people to access the
services available online.

rei

CARDIFEGOV.UK

Council Tax e-billing and
self service available
through web and app
24/7. Over 11,000
accounts accessed since
App launch in July 2018.

Customers can make fly
tipping reports on the go,
with GPS tracking. Over
2,000 reports across web ,
and app since Aug 18.

38% A

13%
~

MODERNISATION
PROGRAMME

Aiming to align and
streamline working within
the authority. Services share
practice, resource and data
through better
communication to ensure
better delivery of services
with fuller picture of
citizens.

So far, the programme has
delivered the ability to
access consistent services
across Cardiff Gov App
and the Cardiff Gov
Website.

38% of all Highways
Defects reported since
launch in Feb 19 have
come through website or
application.

73% of all Parking Permit
applications now made
online through Council
website

Household Enquiry Forms
and CTAX review letters can
now be replied to digitally.

an
wary
| [3.] ]

DYSGU I OEDOLION
ADULT LEARNING

A m
downloads
since it’s

DIGITAL
INCLUSION

EVAC CARDIFF

Technology can only deliver benefits to
customers who are able to utilise it.

Into Work service supports people in their
use of ICT to help them gain employment.
They assisted 2,987 claimants moving onto
the online-based Universal Credit system.

Over 45,000 people attended their digital
outreach and Job Club sessions.

Adult Learning provide targeted free
adult skills courses and workshops
alongside Good Things and Ty Canna
with over 1,200 people enrolling on digital
courses since September 2018.

Cardiff Council work in
conjunction with
Emergency Services,
Public Transport and
Health Services to keep
citizens informed of how to
access services during
events or major incidents.

Information is surfaced
through an application and
a twitter account.



o CONNECTED SERVICES

Technology makes services more accessible, with better outcomes delivered

B through joined-up working
Digital

Strategy
Cardiff

Coundil . Enhance sharing, communication and analysis between different
services such as Schools, Children/Adult Services to facilitate a move
towards early social intervention and preventative action.

1. Connecting 2. Investigate feasibility of one digital ID that citizens can use to access
: all relevant Council services. One identifier for proof of address, linking
Socially . )
to school applications and to cashless payment, eventually spreading
to a suite of services in line with Modernisation Programme.

6. Connected 2. Digital 3. ICT and Information Management will work closely with services on

o enabling sharing of information with both internal and external
Sources Citizens partners through secure and efficient channels to promote and enable
joined up working.

CONNECTED
SERVICES

4. Internal sharing and alignment of information will allow citizens to gain
a clear line of sight of service requests, their status, and completion,
across all available channels of contact. Facilitated by rollout of 0365,
SharePoint online, Collective, and Virtual Agent.

5. Dlg%tal 3. Connectmg 5. Expand on the success of Into Work and Adult Learning’s digital inclusion
Inclusion Securely work by working closely with Digital Communities Wales. Look to offer
more advanced courses such as coding clubs.

: . 6. Connecting to partner and 3rd party sources of information to
4. Modernisation recombine, and enhance understanding of seemingly unrelated
Program 2 contributory factors. Helps create a more vivid and widespread image

O~ Connected Parners of how citizens interact with the Council and how they use services.
o)

) Connected Businesses



B CONNECTED ELECTED MEMBERS

Technology allows elected members to better understand and

Strategy Time period (April 2018 - March 2019)

Cardiff

Agile working

=N

Digital meet the needs of citizens
Reporting

Council

3,094

enquiries

-
o
3,094 enquiries were submitted by Remaining enquiries are emailed

Members can stay up to date Members via the Self Service or called in directly to members

All 75 members have the ability and connected with remote Members Enquiry System. Provides services. 93% of members have
to work remotely via laptops, access to Modern.Gov, automatic feedback and enquiries can used members enquiry service.

tablets and smartphones Blackberry Work and Outlook be submitted at any time.
Public Engagement Communications

modern.gov
( ( E ) ) @ enqguiries
| £[uive
webcasting over
5,459 480,000
views visits
Council meetings are broadcast for Mod.Gov allows Members and the Weekly update produced by 6,403 enquiries raised by
public viewing via Public-I and public to access upcoming public Committee & Members services. members through the Member
Facebook Live. Archived webcasts documents as well as minutes of Currently circulated every Monday Enquiry System. This is either
are available for everyone to view. previous meetings. via email to Members and senior through Self Service or members

management, services team

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens



Digital
Strategy

Cardiff
Council

6. 3rd Party
Collaboration

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens

CONNECTED ELECTED MEMBERS

Technology allows elected members to better understand and

meet the needs of citizens

1. Day to day
Digital Working

2. Improving
Digital
Infastructure

N

CONNECTED
ELECTED
MEMBERS

3. Electoral
Management
Upgrades

4. Public
Engagement

1. Day to day Digital Working

Empower Members to work Digitally by Default by providing relevant training and continued
ICT support. Upgrade and standardise Member's Mobile Working devices and undertake
ICT upgrades to enable Members to remotely attend Council and Committee Meetings.
Rollout of Office 365 will allow for more agile working.

2. Improving Digital Infastructure

Improve Wi-Fi connectivity throughout Council Buildings and access to power points in
Committee and Meeting Rooms to enable Members to work digitally. Undertake upgrade of
Webcasting systems in order for all meeting rooms to be suitably equipped for broadcasting.

3. Electoral Management Upgrades

Upgrade of Electoral Management Software in order to maximise returns of Household
Enquiry Forms and modernise Electoral processes and communications. Upgrades will
introduce Mobile Canvassing and will contribute to the Council’s aim of achieving 90 %
voter registration in 2019/2020

4. Public Engagement

Create a Social Media Engagement plan to promote and raise public awareness of the
Council’s Democratic workings (Surgeries, Consultations, Elections). Aim to increase views
of Cabinet, Scrutiny and Committee meeting webcasts.

5. Data

Explore possiblities of providing Members with access to real-time, accurate data for
the City. Ensure members have the relevant data and tools to hand in order to deal
with enquiries and complaints efficiently, as well as identifying trending issues within
their Wards.

6. 3rd Party Collaboration

The adoption of SharePoint Online will allow Members and Members Services to
work collaboratively with other bodies, such as Welsh Government and other Local
authorities, to help better understand the needs of the Public.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11 March 2020

Procurement Strategy 2020-23

Reason for this Report

1. To seek early engagement with the Committee on development of the Council’s
Procurement Strategy 2020-23, and to consider whether there is merit in further

inquiry work into the Council’s approach.
Background

2. The Committee’s Terms of Reference includes responsibility for scrutiny of the
Council’'s arrangements for the Commissioning and Procurement of goods and

services.

3. Members have previously scrutinised procurement in March 2017, commenting
on the current Procurement Strategy 2017-20, and in September 2017,

commenting on the Socially Responsible Procurement Policy.

4. In recent months several Members have expressed their concern to the Chair of
the Committee about the length of time that it takes to award a contract using the
Council’s procurement process and the problems that this can sometimes cause
to service delivery. It has therefore been suggested that the Committee considers
reviewing processes to establish whether they could be streamlined. The example
given was the procurement of a replacement contractor for building maintenance

work to void council properties.

Page 55



5. The Head of Procurement has provided the Chair with a detailed response to the
specific case. This highlighted that the Council’s procurement processes were
largely governed by timescales defined within legislation and the impact that the
Council’'s Scheme of Delegations can have on the procurement timeline for

procurements over £1m.
Procurement Strategy 2017-20 & Socially Responsible Procurement Policy

6. The Council’s current Procurement Strategy 2017-20 attached at Appendix 1 is
focussed on the delivery of social, economic, environmental and cultural well-
being through the way the Council manages its procurement activity. Alongside
that document, in October 2017 the Council published a Socially Responsible
Procurement Policy, attached at Appendix 2.

7. The Socially Responsible Procurement Policy focuses on three Welsh
Government initiatives, Community Benefits, Ethical Employment in Supply
Chains and the Opening Doors Charter. Notably Cardiff was the first Welsh
Council to sign up to the Government’s Code of Practice for Ethical Employment

in Supply Chains.

8. The Policy provides an overarching framework to secure a joined up approach to
the delivery of procurement that embodies the Well-being of Future Generations
Act, the Wales Procurement Policy Statement, Cardiff What Matters Strategy and
the Capital Ambition. Its six priorities are:

e Local Training and Employment
e Think Cardiff First

e Partners in Communities

e Green and Sustainable

e Ethical Employment

e Promoting the Wellbeing of Young People and Vulnerable Adults

Corporate Plan 2020-23
9. The refreshed Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 27 February 2020. It
includes Well-being Objective 7: Modernising and Integrating Our Public Services.

Page 56



Two key procurement focussed steps are set out to achieve this objective as
follows:

a. Continue to support the Foundational Economy through our Socially
Responsible Procurement Policy, ensuring that local people and
communities benefit from the money that the Council spends on goods and
services, and working with partners to explore how we can further promote
opportunities for Social Enterprises in Cardiff.

b. Strengthen social partnership arrangements in Cardiff by updating
our procurement strategy to promote fair work and support the circular
economy by 2020.

Previous Scrutiny

10. Following its previous scrutiny of procurement in September 2017 the Committee

expressed concern about:

11.Signposting smaller companies - The importance of continuing to signpost
smaller companies to bid application assistance where the Council could not
assist them itself.
The Cabinet advised that in 2016/17 over 5,000 SME’s supplied the council, the
Selling to the Council Guide would be updated, the Third Sector would be
supported to identify potential community benefits, and larger procurements

would host Meet the Buyer events.

12.Community benefit costs - The risk that suppliers would simply add the costs
associated with delivering community benefits to their bid prices.
Cabinet could find no conclusive evidence that this was in fact the case and were

continuing to seek out research on the issue.

13.Cost to the Council - The ability to quantify the overall cost to the Council of
introducing a socially responsible procurement policy.
The Cabinet reassured the Committee that implementing the policy would be cost
neutral, there would be benefits to the wider community, and the internal costs of

implementing the policy could be met from existing resources.

Page 57



14.Ethically based procurement decisions - The visibility of evidence that
procurement decisions have been ethically based rather than price based.
The Cabinet explained that evidence that a tenderer shared the Council’s ethical
employment principles would be sought via tender questions typically scored
between 5% and 20% depending on the nature of the contract. Ethical
employment considerations were likely to be a part of the initial selection stage to
determine whether contractors are capable and suitable to deliver contracts on
behalf of the Council.

Scope of the Scrutiny

15. At the meeting Members will receive a presentation from the Head of
Commissioning and Procurement as attached at Appendix 3.

16.Members are invited to comment on the current approach to procurement and
issues that may need to be addressed within the forthcoming strategy 2020-23.
They are also invited to consider whether further inquiry work would be beneficial
to examine the context for the Council’s £450m procurement spend. Some
options may include: management oversight and Council monitoring of large
contracts/ savings; Compliance / Direct Awards; Social Responsibility - Oversight
of the impact of the socially responsible procurement policy; Social Value Portal
(enabling objective assessment and monitoring of community benefits /value);

Contract management; SMESs, Social Enterprise and the Foundational Economy.

17.1n attendance to answer Members questions will be Councillor Chris Weaver,
Cabinet Member for Finance, Modernisation and Performance, Chris Lee,
Corporate Director Resources, and Steve Robinson, Head of Commissioning and

Procurement.

Page 58



Legal Implications

18.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

19.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications
at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented
with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision
that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from

those recommendations.

Page 59



RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:
(i) Consider the Council’s approach to developing its Procurement Strategy
2020-23.
(i)  Consider whether there is merit in the Committee undertaking further inquiry
work into the Council’s approach.
(i)  Agree whether it wishes to relay its comments and observations for

consideration by the Cabinet.
DAVINA FIORE

Director, Governance & Legal Services
5 March 2020

Page 60



Procurement Strategy

- -.-liﬁ; A w -

\

\
=

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

Mae’'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg hefyd /
This document is also available in Welsh




TIDNNOD 441AdVYD

020C - £10C ADI1VYLS LNIJWIIND0Ud

e W ;.
o ——




CARDIFF COUNCIL

Foreword

(=]
N
(=]
N
N
-
[=]
N
>
O
=
<
o
[
(%}
-
Z
Ll
>
Ll
(4
)
(U]
(©]
o
o

With an annual spend on bought-in goods, services
and works of over £390 million, it is imperative that
the Council manages this spend responsibly to ensure
we obtain value for money, support the Council’s wider
objectives and meet our legislative requirements. This
Strategy builds on the successes delivered over the last
four years including the implementation of Category
Management. This has resulted in a step change in the

way in which procurement is managed across the Council . .
gnd delivered significant cost reductions. 2. Buylng RESpOﬂSIb|y

1. Acting Smarter
e Ensuring staff have the procurement skills, knowledge and tools to work effectively and independently.

e Continuing to innovate, utilise technology and challenge traditional delivery models to deliver improved value.

Ensuring that the Council’s social responsibility principles are promoted through our procurement processes and contracts.

‘%he Council is continuing to face a number of e Ensuring that we only buy what we need and that we deliver value for money on all spend.

oyhallenges including continued budgetary constraints
And an increasing demand for services, resulting in the
ongoing need to deliver efficiency savings and to be
more commercially focused. However, the Council also
recognises the opportunity to maximise social, economic,

e Ensuring that we have the appropriate levels of controls and that staff understand and comply with them.

e Maximising the economic and social value we deliver whilst minimising any environmental impact.

environmental and cultural wellbeing through its 3. Collaborating and Engaging

procurement activity. To this end it is committed to the

delivery of community benefits, including employment e Ensuring that there is positive engagement with staff across the Council to support and encourage the delivery of
and apprenticeship opportunities, and the promotion of innovative solutions within the agreed Council rules and wider legislation.

“Fair Working Practices” including payment of the Living

Wage. e Supporting effective collaboration across the public sector where it delivers value for the Council.

e Engaging with suppliers, contractors, service providers and the users of services to drive continuous improvement,

This Strategy acknowledges the key role that innovation and deliver greater value.

procurement will continue to play in enabling the
Council to meet these challenges and outlines our vision
and priorities for the next four years. It sets out how the
Council will continue its procurement journey and build

on what it has achieved to date by: (s \,\)'C,Q/(_/\/

ClIr Chris Weaver,
Cabinet Member for Finance, Modernisation & Consultation, Cardiff Council




CARDIFF COUNCIL

[=]
N
[=]
N
N
-
(=]
N
>
O
(18]
s
[
(%}
-

Z

wl

=

L

-4

=}
(@]
o
o
o

9 abed

Procurement Matters

The City of Cardiff Council is the largest unitary authority in
Wales and is responsible for the delivery of a wide and diverse
range of statutory and discretionary public services.

The Council delivers its services directly through its own
workforce and through private and third sector organisations.
The Council spends over £390 million a year procuring a
diverse range of goods, services and works from over 8,000
suppliers and contractors.

The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with
probity, to ensure that value for money is achieved and to

manage it in such a way that we can support wider Council
objectives.

This Strategy sets out the Council’s key procurement priorities
through to 2020 and the key changes that it will make to
improve the management of its external spend on goods,
services and works.

Total spend on
bought-in goods,

services and works

£390m

Buildings
Maintenance

£41.7m

quaWwaboUPN sani|o4

w\ze3

Adult Social Care

£107.2m




Procurement Journey So Far

The Commissioning & Procurement Strategy 2011-15
established an ambitious programme to
transform procurement in the Council
through the adoption of Category
Management to deliver
cashable savings and
improve procurement
performance across

the Council. [ catEGORY
- - MANAGEMENT

KEY SUCCESSES INCLUDE:

gutegf’" Ditigti,

wo0s0
3\aawns

Improved efficiency of the

CARDIFF COUNCIL

o
N
o
N
N
=
(=]
N
>
O
w
3
[
(%}
-
Z
w
=
w
o
=)
(U]
(©]
=4
[-®

However, despite our achievements the
Council is continuing to work in a challenging
financialenvironment and havingto manage
ongoing significant budget cuts. In addition,
the Council, and Procurement in particular
,are facing increasing expectations to deliver
wider policy initiatives. This context and our
response is set out within this strategy.

The delivery of
£18million of
procurement related
savings through a

TR strategies with more
m“_“on than £12million directly
savings linked to general fund

budget savings.

combination of demand
£1 8 and supply side

ordering and payments
process by removing around
200,000 paper invoices.

BUYING
RESPONSIBLY

An increase in spend under
management to more than
90% through our Buying
Responsibly initiative.

Being classified in the KPMG

Procurement Fitness Check as

“Developing to Advanced” overall

and “Advanced” for Procurement

Leadership and Governance,

Procurement  Strategy  and

Objectives, and Performance Winners of

Procurement
awards at a both UK
and Welsh level.

Management”.




CARDIFF COUNCIL

o
N
o
N
N
oy
(=]
N
>
O
i
<
o
[
(%]
[
Z
w
=
w
-4
)
(%
o
=4
-8

99 abed

Procurement Context

There are a number of priorities, policy aspirations and legislative
requirements which need to be considered. These include:

EU and UK Legislative Context

The Council’s procurement of goods, services
and works must be grounded in the European
Union Treaty Principles of free movement

of goods, freedom of establishment and
freedom to provide services. These principles
are under pinned by values of equal treatment,
non-discrimination, mutual recognition,
proportionality and transparency. The EU
Public Sector Procurement Directive 2014

was transposed into UK Law by the Public
Contract Regulations 2015. As the UK and
Welsh Governments were at the heart of

the development of the EU Directive it is not
currently envisaged that the Brexit vote in June
2016 will see any significant changes in the
regulations during the life of this Strategy but the
situation will be monitored.

In addition to the Public Contract Regulations
the Council needs to ensure that its procurement
policies and practices adhere to a range of
additional legislative requirements including the
Equality Act 2010.

Welsh Context

The Wales Procurement Policy Statement is a set of 10
principles by which the Welsh Government expects public
sector procurement to be delivered in Wales.

The Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act
is focused on improving Well-being of
the social, economic, ::wm;:;)G::r(gg:? ad
environmental and cultural —
well-being of Wales. The

guidance states, “the role Q ‘Q' W
of procurement will be 1 e vt bt At GG s et
an important part of how
a public body allocates
resources under the Act.”

@\JFTON
;
ol
: E

Sy Sty ey | Wi oty Wi Gunk Wby

Development  Developms
principle


http://prp.gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015v1.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en

Procurement Context

Cardiff and Regional
Context

The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City
Deal was signed in March 2016 and is an
agreement between the UK government, the
Welsh government and the ten leaders of the
local CCR. Itincludes £1.2 billion investment
in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure
through a 20-year Investment Fund.

/9 abed

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal

10 Local Authority Areas 1o S
¢§¢E€3ﬂ=ﬁﬁ==§§F===@==¢§ﬂ¢§3

Council Context

The Council’s Corporate Plan is the
Council’s Business Plan, setting out
the Council’s Co-operative Values and
Priorities. It sets out the Council’s
vision “to be Europe’s most liveable
Capital City” and contribution to
delivering the What Matters Strategy.

£f3d Million 1£1 ?B]Ilm{]
25 000 New Jobs. (@“"ﬁﬁﬁ

‘-&Gh

EEREREEETRA DA AR R RTVINIIR

Delivering

Our

e o
Vision

The Public Services Board

members have agreed to

work together towards a

series of outcomes that
matter most to the people

of Cardiff.

The Council is continuing to face a

What Matters Strategy (2010-2020)
is the integrated partnership strategy for
Cardiff that focuses on the delivery of seven
key strategic outcomes which will improve
the economic, environmental and social
wellbeing of Cardiff.

significant budget challenge. Despite
delivering savings of £200million
over the past 10 years the Council is
facing a budget gap of £25m during
2017/18 and a potential shortfall of
£81million over the next three years.

CARDIFF IS A
GREAT PLACE
TO LIVE, WORK
AND PLAY

. CARDIFF HAS A
THRIVING AND

PROSPEROUS
ECONOMY

PEOPLE IN
CARDIFF
ARE SAFE AND
FEEL SAFE

PEOPLE IN
CARDIFF ARE
HEALTHY

PEOPLE IN
CARDIFF
ACHIEVE

THEIR FULL

POTENTIAL

PEOPLEIN

CARDIFF HAVE
A CLEAN,

ATTRACTIVE

CARDIFF IS A
FAIR, JUST AND
INCLUSIVE
SOCIETY

AND SUSTAINABLE /
ENVIRONMENT

The most popular and successful cities offer
a range of leisure and cultural opportunities.
They also support a good standard of living

and empower people to get involved in their
local communities.

An innovative, productive and low carbon
economy providing the education and
employment opportunities that allow all
citizens to contribute and benefit from
economic growth.

People live in safe and cohesive
communities where diversity is celebrated.

A city that promotes good physical and
mental well-being, and ensures that those
who experience poor health receive the
care they need.

A city that offers school children the very
best education and provides the support
all citizens need to fulfil their potential.

Access to parks and green spaces attract
the city, promotes quality of life and
mental well-being. Liveable cities also n
to the future by mainminmg resilient

solutions to mttlgatemelmpactszuﬁel :

Great cities are defined by how they treat the
most vulnerable in society, offering everyone
an equal opportunity to get the most out of
life in the city, regardless of background.

(=]
(2]
o
N
N
-
o
(o]
>
[C]
=
<
o
'—
(%]
'—
z
L
=
Ll
=4
)
(9}
o)
=4
[~

CARDIFF COUNCIL



https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Corporate-Plan-16-18/Documents/CorpPlan%202017%20ENGLISH.pdf
https://www.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/What-Matters-June-2011.pdf
https://www.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/What-Matters-June-2011.pdf

CARDIFF COUNCIL

A globally
responsible
Wales

A Wales of

Organisational Outcomes e

Welsh

Language

(=]
N
(=]
N
N
=
(=]
N
>
O
(18]
s
[
("2}
=
Z
L
>
Ll
-4
=)
(9
o
=4
o

In response, the Council has identified the following key organisation outcomes, which will be A Wales of
supported and / or delivered by this strategy: We are a Bt
L] .
Maximising Economic, Social, Environmental and Cultural Wellbeing LlVlng Anciesra
We will actively work to obtain added value from Council contracts and spend. To achieve this, we will: .Wage

» Support the delivery of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Wales Act, by incorporating Community Benefits Employer
into all suitable contracts.

e Implement the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice - Ethical Employment in Supply Chains.

«  Work with partners to support local businesses and SMEs to access public sector opportunities.

89 abed

= Work to encourage suppliers, contractors and providers to pay their staff the Living Wage.

« Develop a Social Responsibility Policy and Charter and encourage contractors, suppliers, providers and
partners to adopt the Charter.

» Develop and publish a “Fair Work Practices” Statement.



http://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/

69 obed

Organisational Outcomes

Achieving Value for Money and Efficiency

We will ensure that we are achieving value for money in
terms of both whole life cost and quality and that we operate
efficiently.

To achieve this, we will:

» Continue to manage and organise all of our procurement
activities using category management to ensure effective
prioritisation and co-ordination of resources across the
Council.

» Continue to review procurement activity across the Council
to ensure we are achieving value for money and effectively
managing demand.

» Make use of and support collaborative sourcing, including
the National Procurement Service, where it represents value
to the Council.

» Ensure our procurement activities are managed efficiently
and make effective use of technology

=
@)
Z
2
(@}
O
L
L
=
o
(a4
<
(&)

o
I
o
N
~
Ay
o
N
>=
O
=
<
P
l—
n
-
4
Ll
P
Ll
&
)
O
(@]
&
a




Organisational Outcomes

Driving Innovation

We will actively work with staff across the Council to drive and encourage innovation where it can reduce the
cost and / or improve the effectiveness of Council services. To achieve this we will: A

Use strategic and transformational sourcing as appropriate to stimulate creative and
innovative solutions based on a clear understanding of business requirements, related
markets and good practice from the public and private sector

Work with Directorates to challenge existing procurement arrangements, to identify
savings and service improvement opportunities and plan forward work programmes.

0/ abed

Recognise the value and importance of supplier relationship management and collaboration
across the public, private and third sector to drive innovation and greater value.

Support new ways of working to bring about step change across the Council.
Support the consideration, evaluation and implementation of alternative service delivery models.
Utilise , the Council’s Local Authority Trading Company, to deliver commercial and

procurement services. This will allow the expertise and knowledge of the team to be utilised to provide
services to other organisations whilst generating an income stream for the Council.

Procurement Category eProcurement & Commissioning & m—
Transformation Management Back Office Efficiency ,,’;\Algedr:I(:tlve Delivery
Ate b I o n O — . i;r):]?;jsi(:nd Opportunity |l « ePl:;ureIment Design @il
& Diagnostic R —" . g” " e imen;atlon Strategy and Planning
« Organisational Design D espo'm'_sq lEme * Service Reviews
SO LUTI O N S « Procurement Strategy s and P2P » ADM Evaluation
* Market Engagement & « Education and el Busliness e

& Policy Development
and Training

Innovation training
* Managed Sourcing
Events

Development
e ADM Implementation
Support



www.atebionsolutions.co.uk
www.atebionsolutions.co.uk

T/ abed

Organisational Outcomes

Maintaining Effective Governance and Risk Management
We will continue to ensure that the Council complies with relevant legislation and that
the governance and risk management arrangements of the Council are proportionate
and followed.

To achieve this, we will:

e Maintain a procurement forward plan of procurement projects to improve how we
manage and deliver these projects.

e Ensure that the procurement policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
kept up to date.

e Improve contract management across the Council by supporting Directorates in
actively managing contracts.

e Continue to report on procurement performance and compliance to the Senior
Management Team at least every 6 months.

e Ensure staff across the Council are trained in the Council’s Policies and Procedures.

CARDIFF COUNCIL

[=]
N
[=]
N
N
Ay
[=]
N
>
O
=
<<
o
[
(%}
-
Z
Ll
=
wl
o
)
(%
o
o
o




CARDIFF COUNCIL

Key Enablers

(=]
N
(=]
N
N
=
(=]
N
>
(V]
=
<
o
[
(%2}
[
Z
w
=
w
=4
2
(9
(]
=4
o

The Council recognises five key enablers that will be critical to the delivery of this strategy — Culture, People, Technology, Process and Information.

¢/ obed

Continue to invest in our People to ensure
that the Procurement Team has the right
mix of skills, knowledge and expertise.

Ensure staff across the Council have the

procurement skills, knowledge and tools to
work effectively and independently.

Information

We will:

Provide staff with accurate timely spend data
to inform procurement decisions and identify

savings opportunities.

Produce an annual procurement performance
report.

Support Directorates to optimise their spend in
the achievement of their strategic objectives.

Culture

Develop a culture that is innovative and
challenges traditional delivery to improve
what we do and drive savings.

Ensure that staff understand and appreciate
the rules and policies of the Council

Ensure that there is positive engagement
with staff across the Council to support
and encourage the delivery of innovative
solutions within the agreed Council rules
and wider legislation.

Process

|: We will:

e Simplify and standardise our core
processes and ensure our controls
ensure compliance.

Ensure that standard templates are
in place for key procurement and
contracting documentation and that
these are regularly reviewed.

[ ) Technology

We will:

Invest in the use of technology and
e-procurement to underpin and simplify
our core processes for both staff and
suppliers.

Improve our Purchase to Pay (P2P)
processes to drive efficiency savings




¢/ abed

Monitoring Delivery & Performance

The delivery of this Strategy will be managed through a Delivery Plan with progress reported
on an annual basis using a Balanced Scorecard based on the key organisational priorities.

The Delivery Plan will include detailed actions and KPIs. All actions will be cross-referenced
to Welsh Government Procurement Policy including the Procurement Fitness Check, Wales
Procurement Policy Statement, Wellbeing of Future Generations Wales Act and Code of
Practice - Ethical Employment in Supply Chains.

Contacting us

Please contact us if you have any questions about the strategy

2/

ped

E-mail
procurement@cardiff.gov.uk

€
Phone
029 2087 3743

A
2
Write to:

Commissioning and Procurement Services
Room 246
County Hall
Atlantic Wharf
Cardiff
CF10 4UW

Website:
www.cardiff.gov.uk/procurement
www.atebionsolutions.co.uk

CARDIFF COUNCIL

[=]
N
[=]
N
N
-
(=]
N
>
O
(18]
s
[
(%]
[
Z
(28]
>
Ll
o
=}
(@]
o
=4
o




_CARDIFF_
CAERPYDD |
'




.-.-L.!L.)S I/l/e area

CARDIFF Living
CAERDYDD Wage

CARDIFF COUNCIL "
SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE

PROCUREMENT POLICY @@

Draft

~\



http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj75dTCja7UAhVFmBoKHXmaCkwQjRwIBw&url=http://www.advocacymatterswales.co.uk/about-us/&psig=AFQjCNGoUtBfQyFStuEsqiStAe1wYdgkjw&ust=1497005608753829

CONTENTS

1. Foreword

2. Introduction

3. Welsh Policy Drivers

4. Cardiff's Policy Drivers

5. What are Community Benefits?
6. What is Ethical Employment?

7. What is Opening Doors Charter?
Priorities and Delivery

a. Local Training & Employment

9/ abed

b. Think Cardiff First
c. Partners in Communities
d. Green and Sustainable
e. Ethical Employment
f.  Promoting the Wellbeing of Young People
and Vulnerable Adults
9. Community Benefit Clauses
10. Governance and Management

11. Monitoring and Reporting

Local Training &

Employment

Green and
Sustainable

FOREWORD

Partners in

Think Cardiff First o
Communities

Promoting the
Ethical Wellbeing of Young

Employment People and
Vulnerable Adults




) ) abed

INTRODUCTION

Cardiff Council is the largest local authority in Wales and is responsible for the delivery of a wide range of statutory and discretionary
public services. The Council delivers its services directly through its own workforce, and through private and third sector
organisations. The Council spends over £390 million a year procuring a diverse range of goods, services and works from over 8,000

suppliers, service providers and contractors.

The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with probity, to ensure that value for money is achieved and to manage it
in such a way that we can support wider Council objectives. The Council’s Procurement Strategy 2017-2020 set an increased focus
on the delivery social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being through the way in which it manages its procurement activity

with a particular focus on three key Welsh Government initiatives:

e Community Benefits — drives the creation of employment and training opportunities including apprenticeships, support for
small and medium sized enterprises and delivery of community, educational and environmental initiatives

e Code of Practice Ethical Employment in Supply Chains — focuses on ensuring a high standard of ethical employment
practices by our suppliers, service providers and contractors

e Opening Doors the Charter for SME Friendly Procurement - The following Charter clearly sets out our commitment to
changing the way we do business in Wales and also seeks support in helping to create a fair and open environment in which

we can all do business together and address issues of particular concern to SMEs.

This Socially Responsible Procurement policy aims to provide an over-arching framework for the delivery of these initiatives and the
wider associated legislative and policy driven requirements. The aim of this policy is to ensure that the Council maximises the social,
economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing that it delivers through its procurement activity.




g,/ abed

WELSH POLICY DRIVERS

The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, which came into force on 1 April 2016, focuses on improving the social,

economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The aim of the Act is to help create a Wales that we all want to live in,
now and in the future. The Act recognises the important role procurement can play:

“The role of procurement will be an important part of how a public body allocates resources under the Act. It is expected that public
bodies comply with their existing legal obligations in relation to procurement and that they also apply the Wales Procurement Policy
Statement which adopts the Sustainable Procurement Task Force’s definition of sustainable procurement. This sets out the procurement
practices and the specific actions expected of every public sector organisationin Wales”.

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 introduces a duty on local authorities and local health boards to promote the

development, in their area, of not for profit organisations to provide care and support for carers, and preventative services. These

models include social enterprises, co-operative organisations, cooperative arrangements, user-led services and the third sector.

v fi
e W

Local authorities with local health board providers must also establish regional forums to support social value based providers to develop
a shared understanding of the common agenda, and to share and develop good practice. The aim of the forum is to encourage a
flourishing social value sector which is able and willing to fulfil service delivery opportunities.

The Wales Procurement Policy Statement (WPPS) establishes a number-of key
principles by which the Welsh Government expects public procurement to manage

across Wales. This includes a number of principles that directly support the delivery of
the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act namely:

munity Benefits — Delivering
imum Value for Welsh Pound

Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Community Benefits

Open and accessible competition

Simplified standard processes

ning Doors: The Charter for SME
dly Procurement


http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwi-hsGfx67UAhWJDBoKHd5eAaIQjRwIBw&url=http://www.carbuyerswales.com/pages/10/sell-your-car-in-wales/default.aspx&psig=AFQjCNEUio112PjGjSqFokaSSxIDpYB4PA&ust=1497021863994472

6/ abed

CARDIFF’S POLICY DRIVERS

The Council’'s commitment to social, economic and environmental wellbeing is reflected in the Cardiff's Local Wellbeing Plan

objectives, which are clearly aligned to the Act. This commitment has been reinforced through the publication of Capital Ambition.

The Capital Ambition restates the Council’s commitment to Social Responsibility and to payment of the Living Wage.

S smaiion R -
fg» .- the new administration's five-year plan for the city, outlines
the Council's vision for Cardiff to become a leading city on the world stage. The
plan focuses on four main areas:

e Working for Cardiff - Making sure everyone who lives and works here can

contribute to, and benefit from, the city's success.

e Working for Wales - A successful Wales needs a successful capital city.

e Working for the future - Managing the city's growth in a sustainable way.

e Working for public services - Making sure public services are delivered

efficiently, effectively and sustainably in the face of rising demands and
reduced budgets.

The Council’s Procurement Strategy 2017-2020 set an increased focus on
maximising social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing through its
procurement activity. To this end it is committed to the delivery of community

] benefts, including employment and apprenticeship
opportunities, and the promotion of “Fair Working Practices”
including payment of the Living Wage.

Y/ The Carif
Commitment

w Addewid Caerdyd

‘THE CARDIFF COMMITMENT’ — sets out the Council’s vision
that “All young people in Cardiff make a successful transition
from compulsory schooling to ongoing education, training and
the world of work and are enabled to reach their full potential.”
The goal of the Cardiff Commitment is to ensure that all young
people in Cardiff eventually secure a job that enables them to
reach their full potential, whilst contributing to the economic
growth of the city. Community Benefits will be used to support
the delivery of this goal.

CHILD
RIGHTS
PARTNERS

unicef @

UNITED KINGDOM

Cardiff is one of only three cities to be part of the CHILD RIGHTS
PARTNER PROGRAMME having been successful in an
application process in December 2016. Cardiff is aiming to use
the framework provided by Unicef to embed a child’s rights
approach across a range of public services in four areas:
Outcomes for Looked After Children, Locality Working,
Commissioning, Child Friendly Streets.

Cardiff
Capital

Region
City Deal

Text to insert



http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj88casyK7UAhXJPRQKHZI8CA4QjRwIBw&url=http://www.istockphoto.com/au/illustrations/cardiff-wales-map-grey&psig=AFQjCNFpkv1VuOoRn-Cz3iU_IPBNmClfUg&ust=1497022155421330

08 abed

WHAT ARE COMMUNITY BENEFITS?

The Welsh Government Community Benefits Guidance Delivering
Maximum Value for the Welsh Pound provides an overview of the
Community Benefits that the public sector should be looking to deliver.
The Guidance sets out six broad categories of Community Benefits which
are shown in the diagram below.

Retention In line with the Wales

Sireining of the Procurement Policy Statement

ngend workioree the Council applies Community
R Supply Chain Benefits clauses to  all
the economically Initiatives appropriate procurements
mactive where such benefits can be
Community realised and applies the

community Benefits g Measurement Tool to.:inll such
Initiatives Social contracts over f£lmilion to

— Resources Enterprises &

Coneuttation S capture and report the
Businesses outcomes.
Contributions The Council’s procurement
to Education
processes mean that
Community  Benefits are
considered for all procurements over £150,000, and these are recorded on
our Procurement Plans. To date the majority of contracts where
community benefits have been delivered have been construction or
building maintenance related projects.

To date Community Benefits have largely been delivered on the Council’s
construction and building maintenance contracts. This Policy seeks to deliver

Community Benefits across all appropriate Council contracts. This will require a
step change in how the Council utilises Community Benefits clauses in its
tendering processes.

WHAT IS ETHICAL EMPLOYMENT?

The Ethical Employment in Supply Chains Code of Practice has been
designed by Welsh Government to support the development of more
ethical supply chains to deliver contracts for the Welsh Public sector and
third sector organisations in receipt of public funds. Businesses based in
Wales and businesses involved in Welsh public sector supply chains will
also be encouraged to adopt the Code. The Code is to ensure that workers
in public sector supply chains are employed ethically and in compliance
with both the letter and spirit of UK, EU and international laws. The code
covers the following issues:
Modemslaveryandhumanrights 1N Signing up to the code,
ahuses organisations agree to comply
Code of Practice Blacklisiting with 12 commitments designed to
i Seppy G eliminate modern slavery and
False seltemployment unethical employment practices.
Unfair use of umbrella schemes The Cardiff Council is already
and zero hours contracts taking action to implement and
Paying the Living Wage deliver the majority of the 12
Commitments. This includes
already being an accredited Living Wage organisation, having a written
whistle-blowing policy and strengthened pre-qualification checks and
monitoring including clauses in our terms and conditions. “

Cardiff Council was the first Council in Wales to pay all its staff the ‘real’ Living Wage
in 2012 and is the longest accredited Living Wage Council in Wales. The Council has a

proud track record of promoting fair work practices. On 16th March 2017, Cardiff
Council became the first Welsh Council to commit to sign up to the Welsh
Government’s Code of Practice for Ethical Employment in Supply Chains.




T8 abed

PRIORITIES AND DELIVERY

This Policy aims to provide an overarching framework to ensure a joined up consistent approach to the delivery of ‘Socially
Responsible Procurement’ that encapsulates the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act, the Social Services and Well-being Act, the
Wales Procurement Policy Statement, Cardiff Local Wellbeing Plan and the Capital Ambition. To aid this the Council has identified

the following six priorities:

Promoting the
Partners in Green and Wellbeing of Young

Local Training & Think Cardiff First Ethical Employment

People and
Vulnerable Adults

Communities Sustainable

Employment

This policy will set out the Council’s ambition and commitment in respect of these key priorities and to support delivery the Council
will:
e Establish a Socially Responsible Procurement Board chaired by our Community Benefits and Ethical Employment Champion
e Raise awareness of the Council’s social responsibility objectives through promotion of this Policy
e Incorporate Community Benefits Action Plans and Clauses into relevant tender documents (see section X)
e Manage of delivery of community benefits through effective contract management arrangements and ensure that contractors
utilise the Welsh Government Measurement Tool to measure delivery on appropriate contracts over £1million
e Develop and implement a Social Responsibility Charter which will seek a commitment from organisations across Cardiff,
including our suppliers, providers and contractors, to support us is the delivery of these priorities
e Develop and implement a supporting toolkit and training for both suppliers and buyers
e Publise and co-ordinate Council priorities to ensure that suppliers and contractors are met co-ordinate what we want them to

deliver



28 abed

Local Training &
Employment We will:

We want: e Require bidders for contracts worth over £1m to make a commitment to provide employment and training opportunities through a Community
Benefits Action Plan
- ; e Encourage our contractors to create more opportunities for apprenticeships, work placements and jobs.
opportunities for local people in order e Work in partnership with employers, training providers and employment services to promote and co-ordinate access to local employment and
to reduce unemployment and raise the FRIEIIIIRe s et
skills level of our local workforce, «Seek opportunities to work with Primary and Secondary schools through the "Cardiff Commitment" to equip young people of Cardiff with the
especially in target groups such as long right skills to match the requirements of the labor market
term unemployed. ¢ Maximise benefit from the City Deal and other major development opportunities to create employment and training.

To create employment and training

Think Cardiff First We will:

We want: Work with partners to support local businesses, social enterprises and SMEs to access tender opportunities.
: Work with partners such as Business Wales, Business in Focus, South Wales Chamber of Commerce to improve the skills of local

1IN | [ CETelelo] U] fo) i a (ST EI =13 1e B SMIES to access public sector business opportunities
olelglelgal (NIl =T RO Ho TN R[Sl e= WA | crease the number of opportunities advertised through Sell 2 Wales and advertise opportunities locally where appropriate
when commissioning and
contracting, and want our suppliers
and contractors to do the same

Encourage our suppliers and partners to buy locally
Promote our Selling to the Council guide and continue to standardise and simplify our procedures and processes.

Partners in Communities F'YS"it

*Make a local impact by improving local facilities and areas, by encouraging our suppliers to operate paid staff volunteering schemes.

e Encourage suppliers and contractors to work with schools and colleges, offering work experience and business awareness to students, especially

. . those from disadvantaged areas or communities.

To play =l a.CtIVG role in the .|0C3| ¢ Make opportunities, both directly from the Council and through our contractors, accessible to a diverse supply base including the third sector,
commu n|ty and commu nlty social enterprises and local suppliers and provide mentoring and support to assist these organisations to tender for and deliver these supply

support organisations, especially [ttt ) o , o

) . eHelp to support the health and wellbeing of communities in which the business operates by for example linking with local schools and colleges,

in those areas and communities other local businesses and residents’ groups to help run or sponsor activities / events, which will directly benefit those living there.

with the greatest need. ¢ Promote equality and fairness — target effort towards those in greatest disadvantage and tackle deprivation across the city

We want:




¢g abed

We will:

G reen a nd Susta ina ble e Seek, in partnership with suppliers, to minimise any negative environmental impacts of goods and services purchased, across their life cycle
from raw material extraction to end of life
We want: e Ensure that we follow sustainable procurement policies and processes which will exploit the opportunity to minimise energy consumption,
. L waste, pollution production of greenhouse gas emissions and detrimental environmental impacts while encouraging others to do likewise
To protect the environment, mlnlmlse «Reduce our carbon footprint

waste, reduce energy consumption e Eliminate unnecessary waste by adopting the “reduce, reuse, recycle” philosophy

and use other resources efficiently. |8 Explore the opportunity for greater collaboration with neighboring local authorities on the delivery of recycling services including shared
infrastructure services.

We will:
Eth ica I E m p I oym e nt « Promote the Cardiff Council “Real” Living Wage Accreditation Support Scheme

¢ Organise employer workshops to promote the Living Wage, initially targeted at the construction sector

¢ Build a scored Fair Work Practices question into relevant tender documents to include section on Living Wage, unfair use of umbrella
schemes and zero hour contracts and False Self-Employment Practices

To employ the highest ethical *Implement and embed the Code of Practice, actions will include:

standards in our own operations and ¢ Appointing an Anti-Slavery and Ethical Employment Champion
those within our supply chain Incorporating relevant statements into the Council’s Whistle Blowing Policy

e Deliver Modern Slavery and ethical employment training to procurement team
e Work with Welsh Government, WLGA and other Councils to develop and implement the Code
e Work with Legal to ensure that relevant clauses within Welsh Government Guidance are built into standard tender documents

We want:

q q We will:
Promoting Wellbeing of _ o . o
e Work towards becoming a UNICEF "Child Friendly City" as part of a partnership programme focused on child rights
Young People d nd e Ensure that services we provide or commission across Cardiff safeguard people’s rights and dignity
VUInerable AdUItS e Enhance the support for young people when they leave local authority care, making sure that they’re given the opportunities to succeed

through community benefits delivered from our contracts
eEndeavour to create an organisational culture where staff, councillors and contractors are sensitive to abuse and exploitation and take
responsibility for and feel confident in reporting concerns.
QL L TR W d g TR U] oY Yo g e} A=TRNATT=MN « Require organisations that the Council contracts with or that provide the Council with services, to apply this policy and have appropriate
(o100 ONa VLA (o Tel (VeI Ta Vel loTor- NIV [aIIIY=I9 safeguarding training and procedures in place
O (V{0 (o M1 (oM o) €0 4 (o) e=R i s =R (=i -1 ¢ * Ensure that all suppliers of personal care and support services that the Council purchases for its service users must have the necessary
safeguarding policies, procedures and training in place and be registered where appropriate with the Care and Social Service Inspectorate
Wales (CSIW)

We want:

of children, young people and




78 abed

COMMUNITY BENEFITS ACTION PLANS

The Council will utilise Community Benefit Clauses in all contracts above £1,000,000 and look to utilise them in contracts
below this threshold. It is the role of those planning the procurement to consider from the outset on a contract by contract
basis the potential for community benefits to be delivered through the procurement process and the most appropriate way of
achieving this.

Community Benefit clauses are requirements that aim to deliver wider benefits in addition to the core purpose of a contract.
These clauses will focused on contributing to the delivery of some of the six broad categories of community benefits and
thereby delivering a range of well-being benefits.

Community Benefits

Helping Suppilers Deliver Maximum Value for the
Wedsh Poun

CONTRACTUAL - All Contractual Community Benefits form part of the contract and suppliers will have a contractual obligation
to deliver these commitments. Appropriate contract conditions will be included to provide a remedy for failure to deliver Contractual Community
Benefits. Contractual Community Benefits can be incorporated in the following ways:

CORE - Community Benefits included as contractual obligations and evaluated as part of the tender process (e.g. Targeted Employment
and Training Initiatives). A weighting of between 5% and 20% (TO BE AGREED) of the total evaluation criteria will be attributed to
Evaluated Community Benefits.

NON - CORE
o Community Benefits proposals will be offered by the supplier but will not be assessed as part of the tender evaluation. Community
Benefits offered and accepted by the Council will however form part of a supplier’s contractual obligations to deliver. This method
will be utilised when evaluated Community Benefits are not appropriate, e.g. within multi-lot framework agreements.
e Specific mandatory requirements may be stipulated within the specification, e.g. advertising sub-contracting opportunities or
Targeted Recruitment and Training requirements (New Entrants, Work Placements etc.).

VOLUNTARY - The Council may seek to encourage Voluntary Community Benefits for a particular procurement activity. This will not form part
of the evaluation, or indeed place a contractual obligation on the supplier; however those which are offered and accepted by the Council will be
reported in the Corporate Procurement Annual Report. Delivery of Voluntary Community Benefits will be monitored through management
information provided by the supplier and as part of the Contract and Supplier Management process.


http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/valuewales/140904-community-benefit-report-en.pdf

Gg abed

GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

The Social Responsibility Board will oversee the delivery of
Socially Responsible Procurement Policy. The Cabinet
Member who acts as the Council’'s Community Benefits and
Ethical Employment Champion chairs the Board. It includes
senior managers from across the Council, with other key
stakeholders invited to attend as required. The Board meets

on a quarterly basis.

REPORTING AND MONITORING

Successful contractors and suppliers will be required to provide
regular monitoring information outlining Community Benefits
delivery progress. The Commissioning and Procurement Team
will review all monitoring information in consultation with
relevant contract managers and once validated outcomes will

be recorded in a Community Benefits Register.

The Community Benefits Board will review the Community
Benefits Register on a regular basis, providing challenge,
scrutinise contractors’ performance where necessary and

make recommendations to Senior Management Team and/or

Cabinet as required. The Board will also oversee the
development of an annual Community Benefits Report,
including case studies, so that progress is widely reported,

including to Welsh Government.

COORDINATION OF OPPORTUNITIES



This page is intentionally left blank



/8 abed

.
UCHELGAIS }%Fé
PRIFDDINAS N S

CAPITAL

CARDIEF
AMBITION CAERDYDD

Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee

Procurement Strategy 2020 — 2023

Steve Robinson - Head of Commissioning & Procurement
11 March 2020

Gweithio dros Gaerdydd, gweithio gyda’n gilydd
Working for Cardiff, working together



Background

e

8,751

£30,356,803.26, 7%

Street Waste & Civils,
142, 266,446.38, 10%

Suppliers used

f435m

nual external
«Q spend

88 abey

Corparate & CT,
 £53,078,018.66,12%

SME

Spend

58%

55%

spend in Cardiff
region

Gweithio dr

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS

" égé
CAPITAL -*'!S

CARDIFF
AMBITION CAERDYDD

Cardiff Council's

2017 - 2020

Delivering Commercial and Social Value

| -
o P Lk T —

Wepea g/

Mos Gogten o o gaetyn @ymroes ey b1

Thisdocument s aisa Graico inwesn CARLIF

Maximizing
Economic, Social,
Environmental and
Cultural Wellbeing

Driving Innovation

Key
Outcomes

Achieving Value I\/IaX|m|_z|ng
Effective
for Money and

ECfiE ey Governance and

Risk Management

WUI nia IS TV ATy, WY NI '3 LUE’C&I ler



68 abed

New strategy influenced by .......

.
UCHELGAIS }Qfé
PRIFDDINAS .....«L‘"S

CAPITAL

AMBITION R r T
* Review of current strategy — what has gone well —and not so o

Procurement Policy

well!

* Fair Work practices
One Planet Strategy

Capital Ambition, Corporate Plan and Budget priorities
* Real Living Wage
* Social & Community Value

* Foundational Economy f\crlnpllatngnlon

* Decarbonisation

e Circular Economy
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act
Statutory Procurement Strategy guidance (WG)
“thical Employment in Supply Chain

* Code of Pr

X

ice f

Well-being of
Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

The Essentiols

Gweithio dros Gaerdydd, gweithio gyda’n gilydd
Working for Cardiff, working together



What we think Cardiff want from
procurement

06 abed

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL
AMBITION

=y \alue for Money and Efficiency

e Evidence value for money through competition — price, quality, added value
e Ensure Whole Life Costing is reflected within commercial and procurement considerations
e Manage demand — ensure organisation aware of what it is spending its money on

e Ensuring the processes and systems for the acquisition, management and payment for
goods, services and works is efficient

s GOvernance and Risk Management

* Provide corporate oversight and assurance — contract management
e Ensuring Openness, Transparency, Equality, Fairness, Probity, Accountability, Compliance

* Managing risk — service failure, reputational (e.g. modern slavery), legal, health & safety,
fraud and corruption

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD

lydd
ther



What we think Cardiff want from
procurement

UCHELGAIS
PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL
AMBITION

CARDIEF
CAERDYDD

mmm—— |nnovation

e Awareness of good practice from market / other public sector organisations
e Challenging the status quo — ‘we have always done it this way’

e Supporting development of new ways of doing things

e Focus on solving problems and awarding contracts that deliver outcomes

T6 abed

sy ECONnoOmMic, Social, Environmental and Cultural Wellbeing

e Seeking added value through Community Benefits — Targeted training and
employment

e Supporting use of local suppliers where practicable — Foundational Economy

economy

e Supporting adoption of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act — challenging
decisions which could have a long-term detrimental impact

e Minimising negative impacts of procurement decisions — de-carbonization / circular

lydd
ther




26 abed

Any Questions?

UCHELGAIS - (é
N

PRIFDDINAS
CAPITAL :

M CARDIFF
SMELIION CAERDYDD

Gweithio dros Gaerdydd, gweithio gyda’n gilydd
Working for Cardiff, working together



Agenda Item 6

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11 March 2020

Scrutiny Impact Assessment

Reason for the Report

1. To present Members with an opportunity to consider the final draft report

of the Committee’s inquiry into Scrutiny Impact Assessment.

Background

2. The Policy Review and Performance (PRAP) Scrutiny Committee, as part
of its 2018/19 work programme, committed to a Task and Finish Inquiry
that would review the impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function to date,
and develop a model to capture the benefits of scrutiny activity as an

established function of the Council’s decision making process.

3. The terms of reference for the inquiry were agreed by Committee as
follows:
To evaluate the impact of the scrutiny function on the delivery of
Council services, by:
o Reviewing existing evidence of scrutiny impact on Council
decision-making and service development since 2012.
To propose a mechanism for capturing the future impact of scrutiny, by:
o ldentifying theoretical models for recording and capturing
scrutiny impact;
o Seeking evidence of successful approaches to monitoring
impact by other Councils and public bodies in England and

Wales:

Page 93



o ldentifying a practical model for recording and capturing

scrutiny impact, appropriate for use in Cardiff.

o Acknowledging that calculating impact/ value of scrutiny can
be subjective and there are differing types of impact —
immediate, short term, longer term, strategic, operational,
financial, and quality of service delivery

. Members of the Task & Finish group were:
Councillor David Walker (Chair)
Councillor Norma Mackie

Councillor Joe Boyle

. Following a change in the political balance of the Council in June 2019
Councillor Boyle was unable to retain his seat on the PRAP scrutiny
committee, however up to this point contributed to early research and

discussion.

. The key output from this review was to be a practical model for recording
and capturing scrutiny impact appropriate for use in Cardiff. The model
should also be applicable for use by other Authorities and public sector
bodies who share an interest in using a mechanism for capturing the

benefits and outputs of scrutiny.

. The nature of the topic under review required a research heavy approach,
therefore the task & finish group commissioned two primary research
projects, undertaken by the scrutiny research function, seeking evidence,
both in person and from published findings of the following organisations:
e APSE (Association for Public Service Excellence)
e CFPS (The Centre for Public Scrutiny).

e Welsh Local Government Scrutiny Officer network

Page 94



e House of Commons, Communities and Local Government
Committee - Effectiveness of local authority overview and scrutiny
committees.

e National Assembly for Wales. Assembly Commission. Face to face
interview with National Assembly for Wales Committee and
Research staff.

e The Constitution Unit. University College London.
Way Forward

8. Attached at Appendix 1 is the final draft report of the task group.
Members are particularly referred to the Recommendations (page 35)
and the Model proposed (pages 13-34).

9. Members may wish to consider the report, raise any matters for
clarification with the task group, and agree whether to approve the report
and refer it for consideration by the Cabinet.

Legal Implications

10.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.
Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to
Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf the Council must (a)
be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or
person exercising powers of behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in
accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g.
Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be

properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary

Pade 95



duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the

circumstances.

Financial Implications

11.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme.
However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under
review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended to:

1. Consider the Scrutiny Impact Assessment Model, a report of its Task

and Finish Group.

2. Agree the report, subject to any comments the Committee wishes to
make, and agree that it is forwarded for consideration by the Cabinet at

the earliest opportunity.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services
5 March 2020

Pagé 96



Craffu - Ymgysylltu heddiw, Llunio yfory -  Scrutiny - Engaging today, Shaping tomorrow

An inquiry report of the:
Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee

Scrutiny Impact Assessment Model

March 2020
..:;K‘S
CARDIFF
CAERDYDD Cardiff Council

Page 97



CONTENTS

CHAIR’S FOREWORD.... .. 3
TERMS OF REFERENCE.....uiiiiiiiiiirress s rassssssssasa s sasasassssnssssssnsasasssssnssnnnns 4
L LN I PR 5
REVIEW OF SCRUTINY IMPACT TO DATE. e iuiiiieiiiiresesrasasasnsnesnsssssnsnsasasnsnsnnnnnes 8
THE MODEL...ciiiiiiiiiieiiiierisas s s snsas s snns s snnnssasnssssnnssnns 13
PART A: Assessment of Scrutiny Output..........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiniiniiecneaas 15
PART B: Tracking of Implementation........cvoeeiiiiiiioiiciiiiie e e e e e e e eenes 25
PART C: Non-quantifiable Measures of Scrutiny Impact............................. 27
RECOMMENDATIONS. ...t 35
INQUIRY METHODOLOGY ...ttt et ettt e e e e et e e e e e 37
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS . ..ttt ettt e e et e e e e e aae e e aeeen 37
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION S . it aaaaa e 37
POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP..................c.coel. 38
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE.......cuiiiiiiii e eeae e 39
APPENDIX 1: GlOSSary Of TeIMS ....uiiiiiiii i e e e e aane e 40
APPENDIX 2: Full List of Data Sets for the Model...........c.cccooiiiiiiiii e, 44
APPENDIX 3: Primary Research — Review of Scrutiny Impact......................ccoooeinnne. 45
APPENDIX 4: Primary Research — Assessing Scrutiny Impact..................ooiinn. 92

Page 98




ot Oatoes

Councillor David Walker

Chair, Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee

Page 99



TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. The Policy Review and Performance (PRAP) Scrutiny Committee, as part of its

2018/19 work programme, committed to a Task and Finish Inquiry that would

review the impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function to date, and develop a

model to capture the benefits of scrutiny in the future. The Terms of Reference

for the inquiry were agreed as follows:

o

o

To evaluate the impact of the scrutiny function on the delivery of Council
services, hy:

To propose a mechanism for capturing the future impact of scrutiny, by:

Reviewing existing evidence of scrutiny impact on Council
decision-making and service development since 2012.

Identifying theoretical models for recording and capturing
scrutiny impact;

Seeking evidence of successful approaches to monitoring
impact by other Councils and public bodies in England and
Wales;

Identifying a practical model for recording and capturing
scrutiny impact, appropriate for use in Cardiff.

Acknowledging that calculating impact/ value of scrutiny can
be subjective and there are differing types of impact —
immediate, short term, longer term, strategic, operational,
financial, and quality of service delivery

2. The key output from this investigation was to be a practical model for recording

and capturing scrutiny impact appropriate for use in Cardiff. The model should

also be applicable for use by other Authorities and public sector bodies who

share an interest in using a mechanism for capturing the benefits and outputs of

scrutiny.

3. The Committee agreed that membership of the task & finish group would

comprise:

Councillor Joe Boylet!
Councillor Norma Mackie
Councillor David Walker (Chair)

1 Following a change in the balance of the Council in June 2019 Councillor Boyle was unable to retain
his seat on the PRAP scrutiny committee, he contributed to early research and discussion.

Page 100




CONTEXT

4. Cardiff Council has a long held reputation for committed and successful scrutiny
arrangements. The function has previously been recognised for its best practice
both nationally and locally. Organisational processes and procedures are in place
that routinely factor scrutiny into the decision making process. The arrangements in
place aspire to equality between scrutiny and policy making, resulting in what can
be considered a positive scrutiny culture. Maintaining this culture requires all
parties, Scrutiny, Cabinet and senior managers to understand and commit to the

value and impact of scrutiny within the organisation.

5. Over the past five years Scrutiny has been the subject of two national Wales Audit
Office (WAO) reviews. In July 2018 the Overview and Scrutiny — Fit For the Future?
Review concluded that “scrutiny arrangements in Cardiff are well-developed and
supported by a culture that makes them well-placed to respond to current and
future challenges....” The auditor found evidence that the Council recognises and
values the importance of its scrutiny function; scrutiny committee meetings are well-
run; the Council proactively engages key stakeholders in the work of its task and
finish groups whilst recognising it could improve public involvement in its scrutiny
activity; and the Council could explore different ways of working to improve the

impact of scrutiny activity and maximise the resources available.

6. Prior to the 2018 review, in 2014 the WAO Good Scrutiny? Good Question! Scrutiny
improvement study recommended that all councils ensure that the impact of
scrutiny is properly evaluated and acted upon to improve the function’s

effectiveness; including following up on proposed actions and examining outcomes.

7. In November 2019 the Welsh Government published its Local Government and
Elections (Wales) Bill. The Bill has implications for the performance and
governance of all Councils, requiring an increased focus on self-assessment and
peer review. It also recommends that scrutiny committees receive prior notice of

‘key decisions’ with a significant financial implication or effect on local communities.

Page 101



8. Given the current context, the WAO recommendation that all councils ensure that
the impact of scrutiny is properly evaluated and acted upon to improve the
function’s effectiveness (including following up on proposed actions and examining
outcomes), and the forthcoming Local Government & Elections (Wales) Bill (in
which Welsh Government propose an increased focus on self-assessment and peer
review), it is timely that the Committee has prioritised the development of a

mechanism and model to evaluate the benefit of a commitment to scrutiny.

9. The key practical output of this inquiry has therefore been the development of a
model to record and capture the impact of scrutiny in Cardiff Council. It aims to
provide a framework on which scrutiny can demonstrate its value in line with the

growing self-assessment agenda.

10.The self-assessment process outlined in the model extends beyond the scrutiny
function and will also enable service areas to self-assess the extent to which they
have implemented accepted scrutiny recommendations and evaluated the

outcomes.

11.This report will focus on a proposed model, developed following primary research,
to evaluate scrutiny’s impact and the outcomes resulting from the implementation of
its recommendations. That process of evaluation should, in itself, facilitate a
process of self-assessment by service areas involved and by the scrutiny function.
A full summary of the evaluation of scrutiny impact to date within Cardiff Council

can be found at Appendix 3.

12. Members subsequently commissioned the scrutiny research function to review the
methodologies used by Local Government Scrutiny Committees; National
Assembly for Wales Committee and Research Services, UK, Parliamentary Select
Committees and related organisations. The aim was to identify approaches relevant
to assessing the impact of scrutiny in a local government context. The findings
reflected in the model presented in this report have referenced and adapted some
of the successful methodologies used in scrutiny impact assessment by the various

sources listed above

Page 102



13.The proposed model, developed following this research, enables the measurement
and analysis of the quantity and types of scrutiny activity within Local Authorities.
Importantly, it sets out to assess and measure the impact and outcomes achieved
in the planning and delivery of Council services.

Page 103



REVIEW OF SCRUTINY IMPACT TO DATE

14.

15.

16.

There are currently five Scrutiny Committees in Cardiff Council, each with clearly

defined Terms of Reference. They are:

e Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee (CASSC)
e Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee (CYP)

e Economy and Culture Scrutiny Committee (E&C)

e Environmental Scrutiny Committee (ENV)

e Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee (PRAP)

The Chair of the PRAP task group commissioned primary research to inform the
inquiry of the impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function during the previous and
current political terms. The research methodology took three reports for each of
Cardiff’s five scrutiny committees, their corresponding Cabinet responses, and
progress report updates from the service areas involved and analysed different
types of impact achieved following each report where evidence of impact existed.
The scrutiny topics and inquiries selected for the review are those considered to
have made a significant impact on service provision in Cardiff Council. The full

report can be referenced at Appendix 3.

It is widely recognised that determining the impact of scrutiny is not a simple
process. Scrutiny delivers both quantitative and qualitative outputs and results as
well as direct and indirect impacts. A key challenge in determining scrutiny impact
is the causality between scrutiny activity and the range of outcomes that stem
from the scrutiny activity. For the purposes of the research, we evidenced and
analysed findings on the impact of Cardiff’'s scrutiny function using the three key
outcomes identified and endorsed by the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CFPS) and

the Wales Audit Office (WAO) as indicators of effective scrutiny. These are:

e Driving improvement by raising awareness, highlighting key local issues, and

improvements in policies and processes — Better Outcomes

Page 104




Holding to account by identifying poor service performance and policies and
decisions — Better decisions
Contributing to and facilitating democratic debate and in ensuring

engagement with the public and key stakeholders. — Better engagement

17.The initial review of scrutiny impact used this CfPS framework for effective

scrutiny to analyse the impact to date. A number of headlines emerged to capture

the ways in which scrutiny can make an impact, as summarised below. Examples

of scrutiny outputs that illustrate each headline can be seen at Appendix 3. The

key types of scrutiny impact in Cardiff to date are:

A Spotlight on important issues - the review of selected evidence found
that scrutiny has made significant impact in driving improvement in Cardiff
Council by placing a “spotlight” on important local issues. The Cabinet has
considered issues highlighted by scrutiny, both in reviewing existing

policies and in developing new policies and strategies.

Highlighting key stakeholder issues - Scrutiny activities have brought
forward key stakeholder issues, such as the support needs of adult carers

and public perceptions of the Council’s effectiveness in litter enforcement.

Highlighting the need to develop new strategies and areas for
improvement in existing service performance to address current
demand for service - in driving improvement within the Council, the
evidence reviewed demonstrated that scrutiny activities have made
significant impact in identifying key improvement areas in service

provision.

Identifying areas of improvement for service area staffing and
leadership, such as highlighting the need for appropriate management

arrangements to co-ordinate improvements to the Central Market.

Highlighting workforce areas for improvement - scrutiny inquiries have
highlighted workforce improvement areas, identifying subject areas where
knowledge and skills sets of, for example, social care staff, key external

partners and vulnerable groups could be improved.

Page 105



vi.  Highlighting best practice in service provision - where scrutiny makes
a significant contribution in highlighting internal or external best practice in
service provision or in generating Member and Officer awareness of

innovative arrangements and practices.

vii.  Holding to account decision making - scrutiny’s role in holding to
account decision making within the authority is evidenced by its
effectiveness and impact in terms of performance review and monitoring,

such as the scrutiny of the budget and the use of scrutiny call in.

viii.  Creating opportunities for stakeholders, partners, voluntary
organisations and members of the general public to be involved in a
democratic debate on the effectiveness of current service provision and
in shaping future policies and strategies on service delivery. Scrutiny
Committee Meetings, Task and Finish inquiries and their research
activities provide opportunities for external groups to have their views and
concerns heard and considered in making recommendations on a range
of issues relating to service provision. Through the conduct of research
using qualitative and quantitative methodologies and document reviews,
the views of the general public and selected stakeholders are brought to
scrutiny for consideration as evidence to inform and challenge

recommendations made to the Cabinet.

18.Overall, this review of the effectiveness of scrutiny in Cardiff illustrates that the
service has made significant contributions to date. Its key strength lies in:

e Raising Member and Officer awareness of key issues affecting
stakeholders and service provision;

e Highlighting improvement opportunities in policies and service delivery;
e Supporting the development of policy and strategy;

e Its role and contribution to the Council’s performance monitoring and self-

assessment processes;

e Highlighting innovative arrangements and best practice.

Page 106



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

In summary, performance monitoring, scrutiny of the budget proposals and
scrutiny call-ins have presented constructive challenge to service performance
and to the decision making process within the Council. Monitoring of such
challenges as sickness absence has contributed to the raising of awareness and
to some shifts in policy and performance. Additionally, the scrutiny of budget
proposals has helped in the reconsideration of proposed spending and cuts
affecting vulnerable service users which have been re-considered. Similarly, the
scrutiny call-in example cited in this initial research report demonstrates a
constructive challenge that resulted in a recommendation to strengthen the

Council’s processes around disposal of Council owned land and resources.

Finally, the scrutiny process facilitates and provides opportunities for backbench
Members, stakeholders, and key partners to be involved in democratic debate on
the effectiveness of current service provision and the future of Council services.
Through its task and finish inquiries and scrutiny of specific items, scrutiny brings
to democratic debate specialist knowledge and expertise as well as the issues
and concerns of stakeholders, service users and the general public. Scrutiny
research has enabled Scrutiny Committees to access robust independent
information and evidence including citizens’ and service users’ views and

perspectives on key issues being considered by scrutiny.

We have summarised the many successes of Cardiff's strong scrutiny function.
Greater detail on the impact to date can be found in the full report, ‘A Review of

Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny Impact’ at Appendix 3 (p44).

Notwithstanding the usefulness of the CfPS model for assessing the
effectiveness of scrutiny, this report now seeks to develop a more formalised
approach to capturing the impact of scrutiny, taking a further step forward by
focussing more closely on the types of impact that scrutiny can achieve by
applying the developing a new model. The rationale for this proposed new model
is that it attempts to construct quantitative and qualitative measures of the impact

of scrutiny on policy development and performance.

To develop this proposed model, a second research project was undertaken that
reviewed the various approaches and methodologies used by various local

government Scrutiny Committees, the National Assembly for Wales Committee

Page 107

11



and Research Services, the UK’s Parliamentary Select Committees and related
organisations to assess the impact of scrutiny activity. The key findings of this
research report, attached at Appendix 4, identifies and describes the range of
key methodologies and approaches that could be adopted establishing the
impact of scrutiny activity in local government. The model that follows has been

tailored to deliver a practical option for application in Cardiff Council.

Page 108

12



THE MODEL

24. Pages 13-34 of this report present in detail a model for gathering a quantitative and
gualitative picture of the impact of scrutiny’s work. It requires the recording of data
by both the scrutiny function and the cabinet or service area in terms of actions
taken in response to the accepted recommendations made. It aspires to validate
the effectiveness of scrutiny, provide frameworks for measuring the
substantiveness of recommendations and their delivery and to offer a way to

measure scrutinys impact.

25.1n applying this model the resulting analysis of performance will provide a
framework to address forthcoming Welsh Government legislative requirement for
greater self-assessment and develop a mechanism for evaluating the

responsiveness of Cabinet to Scrutiny.

26.Importantly, definitions of the terms and measurements used in the Model can be

found in the Glossary of Terms at Appendix 1.
27.For clarity, the purpose and potential uses of the Scrutiny Impact Model are:

e To assist self-assessment of each scrutiny committee’s performance.

e To assist service area self-assessment of the implementation of accepted
scrutiny recommendations.

e To assess scrutiny impact on Council policy and performance

e To feed into the Council’s performance monitoring framework to evaluate
the performance of the scrutiny function.

e To provide a quantitative base, and a qualitative overview, for the
publication of one scrutiny annual report to Council, to be supplemented by

five bespoke committee summaries.

Page 109

13



28.For illustrative purposes the model uses SC1-SC5 (Scrutiny Committees 1-5) in

tables used to collect data sets. The model can be adapted for use in other Local

Authorities or bodies where there are more or fewer scrutiny committees.

29.The proposed model that follows has three components:

Part A: Assessment of Scrutiny Output: this part has two clear sections:

Section 1 of Part A - involves a quantitative assessment of the types
of scrutiny activities and outputs that are achieved during the year.
Section 2 of Part A - involves the monitoring of the number of
recommendations made and the immediate outcome that is achieved
as demonstrated by the acceptance or rejection of these
recommendations. The concept of “substantiveness” will be used as a
key measure in determining the level of influence or impact that these

recommendations have on policy.

Part B: Recording and Tracking the Implementation of Recommendations.

This section of the model proposes that service areas record the extent to
which they have implemented scrutiny recommendations accepted by the
cabinet. It will require the co-operation of service areas, and an agreed
process for tracking the implementation of recommendations between

scrutiny and service areas.

Part C: Non-quantifiable Measures of Scrutiny Impact

This section attempts to broaden the concept of capturing scrutiny’s
impact, by recognising that its influence is not always quantifiable, and yet
it can make a tangible qualitative difference to the way in which the Council

delivers its services

Page 110

14



Part A — Assessment of Scrutiny Output — scrutiny self-assessment

| Al. Scrutiny Outputs - Volume and Type of Work
Al.1 Number and Types of Scrutiny Activity

This involves the collection of data on the number and types of scrutiny activity
undertaken and the tasks that are completed throughout the year. This information is
important because it will illustrate the volume of work undertaken by scrutiny
committees. Data will be collected monthly on the various activities and tasks, and will
be summarised to reflect the volume of work undertaken in each year. It will also
provide comparative data on the activities undertaken by the different scrutiny
committees in the year.

Table 1: Annual number of scrutiny meetings
Number of scrutiny meetings SC1 SC2 SC3 SC4 SC5
Formal Committee Meetings

Task and Finish Meetings

Panel Meetings

Call-ins

Informal Committee Meetings
Other

Total Number of Meetings

Table 2: Annual summary of scrutiny activity by type
Type of Scrutiny Activity SC1 SC2 SC3 SC4 SC5
Policy Development/Review

Pre-decision Scrutiny

Performance Monitoring

Briefing/update

Short Scrutiny

Task and Finish Inquiry
Call-in

Primary Research
Other

Total Scrutiny Activity
(Note: SC: Scrutiny Committee. Definitions of Types of Scrutiny Activity set out in Appendix 1, Table A)

Page 111



Al1l.2 Number and Types of Scrutiny Output
Additionally, a summary of the types of output produced by the various scrutiny
activities can be collated. This information is important as these outputs represent

each Committees’ substantive intervention in the policy process.

Table 3. Number and Types of Scrutiny Output.

Type of Scrutiny Output SC1 SC2 SC3 SC4 SC5
Committee Letter to Cabinet Member

Task & Finish Inquiry Report to Cabinet

Total

(Notes: 1.Committee Letters include decision letters issued to a Cabinet member following a call-in.
2. Task & Finish Reports include Short Scrutiny Reports.)

Al1.3 Types of Committee Engagement in Policy Process

A key role of scrutiny inquiries is to influence policy and hold the Cabinet to account.
Data can be collected on the specific ways that scrutiny activities (committees,
inquiries and panels) engage with the policy process, providing information on how
much of the work undertaken by scrutiny committees shapes the Council’'s agenda, or
reviews progress that has been made. The data will also indicate whether a
committee’s work in influencing policy is proactive or reactive, driven by the corporate
agenda or reflective of challenges and shortcomings identified independently by the

committee.

Table 4. Type of Scrutiny Engagement in Policy Process, by Committee

Type of Engagement in Policy SC1 SC2 |[SC3 |SC4 |SC5
Inquiry Title

Opening debate in new policy areas

Examining cabinet or directorate proposals e.g.
policies, projects, strategies

Responding to perceived policy failures

Responding to external policy initiatives

Follow-up from previous inquiry

(Note: Definitions of Types of Scrutiny Engagement in Policy are set out in Appendix 1, Table B)

Page 112

16



Al.4 Stakeholder Contributors to Scrutiny

A key role of scrutiny is to provide an opportunity for the public and stakeholders to
have their views and perspectives considered in the Council’s decision making
process. This can be achieved by gathering data on internal and external contributors

to scrutiny activities.

Table 5: Number of Stakeholders and Contributors to Scrutiny Activities

Quarter 1 External Internal Total Webcast | Social media
Committee | contributors | contributors | contributors | hits hits

SC1
SC2
SC3
SC4
SC5

A2. Committee Recommendations - Monitoring the Number and Types of
Recommendations

Scrutiny recommendations are regarded as the primary means by which committees
can require the cabinet to address a specific issue, consider a course of action,

disclose or provide information or provide an update to the committee on a particular
area. The current Cardiff Council Constitution requires the cabinet to provide a formal

written response to scrutiny committee recommendations as soon as is practicable.

The collection and monitoring of scrutiny committee recommendations is key to
enabling a quantifiable assessment of the influence and impact made by scrutiny
committees. The research that was undertaken endorses the use of the quantitative
approach previously applied by the UCL Constitution Unit in determining the impact of
Parliamentary Select Committees in 2011 in the collection and monitoring of the

success achieved by scrutiny committee recommendations.

Importantly, recommendations can be generated following a formal Committee meeting

by letter, following a Short Scrutiny by extended letter, following a full Task & Finish

Page 113

17



inquiry by publication of a report; or by letter following an informal Panel meeting or

Call-in.

The following Tables illustrate the data that would need to be collected to evidence the
actions, influence and impact that Scrutiny Committees are seeking to achieve from

recommendations.

A2.1 Number of Recommendations

Table 6: Number of scrutiny committee recommendations (outputs) by activity per month,
totalled to provide annual data.

Committee Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg | Mtg| Annual
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 | Total

SC1

Committee Letter
to Cabinet Member

Task & Finish Report
to Cabinet

Total

Repeat for all 5
Committees

Monthly TOTAL

(Note: Committee Letters include any decision letter issued to the Cabinet following a Call-in)

A2.2 Type and Nature of Recommendations

In monitoring recommendations, it is important that we establish the type or the nature
of recommendations made. Data on the nature of recommendations can be captured
using the concept of the “Substantiveness of Recommendations”. The UCL
Constitution Unit considers this is a key measure to enabling a meaningful
assessment and analysis of the levels and the scope of influence that
recommendations can have on the policy process. “Substantiveness” can be

determined using the following two components.

e Level of policy change - the level of alteration that a recommendation calls for.

Page 114

18



e Level of policy significance - the scope or significance of the policy that the
change will be applied to.

A2.2.1 Recommendations by Level of Policy Change called for
Collecting this data will provide a measure of the level of policy change that

scrutiny recommendations are seeking to achieve. The types of change called for

can be categorised as follows and can be allocated the corresponding numerical

values:
Policy change Value
No change 0
Small change 1
Medium change 2
Large change and/or complete reversal of the policy | 3

(Note: definitions of the level of change a recommendation may call for are set out in Appendix 1,
Table C)

The data in Table 7 below provides a summary of the number recommendations made
in relation to the types of action called for. These data sets will be indicative of the level
of influence that each Committee is seeking/has sought to achieve. Note that some
recommendations do not propose a policy change and therefore are not allocated a

numerical value.

Table 7: Number of Recommendations by the level of change called for

Activity: Small change Medium change Large change
Recommendations

R1 X

R2 X

R3 X

R4 X

R5

Total Recommendations 2 1 2

(Note: Activity can be either a committee letter or a task and finish report)

Page 115

19



This analysis should be completed for each scrutiny activity (written in a letter or report)
that generates recommendations. This can be summarised in an annual report at the

end of the municipal year.

A2.2.2 Recommendations by Level of Policy Significance

Collecting this data will provide a measure of the relative importance or
significance of the specific policy that scrutiny recommendations will impact on.
The level of policy significance that scrutiny recommendations will impact on can be

allocated a corresponding numerical value.

Policy Significance Value
Minor policy 1
Medium policy 2

Major policy change and/or complete reversal of the policy | 3

The data in Table 8 below provides a summary of the number recommendations made
in relation to the significance of the policy that it will impact on. This data set will be
indicative of the influence that recommendations are seeking to achieve in relation to

the importance or significance of the policy

Table 8: Number of recommendations by policy significance

Activity : Recommendation Minor policy Medium policy Major policy
R1 X

R2 X

R3 X

R4 X

R5 X

R6 X

Total Recommendations 0 3 4

(Note: definitions of the level of policy significance recommendations will impact upon are set out in
Appendix 1, Table D)

Page 116

20



Each activity that generates recommendations should be recorded and an annual

summary collated at the end of the municipal year.

A2.2.3. Recommendations by Substantiveness

The use of the term ‘substantiveness’ refers to the overall policy importance of scrutiny
committee recommendations. This is a combined measure of the two components,
level of policy change and level of policy significance, that determine the policy
importance of a recommendation. This measurement will enable an analysis and
measure of the overall policy importance of recommendations that have been

formulated by scrutiny committees each year.

Substantiveness = (Level of policy change called for) x (policy significance)

The substantiveness of a recommendation is calculated by multiplying the values
associated with the different categories of policy change by the values associated with
the different levels of policy significance on which the recommendation would impact.

The resulting categories of substantiveness of recommendations are as follows;

0 No change regardless of policy significance
1 Small change to a minor policy
2 Small change to a medium policy

Medium change to a minor policy

3 Small change to a major policy

Large change to a minor policy

4 Medium change to a medium policy

Medium change to a major policy
Large change to a medium policy

9 Large change to a major policy

The data in Table 9 below will enable analysis of the number of recommendations and

the policy importance of recommendations made by the each Scrutiny Committee.

Page 117

21



Table 9. Annual summary of number of substantive recommendations

Committee Number of Substantive Recommendations Total | % % %
0-2 3-6 9

0 1 2 3 4 6 9

SC1
SC2
SC3
SC4
SC5
Total

To enable this analysis, each recommendation in a Letter or Report will need to be
allocated a substantiveness rating. These ratings can then be collated for each scrutiny
committee monthly and annually, and for the whole scrutiny function by adding
together the ratings for all five committees. If required it will be possible to make a
comparative analysis of the work of different scrutiny committees for performance
measurement purposes by virtue of numbers of recommendations and their
substantiveness. A framework for the allocation of a substantiveness rating to a
recommendations will be developed by the scrutiny team and applied consistently
across all committees. This will avoid the risk of subjective assessment, establishing
clear parameters of what constitutes each level of change, and clarity on the categories

of policy significance.

A3. Tracking the Success of Recommendations— acceptance and implementation

The model has established that recommendations generated by scrutiny activity
constitute potential service area outputs. Tracking the acceptance and implementation
of scrutiny recommendations is therefore an important aspect of determining the
impact of scrutiny as it provides evidence of the degree of success that scrutiny
recommendations have achieved in influencing Council Policy and effecting change.
The work of Rush (1985) as cited in the scrutiny research undertaken, stated that
‘tracing the fate of recommendations’ is ‘no doubt one of most important measures of

the impact of the Committee’.

Page 118 22



The Cabinet formal response to scrutiny recommendations provides immediate
confirmation of scrutiny’s influence on policy and performance. However, the take-up or
acceptance of recommendations, only represents a partial or limited measure of a
committee’s influence, it does not provide definitive evidence that recommendations
are acted upon nor the outcomes that their implementation achieves or fails to achieve.
Scrutiny’s influence can be over-estimated when only acceptance of recommendations
is taken into account. When service areas fail to implement accepted
recommendations or when scrutiny makes recommendations that are less than

challenging this can lead to low levels of impact on the Council’s performance.

The acceptance of recommendations, even with its limitations, is worthy of
measurement however as it enables committees to evaluate their influence. It also
provides a direct comparison between committees on this key starting point in the

process of making impact.

The acceptance of recommendations can be tracked via a Cabinet formal response to
a Scrutiny task and finish report or a Cabinet Member response to a Committee letter.

The categories that can be used to track immediate acceptance are determined as:

° Fully Accepted

° Partially Accepted

° Rejected

(Note: definitions of the above responses are set out in Appendix 1, Table E)

Once a data set of recommendation responses has been recorded over time, a variety

of analyses can be generated, as illustrated in the following two tables.

Each set of recommendations accepted, partially accepted or rejected, can be
transformed into implementation goals and action plans by the relevant service area.
Part B of the Model therefore requires the service area to track its own implementation

of scrutiny recommendations.

Page 119

23



Table 10: Annual summary of recommendations by committee

Committee | Accepted | Partially Rejected Total Accepted/ Rejected (%)
Accepted Partially
Accepted (%)

SC1 45 10 20 75 73% 27%

SC2

SC3

SC4

SC5

Total

(Figures used for illustrative purposes only)

Establishing the substantiveness of accepted recommendations, as illustrated in the

Table below, provides a more accurate picture of the level of influence that scrutiny

recommendations have achieved.

Table 11: Annual summary of the substantiveness of accepted recommendations.

Committee | Substantiveness | Total Substantiveness| Substantiveness | Substantiveness
Activity Accepted| 1-3 (%) 4-6 (%) 9 (%)
112 |3/4

SC1 35 20 5] 65 54% 38% 8%

SC2

SC3

SC4

SC5

Total

(Figures used for illustrative purposes only)

Page 120

24



Part B — Tracking of Implementation — service area self-assessment

Tracking Implementation of Recommendations

In addition to monitoring the acceptance of scrutiny recommendations, this model
proposes recording the extent to which they have been implemented by the cabinet
through service areas. Such monitoring provides further evidence of the degree of
impact of scrutiny recommendations, and evidence of a committee’s longer-term

influence.

The process for tracking the implementation of scrutiny recommendations within the
Council will need to be agreed between scrutiny and the cabinet, and then in detail
through directors and service area management teams. Responsibility for capturing
such detail and relaying it to scrutiny could possibly sit with service area performance
leads and compliment a refreshed performance and planning framework introduced to
meet the requirements of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill. It will be
important to clarify the types of evidence required to confirm implementation of a
recommendation, and the timescales for reporting on progress made towards
implementing recommendations. Where appropriate, evidence would constitute a
summary of actions taken or intended to address the implementation of a

recommendation.

The following implementation categories are proposed:

° Fully implemented

° Partially implemented and in progress

° Not yet implemented

(Note: definitions of the above categories are set out in Appendix 1, Table F)

Once a data set of responses for recommendations implemented has been

accumulated a variety of analysis can be generated. It is suggested that the service

Page 121 25



area concerned should prepare a report within 6 months of Cabinet formally accepting
a set of recommendations resulting from an inquiry. Such a report should take each
accepted or partially accepted recommendation and provide an assessment of
progress towards its implementation. To clearly identify outputs as a result of the
implementation of scrutiny recommendations in reporting implementation status a
progress update should support the analysis. The following 2 tables illustrate how the
implementation of scrutiny recommendations can be analysed. It is therefore proposed
that the following two tables are populated by the service area receiving a scrutiny

recommendation for improvement:

Table 12: Analysis of recommendations by acceptance and implementation status.

Report Title/Letter Topic: Acceptance Status Implementation Status | Progress update
R1 Accepted Full

R2 Partially Accepted Not Implemented

R3 Accepted In progress

R4 Accepted No Evidence

Such an analysis for a set of recommendations can later be summarised on an annual
basis.

Table 13: Annual summary of implementation of accepted recommendations by committee

Committee | Number Full | Partial | No Not Total | Fully and

of Accepted Evidence | Implemented Partially
Recommendations Implemented
(%)

SC1

SC2

SC3

SC4

SC5

Total

Page 122



Part C — Non-quantifiable measures of Scrutiny Impact

The third element in measuring the impact of scrutiny acknowledges that scrutiny’s
influence is not always quantifiable, and yet its influence can make a tangible
gualitative difference to the way in which the Council delivers its services. The primary
research cites various reports that note the limitations of tracking Scrutiny committee
recommendations as the sole means for assessing Committee influence within the
local authority. Simply relying on tracking the take-up of recommendations can
exaggerate a committee’s influence, for there is a risk that Committees can tailor
recommendations to make them easier for the Cabinet to accept, thereby inflating the
acceptance rate. Additionally, it must be recognised that a positive formal response
from the Cabinet to a Committee report or Committee letter to the Cabinet will not
necessarily translate into immediate action. The success rate of Scrutiny Committee
recommendations only accounts for part of a Committee’s influence. Various aspects
of a Committee’s work, such as the conduct and process of running an inquiry and

other non-inquiry work can effect change in the organisation.

The assessment of the influence or impact of scrutiny, should therefore examine
various areas of scrutiny influence and contribution to policy work in the authority.
Research undertaken by the UCL Constitution Committee, the Institute for Government
(2015) and by CFPS and APSE (2017), has identified and highlighted several key
areas where scrutiny makes significant positive contributions and impacts on policy
within local government. It is recognised that most scrutiny activities will have
contributed to or achieved some success in at least one or a combination of these
impact areas. It is also noted that the extent to which these types of influence are
achieved varies between committees, varies over time and could be affected by factors

such as the nature of policy issues and the character/style of the Committee Chair.

This Model proposes that the beneficial impacts and contributions of scrutiny should be
monitored using such tangible qualitative impacts as:

e Evidence Contributions
e New Analysis of Issues and Evidence
e Transparency

Page 123

27



e Spotlighting

e Learning

e Process Impact

e Holding to Account

e Context and Relationships

e Indirect and Less Tangible Scrutiny Impact; and

o Staff and Member Feedback on Effectiveness of Scrutiny Support

Data for the above can be collected from various scrutiny stakeholders and participants

on whether the scrutiny they have been involved in has made an impact in these areas.

Responses must be sought from the three key parties involved in the conduct of
scrutiny: those conducting the scrutiny, those subject to scrutiny, and other interested

stakeholders.

The data to establish the contributions and impact of scrutiny in these areas could be
collected using qualitative research methods such as focus groups or interviews.
However for ease of data collection, a short annual survey can be sent out to
Members, participants and witnesses to seek their views on how well scrutiny has

achieved these various forms of influence and impact.

The following set of tables address each of the above tangible impact measurements:

Evidence Contributions - identifying new evidence that improves the Council’s

evidence base for decision-making, including related issues, risks or opportunities.

Table 14: Evidence contribution to democratic debate

Evidence contribution to democratic debate YES NO

Raised Member or Officer awareness and contributed new, original or
independent information or evidence for consideration in policy
development or operational review

Presented new or original research on policy in question

Brought forward new evidence from stakeholders and service users
who have not previously been in contact with the Council

Highlighted best practice arrangements from other bodies

Raised Officer and Member understanding of a key policy or operationa
issue or problem

Raised Member and Officer awareness of a key governmental

Page 124

28



Evidence contribution to democratic debate YES NO

consultation in a policy area
Prompted the Council and its key partners, to gather different or more
up to date evidence to inform policy and practice.
Other
(Note: whilst 7 key areas are outlined in this table, categories can be edited and defined as required
by Members and key officers in the Council.)

New Analysis of Issues and Evidence - providing a new or different analysis of the
available evidence (including political opinion) which influences the Council’s view

about what it is doing.

Table 15: New analysis of issues and evidence

New analysis of issues and evidence YES NO

Provided new analysis of evidence, previously unrecognised trends in
evidence informing policy development
Highlighted a weight of opinion on the evidence which the Council was

unaware
Changed the understanding and perspective of key decision makers
(Cabinet Members and Service area Managers) on an issue

Other

Transparency - facilitating government openness by obliging Council Officers,

Managers and Cabinet Members to explain and justify what they have done.

Table 16: Transparency

Transparency YES NO
Improved the quality of information that the Council has made publicall

available
Increased the quantity and breadth of information provided by the

Council

Facilitated transparency or disclosure of service plans, information and
decision making to the public.
Other

Page 125



Spotlighting - scrutiny’s role in drawing attention to policy issues that may not be
receiving adequate attention. These could be relatively smaller areas of government
policy, rather than large flagship policies (or they may relate to overlooked details of
more central policy topics). When committees focus on these issues this can have the
result of changing policy priorities within the department. It has been noted in previous
research that committees can have the effect of putting the ‘spotlight on certain things

and raising them up the departmental and/or corporate agenda’.

Table 17: Spotlighting to drive improvement

Spotlighting to drive improvement YES NO
Made the Council, other stakeholders and the public aware of a previousl|
unrecognised issue

Enabled stakeholders to change or broaden views or evaluation of an

issue

Identifying improvements needed in existing policies and strategies
Highlighted service user and stakeholder needs that are relevant to policy
and service improvements

Other

Learning - the impact of scrutiny in identifying lessons and learning from previous
mistakes or successes by reviewing the development and implementation of policy,

operational processes, resources and expenditure.

Table 18: Learning
Learning YES NO

Enabled the Council and its service areas to review or question its own

actions or policies

Identified lessons or learning areas that can improve policies and how the
can be implemented

Create a positive environment in which lessons can be learned
Other

Page 126

30



Process Impact - scrutiny prompting higher standards or better processes in

government through the act of conducting effective scrutiny.

Table 19: Process impact

Process impact YES NO
Identifying and facilitating improvements in the Council or service area’s
operational processes, performance or policy implementation.
Identifying improvements in staffing resources or workforce development
Identifying improvements in guidance materials for service users and
frontline staff and practitioners
Assisted the Council in identifying and managing risks.
Made officers and cabinet prioritise and review their effectiveness
Other
Holding to Account
Table 20: Holding to account
Holding to account YES NO
Challenged service performance and performance targets
Provided opportunity for Cabinet and Council managers to report on
progress made on policy development and operational review
Enabled the representation of stakeholders, public and other
external bodies and their views to support the challenge of policy and
operational processes and have their views considered by the Council and
its services
Challenged decision making or decisions made for reconsideration
Exposed wrong doing or poor policies or operational practice
Other
Context and Relationships
Table 21: Context & Relationships
Context & Relationships YES NO

Helped build relationships or coalitions to support or challenge an issue —
brokering role between Council and stakeholder groups

Helped to improve stakeholders views, relationship and trust in the Council

Other

Page 127

31



Other Indirect and Less Tangible Scrutiny Impact

Other less tangible and less measurable impacts of scrutiny include:

Brokering between stakeholders — this is about Scrutiny’s role in mediating

between competing interests, and/or reviewing differing points of view to identify
mutually acceptable solutions. Committees can bring together in discussion different
perspectives into the public arena. This is not limited to its “brokering role” between
backbench members and the Cabinet and Senior Managers but also involve brokering
between the Council and external stakeholders and key partners. For example, this
can involve putting forward to the Council a pressing case for policy change in behalf of
external stakeholder groups. This can also work in the way that the evidence presented
by the Committee can legitimise the Council’s position or delegitimise the claims of

critics.

Indirect/Less Tangible Impact — Generating Fear is ?perhaps the least tangible
impact of scrutiny but often regarded as the most important form of Committee
influence associated with its role in holding to account and exposing poor decision
making, wrong doing or questionable policy in the public arena. This impact area
specifically relates to how the Cabinet, and its Officers (partners or outside bodies)
react and adjust their behaviours in anticipation of how the Committee might respond
or react should a certain course of action be taken. This is regarded as a mainly
negative form of influence in “discouraging” the local authority (and to a certain extent,
outside bodies) from behaving in certain ways, for fear of how the relevant
committee(s) may react in the future”. For example, it has been cited that the
anticipation of “appearing before the Committee” has a much bigger influence with
many officers wanting to avoid criticism from the Committee. The knowledge that
action or decision taken by the Cabinet and Officers could lead to appearing and

defending this before the Committee leads to some degree of “risk management”.

2 Selective Influence: The Policy Impact of House of Commons Select Committees. UCL Constitution Unit,
June 2011, Meg Russell & Meghan Benton.

Select Committees under Scrutiny: The impact of parliamentary committee inquiries on government. Institute
for Government 2015, Dr Hannah White.

Page 128



However, on some occasions this effect can also “encourage to adopt a policy, when
they know that it is likely to receive a backing” from Committee Members.

Scrutiny’s “preventative influence” as a result of its capacity to “generate fear” would be
more difficult to assess and evidence. It is therefore suggested that the use of more in-
depth qualitative methods such as key informant interviews and case studies would be
useful tools in illustrating how “generating fear” and “brokering between stakeholders”

affect policy work and decision-making.

Staff and Member Feedback on Effectiveness of Scrutiny Support

The effectiveness and influence of the scrutiny process is also affected by the level of
support that is available to deliver scrutiny and its processes. It is therefore important
that feedback is sought on the effectiveness of the support provided by the Scrutiny
team to deliver the Scrutiny service. This data will provide further evidence in
determining the effectiveness and influence of scrutiny. Such measures are currently
used by the Research and Committee Services of the National Assembly for Wales to

monitor the effectiveness of its services.

Table 22: Effectiveness of scrutiny support
Area of Support 1 2 3 4 5
Poor Excellent

Committee Support

Overall support for Scrutiny Committees

Support for Committee meetings

Support for Task and Finish meetings

Research and independent evidence collection
support for Committee work

Support in developing Member skills in the
conduct of scrutiny

Engagement with the Public and Stakeholders

Effectiveness in Engaging with Cardiff Council
service users and members of the public to be
involved in scrutiny

Effectiveness in engaging with external partners
and voluntary organisations

Effectiveness in promoting the work of scrutiny

Page 129

33



on media and social media platforms.
Championing scrutiny function and service with
stakeholders and partners

Feedback on the effectiveness of support can be evaluated on an annual basis by
internal and external scrutiny stakeholders, for example scrutiny chairs and members,
senior management, Cabinet members, external evidence providers. Such data can be
used by the Head of Democratic Services to set performance targets that meet officer

and member needs in the delivery of scrutiny services.

Page 130

34



Recommendations

The task group recommends:

1.

3.

That Cabinet adopts this Model for capturing the impact of scrutiny

acknowledging that it represents early compliance with the self-assessment
requirements set out in the forthcoming Local Government Election (Wales)
Bill. This self-assessment has implications for each Scrutiny Committee, the
Scrutiny Function, and for the Service Areas / Directorates accepting scrutiny

recommendations that require implementation.

. That the Scrutiny Function pilots the Model developed by the committee to

provide a framework and database on which a quantitative assessment of its
impact on Council services can be captured and reported to Full Council
annually. In addition to the quantitative assessment a hon-quantifiable
assessment of scrutiny should add value to the overall evaluation of impact,

embracing the achievements of all five scrutiny committees.

An extension of the governance arrangements currently in place for

responding to the recommendations of a scrutiny inquiry, to recommendations
generated by the committee in correspondence following scrutiny of a matter
at a formal committee. Cabinet is currently required to respond to scrutiny
inquiry recommendations as soon as is practicable. Where a scrutiny
committee is making a recommendation to a Cabinet Member, that
recommendation will be stated clearly at the end of the letter. The Cabinet
Member is requested to respond to the letter as a whole, and clearly indicate
their response to any recommendations included as being accepted, partially

accepted or rejected.

That the Cabinet Office and Service Areas make arrangements to track and

report on the implementation of accepted scrutiny recommendations. A

progress report on recommendations made via report or letter would be

Page 131

35



7.

expected to be available for presentation to the scrutiny committee within 6

months of the report being approved by Cabinet.

That Directors are accountable for reporting progress on the implementation

of accepted scrutiny recommendations.

That service area tracking of the implementation of accepted scrutiny

recommendations needs to integrate with the Council’s planning and

performance framework. This will enable recommendations to be monitored

and their successful implementation evidenced.

That Cabinet endorse and support the development and branding of this

model as the Cardiff Scrutiny Impact Model for potential sharing as best
practice with other public bodies, and other local authorities through a variety
of scrutiny networks. This would be offered when the model has been fully

piloted and evaluated.

Page 132

36



INQUIRY METHODOLOGY

30.This report is delivered following a research-intensive inquiry. The task group
commissioned two pieces of primary research to meet the requirements of the
Terms of Reference. Both research commissions were delivered by the Scrutiny
Research function. The final report agreed for submission to the full committee,
and subsequently to cabinet, has been drafted taking account of both extensive
research exercises, whilst acknowledging the practicalities of delivering a model
that has resourcing implications against a challenging financial backdrop. A full
list of reference materials is included within the published research reports.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

31.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Executive/Council will set out any legal implications
arising from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf the
Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any
procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or
person exercising powers of behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in
accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.qg.
Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly
motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its

taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

32.There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However,
financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are

implemented with or without any modifications.

Page 133

37



POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Councillor David Walker

Chair

Councillor Ashley Lister

-

Councilr ora Makie Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Rod McKerIich

Page 134

38


http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=1197&Language=
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=116

TERMS OF REFERENCE

To scrutinise, monitor and review the overall operation of the Cardiff
Programme for Improvement and the effectiveness of the general

implementation of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, including:

To scrutinise, monitor and review the effectiveness of the Council’s
systems of financial control and administration and use of human

resources.

To assess the impact of partnerships with and resources and

services provided by external organisations including the Welsh
Government, joint local government services, Welsh Government
Sponsored Public Bodies and quasi-departmental non-governmental bodies
on the effectiveness of Council service

delivery.
To report to an appropriate Cabinet or Council meeting on its

findings and to make recommendations on measures which may

enhance Council performance and service delivery in this area.

Page 135




Glossary of Terms Appendix 1

A: Types of Scrutiny activity in policy process

Type of Scrutiny Activity | Definition

Where the Committee has contributed to the
Policy Development Council’s policy development processes by
considering draft policy documents.

Pre-decision Scrutiny Where the Committee has evaluated and
commented on policy proposals before they are
considered by the Cabinet, providing the
Cabinet with an understanding of Scrutiny
Member’s views prior to making their decision.

Performance Monitoring Where the Committee has undertaken
monitoring of the Council’'s performance and
progress in implementing previously agreed
actions.

Briefings Where timescales have not allowed for pre-
decision or policy development scrutiny, and to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
developments, proposals or progress

Short Scrutiny Where a Committee chooses to undertake a
short scrutiny as opposed to a task & finish
inquiry. A short scrutiny takes place over a
period of two or three consecutive Committee
meetings in a public setting.

Task & Finish Inquiry Where the Committee considers there is an
opportunity to examine in detail the issues and
wider options available, to assist the Council in
improving the way a service is delivered:

Call-in Where a Committee considers a matter called in
for scrutiny by a non-executive Member in
respect of an Executive Decision

Page 136




B: Types of Scrutiny engagement in policy process

Types of Scrutiny Engagement

Definition

Opening Debate

Where the committee proactively sought to
explore new policy directions, fact-find or open
debate. The issue did not need to be an obscure
or neglected one but could be something that
had become fashionable, and perhaps been
promoted by interest groups, but on which the
government had not yet reacted substantively
shape the agenda by bringing this under-
examined area to the attention of a new
administration.

Examining proposals

Inquiries responding to government
announcements of projects, plans, programmes
or funding packages, including publication of
initiatives and strategies, white papers, green
papers and occasionally legislation

Responding to perceived failures

Inquiries reacting to perceived failures of
government action or inaction/negligence.
Although other types of inquiry might have
identified failure during their investigations, this
category was only used for inquiries which were
explicitly motivated by a crisis or political storm

Responding to policy initiatives
by others

Inquiries which responded to reviews,
consultations or initiatives by other bodies, for
example Climate Change and the Stern Review:
The Implications for Treasury Policy

Responding to external events

Where the committee was responding to an
external event that was outside the government’s
control, Brexit, Grenfell

Picking up previous inquiries.

Where the purpose of the report was solely to
follow up a previous inquiry

Page 137




C: Level of Change a Recommendation Calls for:

Level of Change

Value

Definition

Small change

0

These are recommendations which support or

endorse existing Council policy, or recommends at most
tweaking or small modifications. Recommendations for
disclosure are placed in this category, particularly when
this asks the Council to set out its policy on something
in its response. This code is allocated to
recommendations calling on the Council to merely
‘consider’ something, as well as those calling for a
continuation of the status quo.

Medium Change

These are recommendations that go further, but fall
short of a reversal of a Council policy. These
recommendations call for new action that is significantly
different in terms of policy direction, priority or resources,
or call for exploration in areas where policy did not
currently exist. Disclosure recommendations can be
placed in this category if they called for a change to the
department’s information policy or for the release of
information usually kept out of the public domain.

Large Change or
complete reversal of

policy

These are recommendations which significantly deviates
from current policy or explicitly calls for a reversal of
current policy, such as the shutting down

of programmes, dropping of targets, ending of

funding, or adopting new action or a new policy in clear
conflict with existing policy direction

D: Level of Policy Significance a Recommendation will Impact upon.

Three different categories of policy significance are suggested as follows:

Policy Significance

Value

Definition

Minor policy area

1

This refers to recommendations to policies that are

not referenced in the corporate plan or partnership plan
or manifestos of the current ruling political group. These
recommendations would impact on policy

areas that are not mentioned or would fall within a
broad/vague policy area.

Medium-level
policy area

This is applied to recommendations which are associated
with a policy area in the corporate plan

or the WAG policy area. These policy areas will not

fall under those that are considered as major policy areas.

Major policy area

This are recommendations on policies that are explicitly
mentioned in the corporate plan, PSB plan and other key
policy documents of the Council or WAG

Page 138




E: Acceptance Categories for recommendations

Categories

Definition

Fully Accepted

Responses where the Cabinet expresses agreement with the
committee’s recommendation, is explicitly committed to taking the
action requested, and made no suggestion that they would have
done so in any case. Also includes ‘disclosure’ recommendations
where the committee requested information, which was provided in
the response.

Partially Accepted

Responses which expressed agreement with the general thrust of
the recommendation but not to the level of detail required by the
committee, or accepted the recommendation in part but ignored

(but did not reject) another part. This code is used in cases where
the cabinet claims that what the committee wanted was already in
progress, but where there was evidence that the action had been
started only after the committee’s inquiry began. The assumption in
these cases is that the Cabinet had anticipated the content of certain
recommendations from the inquiry, and acted prior to publication

of the report.

Rejected

This is used for responses where the Cabinet explicitly

describes itself as ‘rejecting’ or ‘disagreeing’. It is restricted to cases
where the cabinet says nothing positive or lukewarm at all, and has
not suggested it was doing something similar

already or that its position might change in the future

F: Implementation Categories for recommendations

Implementation Status Definition

Fully implemented

This is used in cases where there is clear evidence of
implementation. Evidence of implementation can be
provided by the Cabinet either as part of a formal response
to an inquiry, or by a periodical update to the Committee
e.g. where a recommendation calls for disclosure of
information, amended policy, amended guidance, action
planning, commissioned research.

Partially implemented

(in progress)

This would apply to recommendations where evidence is
provided that the Cabinet has implemented the
recommendation but not to the degree of specificity
required by the committee. This could also apply to
evidence of some limited attempts to implementation or
where the Cabinet has confirmed that steps are being
taken to implement but no further evidence is available to
confirm this.

Not yet implemented

Where there is simply no evidence that suggests the
Cabinet has taken on board or actioned a recommendation.

Page 139




Data Sets Appendix 2

Part A — Assessment of Scrutiny Outputs

Table

1 Annual number of scrutiny meetings

2 Annual summary of scrutiny activity by type

3 Number and types of scrutiny output

4 Types of scrutiny engagement in policy process, by committee

5 Number of stakeholders and contributors to scrutiny activities

6 Number of scrutiny committee recommendations by activity per month
and annually.

7 Analysis of recommendations by the level of change called for

8 Analysis of recommendations by policy significance

9 Annual summary of number of substantive recommendations

10 Annual summary of recommendations by committee

11 Annual summary of the substantiveness of accepted recommendations

Part B — Tracking Implementation

12 Analysis of recommendations by acceptance and implementation status

13 Annual summary of implementation of accepted recommendations by
committee

Part C — Qualitative Measures of Scrutiny Impact

14 Number of stakeholders and contributors represented in Scrutiny
activities

15 Evidence contribution to democratic debate

16 New analysis of issues and evidence

17 Transparency

18 Spotlighting to drive improvement

19 Learning

20 Process impact

21 Holding to account

22 Context & relationships

23 Effectiveness of scrutiny support

Page 140



PRIMARY RESEARCH Appendix 3

scrutiny

Scrutiny Research

A Review of Cardiff Council’s
Scrutiny Impact

Research report for the
Policy Review and Performance Committee

December 2018
W ‘é
D\

CARDIFF | |
CAERDYDD The City and County of Cardiff

Page 141



Table of Contents

1. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY IMPACT: HEADLINE SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 47
2. INTRODUCTION 57
3. DRIVING IMPROVEMENTS IN SERVICE PROVISION 58
3.1. Accepted Scrutiny recommendations 58
3.2. Raising political and service area awareness of issues for consideration in the development
of policy. 62
3.2.1. Improving political understanding of a key issue 62
3.2.2. Raising Member and service area awareness of Welsh Government Consultation 64
3.2.3. Raising political and service area awareness of stakeholder issues 64
3.2.4. Raising political awareness to support service improvement of partner agencies 66
3.3. Identifying improvement areas in service provision 66
3.3.1. Identifying opportunities for improvement in existing policies and strategies 67
3.3.2. Improving service processes and performance 71
3.3.3. Improving staffing resources 75
3.3.4. Appointing a leadership role 77
3.3.5. Improving corporate responsibility and accountability 77
3.3.6. Identifying workforce improvements 78
3.3.7. Improving availability of guidance materials for service users and professionals 79
3.4. Highlighting best practice arrangements and service innovations 80
4. HOLDING TO ACCOUNT DECISION MAKING IN LOCAL AUTHORITY 84
4.1. Challenging service performance targets 84
4.2, Scrutiny of budget proposals 84
4.3. Scrutiny Call —in 86

5. ENGAGING THE PUBLIC IN DEMOCRATIC DEBATE ABOUT CURRENT AND FUTURE

OF PUBLIC SERVICES

Page 142

87



3.1.

5.2.

External Contributors to Scrutiny in Cardiff

Research to engage with service users and the general public.

Page 143

87

90



Review of Scrutiny Impact: Analysis and Summary of Findings

The Chair of the Policy Review and Performance (PRAP) Scrutiny Committee
has commissioned this report to inform a task and finish inquiry into the
impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function during the previous and current
political terms. The scrutiny topics and inquiries selected for this review are
those considered to have made the most significant impact on service
provision in Cardiff Council. For each Scrutiny Committee three reports, their
corresponding Cabinet responses, and subsequent progress report updates
have been analysed for different types of impact. A list of the inquiries and
work reviewed can be referenced at Table 1 on pages 15-17.

It is widely recognised that determining the impact of scrutiny is not easy.
Scrutiny delivers both quantitative and qualitative outputs and results, as well
as direct and indirect impacts. A key challenge in determining scrutiny impact
is the causality between scrutiny activity and the range of outcomes that stem
from the scrutiny activity. For the purposes of this report, we have evidenced
and analysed findings on the impact of Cardiff Council’s scrutiny using the
three key outcomes identified and endorsed by the Centre for Public Scrutiny
(CFPS) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) as indicators of effective scrutiny.

These are:

e Driving improvement by raising awareness, highlighting key local issues, and
improvements in policies and processes — Better Outcomes

¢ Holding to account by identifying poor service performance and policies and
decisions — Better decisions

e Contributing to and facilitating democratic debate and in ensuring

engagement with the public and key stakeholders. — Better engagement

This summary draws out the headline impacts, as follows:

Page 144



A spotlight on important local issues

The review of selected evidence found that scrutiny has made significant
impact in driving improvement in Cardiff Council by placing a “spot light” on
important local issues. The Cabinet has considered issues highlighted by
scrutiny, both in reviewing existing policies and in developing new policies and
strategies.
e For example, the scrutiny inquiries on Child Sexual Exploitation,
(CSE), Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), the Night time Economy
(NTE) and on Sickness and Absence Management have raised

political awareness on these issues.
Highlighting key stakeholder issues

Furthermore, scrutiny activities have brought forward key stakeholder issues.
e [For example, the support needs of adult carers, the maintenance
and enforcement concerns of Central Market stall holders and
Historic Arcade businesses, the public’'s awareness of regulations
on litter, and their perceptions of the Councils effectiveness in litter

enforcement.

Highlighting the need to develop new strategies to address current

demand for service
In driving improvement within the Council, the evidence reviewed also
demonstrated that scrutiny activities have made significant impact in

identifying key improvement areas in service provision.

e For example, the Scrutiny inquiries on the Night Time Economy,
Out of County Placements, Central Market and Historic Arcades

Page 145



draw attention to the need to develop new strategies to address
current demands for service.

More specifically the NTE Crime and Disorder inquiry highlighted
the need for a political lead and the development of an action plan,
resulting in a commitment to develop a strategy in this area of work.
The Out of County Placements inquiry highlighted the need to
develop placement strategy to increase provision for placements
locally, i.e. increasing the number of foster carers; developing a
provider market, work towards opening new homes etc. resulting in
the setting up of a working group to specifically address these
issues.

The Sickness Absence inquiry highlighted improvements in
sickness absence management processes (reduction of trigger
points), occupational health access and a shift in policy towards the
adoption of preventative and well-being approach. The
recommendations made on these key areas now feature strongly in

the Attendance and Well-being policy adopted in 2014.

Identifying areas for improvement in existing service processes and

performance

The findings of this report also illustrate how scrutiny has made significant

impact on identifying improvement areas in existing service processes and

performance.

For example, in establishing the support needs of carers, the inquiry
highlighted the significance of the carers’ assessment and its
impact, and its findings raised the profile of this issue on the policy
agenda. Following this inquiry, significant progress has been made
in fully integrating the carers assessment into service provision

alongside a considerable allocation of resources (6 staff), with the

Page 146



carers assessment now featuring as one of the key commitments in

the Corporate Plan.

The work of PRAP in highlighting the need for consistent application
of sickness absence processes in schools has resulted in significant
improvements the recording and reporting of sickness absence
levels in schools, so that school governors are now able to
benchmark their own schools performance against other schools in
Cardiff.

As a result of the recommendations of the inquiry on Female
Genital Mutilation, the service has committed to amend its data
collection and recording to ensure that FGM cases are appropriately
recorded in the system and is able to differentiate those who are at

risk, and those that have been victims.

PRAP’s scrutiny of the APSE sickness absence review of 2017
highlighted poor practice as the review had not provided an
opportunity for frontline staff to be engaged in the process and raise
their views on issues and challenges in managing sickness and

absence occurrences.

Identifying areas of improvement for service area staffing and leadership

The scrutiny inquiries reviewed have also identified improvement areas in

terms of service area staffing and leadership roles.

The Economy and Culture Committee Task and Finish Inquiry on
Central Market and Historic Arcades, highlighted the need for
appropriate management arrangements to drive and coordinate
improvements in these establishments.

A key recommendation arising from Environment Committees Litter
Task and Finish Inquiry in 2012 was the provision of staff capacity to

support the work of volunteers and volunteer groups.

Page 147



With regards to the appointment of leadership roles, the CASSC NTE
inquiry recommended that a NTE champion should be appointed.
Similarly, the appointment of a permanent CSE service lead was
endorsed and recommended by CYP’s Task and Finish Inquiry on
CSE.

Highlighting workforce areas for improvement.

Furthermore, scrutiny inquiries have highlighted workforce improvement

areas. For example, in identifying subject areas where knowledge and skills

sets of social care staff, key external partners and vulnerable groups could be

improved.

The CSE Task and Finish inquiry recommended that training should be
offered to staff so that they are able to give consistent, professional,
and timely advice. It also recommended that a wider training
programme (particularly to schools) be implemented to empower
individuals and organisations to intervene at lower levels and therefore
assist in reducing the number of referrals.

Likewise, the Out of County placements inquiry re-emphasised the
need to continue with supporting the training and development needs
of social workers.

The CYP inquiry on CSE also identified key educational and guidance
materials that will support service users and practitioners on the
ground. The inquiry made a specific recommendation on the production
of a CSE guide for parents, and a resource pack with CSE

practitioner’s tool kit for professionals working with service users.

Highlighting best practice in service provision

Page 148



Another key area where scrutiny makes a significant contribution is in
highlighting best practice in service provision, or in generating Member and
officer awareness of innovative arrangements and practices that the local

authority can adopt or benefit from.

e The Environment Committee’s Task and Finish inquiry on nuisance
parking recommended the introduction of innovative technology using
the “cam car system” to improve the local authority’s parking
enforcement capabilities. The adoption of this recommendation has so
far generated no less than £367K additional net revenue for the local
authority over the three-year period.

e The Litter inquiry recommendation to replicate the arrangements
between Swansea Council and Swansea BID has resulted in Cardiff
Council securing a For Cardiff Bid investment for additional street
cleansing resources.

e PRAP Committees key findings and recommendations on the adoption
of a preventative and well-being approach and initiatives during its
Sickness Absence inquiry, now features strongly in the new
Attendance and Well-being policy adopted in 2014. To date significant
progress has been made on the implementation of these initiatives in
the workplace. The research work for PRAP on the feasibility of
performance benchmarking had raised Member and officer awareness
on this subject, its limitations and rectified some misconceptions about
this area of work.

Holding to account decision making
In terms of scrutiny’s role in holding to account decision making within the
authority, the review illustrates a number of examples of scrutiny’s

effectiveness and impact in terms of performance review and monitoring,

scrutiny of the budget and scrutiny call in.

Page 149



The Sickness Absence Inquiry and the regular and periodical
monitoring of sickness absence levels has enabled PRAP to effectively
challenge performance targets on sickness absence levels. Following
the initial inquiry PRAP, recommended a more challenging sickness
absence target that the local authority should aim for i.e. 9.7 FTE
sickness absence days instead of the initial 10.73 FTE target set by the
service area.

Examples used in the report identify where scrutiny of budget
proposals has facilitated opportunities for the public, stakeholders and
voluntary organisations to make representation on the detrimental
impact of potential cuts in funding or service to marginalised
communities and vulnerable service users to enable Committee
Members to challenge proposals. Scrutiny has enabled the Cabinet
and service area to be made aware of the range and strength of
stakeholder views against the proposed cuts, so that these this can be
considered in the final budgetary decisions.

The CASSC scrutiny of proposed cuts affecting older people’s day
provision and the Taxi Marshall Service, resulted in Cabinets
reconsideration of these proposals and the continuation of these
provisions until alternative funding and arrangements were put in place.
The Economy and Culture Committee’s scrutiny of the Community Arts
Funding achieved similar outcomes for various stakeholders and
service users.

The call-in of the Wedal Road sale illustrates the impact of Members
challenge on the Council’s decision making process and demonstrates
the use of independent research evidence in deciding the sale of the
Wedal Road HWRC.

Page 150



Creating opportunities for stakeholders, partners, voluntary
organisations and members of the general public to be involved in a

democratic debate

A key area where scrutiny makes a significant impact is in creating
opportunities for stakeholders, partners, voluntary organisations and members
of the general public to be involved in a democratic debate on the
effectiveness of current service provision, and in shaping future policies and
strategies on service delivery. Scrutiny Committee Meetings, task and finish
inquiries and research activities provide opportunities for these various groups
to have their views and concerns heard and considered in making
recommendations on a range of issues relating to service provision. Scrutiny
Committees also regularly receive representation and updates from Cabinet
Members, officers and service managers as part of specific scrutiny items and
periodical performance monitoring. To monitor scrutiny’s external
engagement, the service records the number of external contributors to

scrutiny as part of its KPIs.

Through the conduct of research using qualitative and quantitative
methodologies and document reviews, the views of the general public, and
selected stakeholders are brought to scrutiny for consideration as evidence to

inform the challenge of and recommendations made to the Cabinet.

¢ Research was undertaken for the CASSC Carers inquiry to bring
forward stakeholder views on their needs for service provision.
Similarly, surveys undertaken for the Litter and Central Market and
Historic Arcades inquiries have brought to light stakeholder views on

the effectiveness of service provision in these areas.
Summary

Overall, this review of the impact of scrutiny within Cardiff Council, illustrates

the key strengths of Cardiff’'s Scrutiny function in:

Page 151



e raising Member and officers awareness of key issues affecting
stakeholders and service provision;

¢ highlighting improvement areas with regard to policy, strategy and
operational work; and

¢ highlighting innovative arrangements and best practice.

Scrutiny in Cardiff has made significant contributions in supporting the
development of policy and strategy in various service areas of the Council.
The work that scrutiny has undertaken in identifying improvement areas, also
re-affirms scrutiny’s role and contribution to the Council’s performance
monitoring and self-assessment processes and the added value that it brings

to the local authority

As illustrated in the report, scrutiny’s performance monitoring, scrutiny of the
budget proposals and scrutiny call-in — has presented constructive challenge
to service performance and the decision making process within the Council.
Scrutiny’s performance monitoring on the sickness absence issue contributed
to a significant shift in policy and continued challenge towards achievement of
performance. Additionally, the scrutiny of the budget proposals has helped in
the reconsideration of proposed cuts that would have had significant impact
on vulnerable service users and impacted on the sustainability of socio-
cultural services to marginalised communities. Similarly, the scrutiny call-in
example cited in this report demonstrates a constructive challenge that has
resulted in a recommendation to strengthen the Council’s processes around

the disposal of Council owned resources.

Finally, the scrutiny process facilitates and provides opportunities for
backbench Members, stakeholders, and key partners to be involved in
democratic debate on effectiveness of current service provision and the future
of Council services. Through its task and finish inquiries and scrutiny of
specific items, scrutiny brings to democratic debate specialist knowledge and
expertise as well as the issues and concerns of stakeholders, service users

and the general public. Scrutiny research has enabled Scrutiny Committees

Page 152



to access robust independent information and evidence sets including
citizens’ and service users’ views and perspectives on various issues

considered by scrutiny.

This summary and analysis of scrutiny’s impact within Cardiff Council has
been limited to the three broad themes identified above. The work undertaken
by APSE (2017), Institute of Government (2015) and the Parliamentary review
on Local Government Scrutiny (2017), have identified other outcomes
achieved as a result of parliamentary scrutiny and local government scrutiny.
The scope of this report, does not cover the impact that Cardiff scrutiny has
achieved in terms of bringing in specialist expert evidence, in brokering and
mediating between competing interests and stakeholders and its impact in
catalysing change due to scrutiny. Further work would need to be undertaken

to establish the impact that scrutiny has made in these areas.

In years to come, the continuing challenge for Cardiff's Scrutiny function is in
transforming the views and understanding within the Council and its key
partners, of the value of its role and its contributions to improving outcomes
within local government, as well as in providing a key platform for bringing in a
broad range of diverse voices in constructive debate and in decision making

processes.

Work needs to continue to ensure that the scrutiny challenge is valued within
the Council so that scrutiny improves its status within current corporate
governance. Further research would need to be undertaken to explore how
scrutiny can sustain its impact and maintain the relevance of its role and

function within Cardiff Council and the various factors that affect these.

Page 153



Introduction

The Policy Review and Performance (PRAP) Scrutiny Committee is
undertaking a task and finish inquiry as a part of its 2018/19 work programme,
reviewing the impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function during the current

and previous political administrations.

The Chair of PRAP has commissioned this research report to establish the
various types of impact achieved by Cardiff’s five Scrutiny Committees. The
findings highlighted in this report will inform the Task and Finish Inquiry’s
recommendations for improvement in capturing the effectiveness and impact
of the service within the Council’s existing corporate governance

arrangements.

To arrive at the findings presented in this report, a review of selected
Committee Reports and Cabinet responses was undertaken. Principal
Scrutiny Officers supporting the Committees each identified three Committee
outputs, considered to have achieved significant impact in recent years. In
total, 15 Committee reports, their corresponding Cabinet responses, and
subsequent progress report updates to the specific inquiries or scrutiny items

have been reviewed.

The themes that have been used in the structure of this report have
referenced the key measures for impact as identified in the Centre for Public
Scrutiny (CFPS) and the Wales Audit Office’s (WAO) endorsed indicators of
effective scrutiny. These include: driving improvement in public services;

holding to account decision making; public engagement.

Page 154



Driving improvements in service provision

Accepted Scrutiny recommendations

The following Tablel provides a summary of the total number of
recommendations made by each scrutiny inquiry or item that was reviewed as
part of this report. The table also shows a breakdown of the number of
recommendations that have been accepted, partially accepted and rejected by
the Cabinet.

From the sample of inquiries reviewed, the results show that the vast majority
of recommendations made were accepted by the Cabinet, with a limited
number considered as partially accepted. Only a very small percentage of

recommendations made by scrutiny were rejected.

Page 155



9GT abed

Number

Total Number Number Partiall Number
Recommendations Accepted y Rejected
Accepted
Corporate Parenting 4 1
2014 Task and Finish Inquiry > (80%) (20%) 0
2016 Child Sexual Exploitation 13 12 0 1
Children and Task and Finish Inquiry (92%) (8%)
Young
People 2017 Female Genital Mutilation 5 1 1 0
Task and Finish Inquiry (50%) (50%)
Out of County Placements 13 6
2018 Task and Finish Inquiry 19 (68%) (32%) 0
Carers 9 6 3
2013 145k and Finish Inquiry 18 (50%) (33%) (17%)
Night Time Economy 12 3
CAASC 2016 Crime and Disorder 15 (80%) (20%) 0

Task and Finish Inquiry

Closure of Older People
2016 Day Centres Budget N/A N/A N/A N/A
Scrutiny



Number

Total Number Number Partiall Number
Recommendations Accepted y Rejected
Accepted
Central Markets and 11 5 1
2014 Historic Arcades | (65%) (29%) (6%)

Task and Finish Inquiry
Alternative Delivery
Economy 2014 Models N/A N/A N/A N/A
and Culture Research Inquiry

Scrutiny of Budget
2016  proposal on reduction of 1 1 0 0

;? Community Arts Funding
Q
D
= Litter 11 2
ﬂ 2012 Task and Finish Inquiry 13 (85%) (15%) 0
2013 Prob_lem.and nuisance 17 11 5 1
Parking in Cardiff (65%) (29%) (6%)
Environment Task and Finish Inquiry
Management of Section 1 1
106 Funding for
2017 Communlty Development (key . (full agreement to 0 0
Projects recommendation

Task and Finish Inquiry with subsections) recommendations)



8GT abed

Total Number

Recommendations

Number
Accepted

Number
Partially
Accepted

Number
Rejected

2011
Policy and
Review 2013
Performance

2018

Sickness Absence Review

Task and Finish Inquiry 19
Benchma.rklng VA
Research inquiry

Scrutiny of Wedal Road Decis erred
HWRC Disposal ecision referre

i back
Call-in

12
(63%)

N/A

N/A

6
(32%)

N/A

N/A

(5%)

N/A

N/A



Raising political and service area awareness of issues for consideration

in the development of policy.

Through scrutiny, elected Members are made aware of key issues and
challenges affecting the delivery of council services, its service users and

stakeholders.

Improving political understanding of a key issue

Improving political awareness of a Council-wide workforce issue

The PRAP Scrutiny Committee has been reviewing and monitoring Cardiff
Council’s sickness and absence performance since 2011. This area of work
for PRAP enabled Members to develop an in-depth and longitudinal
understanding of a key service and performance issue that has a significant
impact on the finances and workforce of the local authority. Following the
Sickness Absence Task and Finish inquiry in 2011, PRAP has closely
monitored the achievement of sickness and absence targets and the progress
made in the implementation of new sickness policies and strategies. As a
result of the regular and periodical monitoring of this performance area,
Committee Members have been able to gain a good understanding of the
challenges that the Council faces in making improvements in this area, and
the achievements of the service area responsible for sickness absence policy
development. This knowledge and understanding enables Members to

continue effectively challenging in this area of service delivery.

Improving political awareness of scope service provision to deal with Child
Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

Members in Cardiff expressed concerns at the possible level of CSE in Cardiff
in relation to the high profile media coverage of the Child Sexual Exploitation
(CSE) cases in Rochdale, Rotherham, Leeds and Bradford. As a result, the

Page 159



Children and Young People (CYP) Scrutiny Committee agreed to a Task and
Finish Inquiry on Child Sexual Exploitation in 2016. This inquiry group wanted
to understand how agencies and professionals in Cardiff are working together
to mitigate the risks for children and young people arising from the threat of
CSE. The inquiry reviewed the current Council CSE strategy, preventative
measures and the partnership arrangements in place to enable the local
authority to deal effectively with CSE. The inquiry also looked into relevant
best practice in this area and sought stakeholder and partners views on the

existing service and delivery arrangements.

As a result of this inquiry, Members gained a good understanding of existing
arrangements and services provided internally and by key partner
organisations, as well as the challenges the Council faced in dealing with this
issue. With this knowledge and understanding, Members of the Committee
were able to make recommendations contributing to improvements in existing

arrangements and resources for dealing with this issue.

Improving Cabinet and service area knowledge of alternative service delivery

models

In 2014, the Economy and Culture Scrutiny Committee conducted an inquiry
of Alternative Delivery Models in support of the service area’s work around
exploring alternative operating models to safeguard Cardiff’s leisure and
cultural venues. The Inquiry process adopted a flexible approach, contributing
to on-going policy development work and providing a critique to inform pre-

decision scrutiny of this area.

Following this inquiry Cabinet Members, officers, and Scrutiny Members cite
this inquiry as one of the most useful scrutinies in recent times in terms of in-
depth inquiry. The scrutiny brought real time examples from other local
authorities and allowed Cardiff to learn from them — ultimately changing
Cabinet’s mind about Culture ADM and helping to strengthen management

agreement about Leisure ADM.

Page 160



Raising Member and service area awareness of Welsh Government

Consultation

The Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee conducted a Task
and Finish Inquiry in 2016 on How to Reduce Crime and Disorder in the Night
Time Economy (NTE) in a time of austerity. This inquiry was undertaken
because of concerns the Committee Members shared with South Wales
Police regarding the availability of resources and funding intended to support
the management of key NTE services. More specifically this aimed to identify
strategies and approaches to reduce crime and disorder, seek stakeholders’
views as well as look into relevant best practice in external organisations and

other local authorities that could be adopted in Cardiff.

As a result of this inquiry, service areas had been made aware of the Welsh
Government consultation on the NTE Framework and the need for the local

authority to respond to this consultation.

Raising political and service area awareness of stakeholder issues

Sustainability of Central Market and Historic Arcades as cultural and heritage

establishments

The Economy and Culture (E&C) Scrutiny Committee (2014) conducted a
Task and Finish Inquiry on the Cardiff Central Market and Historic Arcades.
The inquiry specifically looked into Cardiff Council’s role in running and
supporting Cardiff Central Market and the Historic Shopping Arcades, and

explored options for the future of these establishments.

The site visits, the views of key witnesses, and the findings from two research
projects undertaken, provided Members and the Cabinet with comprehensive
evidence sets of the issues and improvement areas identified by stakeholders
for the Central Market and Historic Arcades. More specifically, the

engagement with stakeholders brought to Members and service areas

Page 161



attention the need to resolve disputes between tenants as well as the need for

better enforcement of operational guidelines.

Additionally, the inquiry brought to Members’ attention various maintenance
issues in the market, and their negative impact on business stallholders and
the public’s perception of the Central Market. As a result of highlighting these
Issues, service area officers are working closely with Cardiff Central Market
Traders Association and have made significant progress in resolving disputes,

ensuring better enforcement this area.

Support needs of carers

In 2013, a Carers Task and Finish Inquiry was undertaken by the Community
and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee (CASSC), to support the service
area’s work in improving services for adult carers. The inquiry set out to
understand the existing needs and aspirations of adult carers, and establish
their views on how the Council could support these. Members also wanted to
understand the challenges and barriers preventing adult carers from
accessing or benefiting from the range of services available to them. The
inquiry reviewed existing processes relating to the provision of services for
this group as well as looking into various good practice examples in providing

a range of support for carers.

The findings of this inquiry on carers’ needs, raised political (Scrutiny and
Cabinet Members) and senior management awareness of the issues facing
carers, and the value of their caring role to society and to the provision of
social care services. This also raised awareness on areas of support and

service provision that the local authority can provide and improve upon.

Awareness of incidence Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

In 2017, the CYP Scrutiny Committee conducted a Task and Finish Inquiry on

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), looking into the scale of the problem in

Page 162



Cardiff, and examining existing arrangements for dealing with this problem, so
that evidence based recommendations could be made on dealing with this
issue in Cardiff. The evidence gained during this inquiry raised Members’ and
officers’ awareness of the scale of the problem in Cardiff as well as the
potential role that Cardiff Children’s Services can play in addressing this

issue, as was evidenced in the key findings set out in the report.

Raising political awareness to support service improvement of partner

agencies

As part of the evidence gathering for the FGM Task and Finish Inquiry,
Members were made aware of a potential funding bid for an FGM clinic pilot to
be run within the CHAP (Cardiff Health Access Practice) at Cardiff Royal
Infirmary. The Committee wrote a letter of support to the FGM Clinical Lead,
supporting a funding bid for a £60,000 fund to run a pilot clinic. This letter
emphasised the cross party political and public support for the provision of the
service. The FGM clinic pilot successfully secured its funding and opened in
May 2018. Moreover, it is estimated that this new service now provides
medical and psychological support to women and girls who are victims of
FGM.

Identifying improvement areas in service provision

The various examples cited in the following sections illustrate the impact and
effectiveness of the function in helping service areas in Cardiff Council to
identify improvement opportunities in service provision. The improvements
identified here range from new policy areas to very specific operational

processes, or workforce related improvements.

Page 163



Identifying opportunities for improvement in existing policies and

strategies

Improving sickness absence policy and strateqy

The findings of PRAP’s Sickness Absence Task and Finish inquiry (2011)
highlighted issues around the management of sickness and absence in the
authority. To inform the development of new policy, the inquiry made
recommendations on streamlining the sickness absence management
process, with specific suggestions on reducing sickness absence trigger
points to allow a greater level of flexibility for managers to effectively deal with

persistent sickness absence occurrences.

The inquiry also found issues around the effectiveness of the occupational
health processes and the challenges associated with optimising the benefits
that the service offers. As a result, the inquiry made recommendations on the
tightening of the occupational health processes and the adoption of
preventative measures that focus on improvements in staff well-being. Most
of these recommendations were accepted by the service area and now
feature strongly in the new Attendance and Well-being Policy that was
adopted by Cardiff Council in 2014.

Following the first year of implementation of the new Attendance and Well—
being Policy, a progress report to Committee cited “early indications are that
the new Policy appears to be having a positive impact on the Council's levels
of sickness”, with a forecasted figure of 10.4 sickness absence days per FTE
in 2013-14. According to a Cabinet letter to PRAP, the end year position on
sickness absence was better than forecasted and the 2013-14 outturn figure

achieved 10.18 sickness absence days per FTE.

A further analysis of sickness absence figures following implementation of the
new Attendance and Well-being policy in 2013-14 to 2016-17, illustrated a

Page 164



steady decline in sickness absence. The sickness absence outturn fell from
11.49 days FTE in 2013-14 to 10.77 FTE in 2016-17. However the sickness
sickness absence outturn figure has risen in 2017-18

The work of the PRAP Committee in challenging sickness absence
performance, as well in informing the development of new policies and
processes and in continuing monitoring of progress made, has contributed to
the positive outcomes that the service has achieved in recent years. The
estimated cost of sickness absence in 2013-14 according to the Cabinet letter
to the Committee was estimated at no less than £14.4 million. In 2016-17 the
cost of sickness absence to the authority according to the APSE sickness
absence report in 2016-17 was £11 million. This reported figure illustrates a

significant cost reduction from 2013-14.

Improvements in strategies and arrangements for dealing with litter

The Environment Committee (2012) conducted a Task and Finish Inquiry on
Litter to look into how this is dealt with in the City and to inform the Council in
the development of new policies and strategies in dealing with this issue. The
inquiry findings and the surveys undertaken have helped to identify areas
where improvements can be made by the service. Stakeholders contributing
to the inquiry identified a need to improve the Council’'s enforcement
capabilities against littering offences. Additionally, the inquiry also highlighted
the need develop and improve Council strategies and arrangements for
dealing with dog fouling, smoking related litter, chewing gum, fast food and
other forms of street litter, and the need for the Council to raise young
people’s and general public awareness of existing regulations on litter and

dog fouling .

Developing the Cardiff Central Market vision, improvements in management,

and its promotion

The Central Market and Historic Arcades Task and Finish Inquiry (2014)

highlighted the need for specific improvements that would help to secure and

Page 165



sustain the future use of Cardiff’'s Central Market and Historic Arcades.
Specific recommendations were made on developing a vision, improving the
management of the market, its branding and promotional activities and
campaigns, extension of operating hours, Wi-Fi coverage, partnership
arrangements that can be tapped into and use of local currency and loyalty

schemes.

The vast majority of the recommendations made from this inquiry were
accepted by the Cabinet. As a result of the recommendations from this
inquiry, the Economic Development service of the Council made a
commitment to review the management arrangements, develop a vision, and
improve the marketing and branding of the market through the development of
a new website. The service also committed to work with organisations with
specialist expertise to explore how the Council can maximise the impact of the

building from a heritage and tourism perspective.

Improving the preventative strategy on CSE through raising awareness and

campaigns with the public and at risk groups.

The CYP Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Task and Finish Inquiry in 2016
highlighted from the evidence, the need to develop a strategic and
coordinated awareness raising programme that should be implemented
across vulnerable groups, community groups, schools’ training, those
engaged in the night-time economy, foster carers, staff in children’s homes
and those engaged in providing Council services via the commissioning and

procurement process.

Following this recommendation, a progress report submitted to CYP Scrutiny
Committee on the implementation of the CSE strategy cited that further “work
has taken place with schools, youth service and third sector organisations to
deliver CSE awareness raising sessions in schools, youth work settings,
supported accommodation and residential children’s homes”. It was also
intended that the initial pilot schemes directed for young people in schools

would be rolled out throughout Cardiff. Additionally a targeted campaign was

Page 166



also rolled out to raise awareness of parents, carers, professionals etc. The
increased level of awareness by the public and various groups supports and

reinforces preventative measures on CSE.

Improving service strategy for the placement of looked after children

To improve availability of placements in Cardiff, the CYP Scrutiny
Committee’s Out of County Placements Task and Finish Inquiry in 2018
made a recommendation that a placement strategy should be developed to
increase the number of foster carers and retain them through the provision of

additional support, allowances and retainers

In their response to the Committee’s recommendation, the Cabinet
established a project group that will have responsibility for developing an
effective business model for the Fostering Service in Cardiff to help to meet
the demand for local placements and help to reduce the cost of fostering to

the Council.

Developing a strateqy for managing the Night Time Economy

A key recommendation of the CASSC Task and Finish Inquiry on the Night
Time Economy was that the service develop an action plan in response to the
Welsh Government’s ‘Framework for Managing the Night Time Economy in
Wales’. In response to this recommendation, the Cabinet made a commitment

that a Night Time Economy strategy would be developed for the city

Enhancing and expanding service provision and capacity in Cardiff

As a result of the evidence received during the CYP Out of County
Placements Task and Finish Inquiry, Members recommended that service
area officers “develop and implement a building programme of homes for
children in Cardiff, utilising every possible agency, as an Invest to Save

project”.

Page 167



In response to this recommendation, a project team was tasked to work on:
delivering a clear commissioning strategy for securing children’s placements
by March 2019; work towards opening new children’s homes in the City, so
that Cardiff children can access the right type and level of support; to develop

the provider market to deliver the type of provision, required in Cardiff.

Defining governance arrangements of partnership work around crime and
disorder in the NTE

The CASSC Task and Finish Inquiry on the NTE (2016) highlighted the need
to define the governance arrangements between key partnership
arrangements i.e. Cardiff Partnership Board (CPB) and between the Cardiff
Business Improvement District and Cardiff Council, all involved in providing
services relating to Cardiff's Night Time Economy. This recommendation was
accepted and Cabinet stated that this would be considered for the agendas of
the CPB and the Business Improvement District.

Improving service processes and performance

Integrating the carer’'s assessment in service delivery and performance

monitoring

A key recommendation of the CASSC Carers Task and Finish Inquiry was for
the service to ensure that a carer’s needs assessment, particularly relating to
respite provision, is undertaken by the service area as part of its key

processes.
In response to this recommendation, the service committed that they would

include the carers issue in the quality file audit, to be able to ensure and

provide evidence that the carers assessment has been integrated in practice.

Page 168



So far, the directorate has made significant progress in ensuring that carers’
assessments are fully integrated into the service’s processes. The carer’s
assessment is now identified as a key objective in the Corporate Plan, with
corresponding measures and performance targets in the Directorate’s delivery
and performance report. A Carer’s Assessment is now offered to all eligible
adult carers of adults, as part of the Directorates commitments. The Q4 2017-
18 performance report cited that the service had made significant
improvement in the overall number and percentage of carers’ assessments
offered to this service user group (2833 offers out of 3563). The directorate
has also further invested in additional resources to support carers, and in
2017-18 had successfully recruited an additional 6 members of staff as Carers
Assessment Workers (CAW) to undertake assessments and support the

delivery of the Carer Support Plan.

Improving consistency of application of sickness absence management

processes

The findings of PRAP’s Sickness and Absence Task and Finish Inquiry in
2011 highlighted the need for schools to make improvements in the
management of sickness absence so that there was consistent application of
the Council’s sickness absence policy, including full reporting of all absences
and routine completion of return to work interviews. The inquiry recommended
that the Chief Officer for Schools should identify the schools that need to
improve the application of processes and the extent to which these processes
are implemented or applied. In response to this recommendation, the Chief
Officer of Schools conducted a review of the application of sickness absence
processes in schools and looked into sanctions that could be implemented
(e.g. school membership of the mutual fund) to ensure compliance with

Council wide procedures.

According to the progress report submitted to PRAP earlier this year (2018),
significant improvements have been made in the recording and reporting of
sickness absence levels in schools, so that school governors are now able to

benchmark their own schools performance against other schools in Cardiff.

Page 169



Improvements have also been made in ensuring that school governing bodies

are empowered to tackle sickness absence proactively.

Improving FGM data collection and the recording of service users in case files

CYP’s Task and Finish Inquiry on FGM (2017) recommended that Cardiff
Council should take a lead role in the strategic and operational work around
FGM, patrticularly in terms of improving data collection and recording of FGM

cases.

In response to this recommendation, Children’s Services committed that the
recording process within the department would be amended to ensure that all
new cases of FGM being perpetrated on a child will be separately recorded.
There is an existing recording system for children’s referral to the service that
records the number of referrals made, by which agency and the outcome of
the referral with the data broken down by age, by definition and by gender.
However, the system does not currently differentiate between concerns that a
child is at risk of FGM and where a child has already been mutilated. The
implementation of this new system will enable Cardiff Council to monitor the
number of FGM cases that are referred to the service and thereby enable the
service to determine the level of resources that will be required from Cardiff
Council and its partners in supporting those who are at risk and those affected

and impacted by FGM.

Improving the conduct of the 2017 sickness absence service review

As part of PRAP’s longitudinal monitoring of sickness absence performance,
the Committee scrutinised APSE’s sickness and absence review in 2017, as
commissioned by the Human Resources service. The scrutiny of this report
highlighted the need for input from frontline staff on their views around the

challenges in dealing with and managing sickness absence. The Committee

recommended that a further exercise should be undertaken to seek the views

Page 170



of operational and frontline staff, so that these could be considered in the

action plan developed following the review.

In response to this recommendation, the service area committed that as part
of its action plan following the APSE review, the views of various staff groups
including teaching assistants and frontline employees would be sought. This
would help establish the reasons why certain occupational groups have higher
sickness than others, and identify processes that could be put in place to
assist. The service area subsequently commission APSE to undertake further

focus group work with these previously unrepresented groups.

Implementing sanctions on staff failure to attend occupational health

appointments

The findings of the PRAP Sickness Absence Task and Finish Inquiry in 2011,
highlighted the need to strengthen the provision of the occupational health
service, particularly the systems and processes around referrals and
attendance at appointments. The Committee made a specific
recommendation for dealing with staff failure to attend occupational health
appointments with the application of appropriate sanctions such as charging.

Following the Committee’s review of sickness absence in June 2015, the
service confirmed “we are taking on board the Committee’s suggestions
around general tightening up of Occupational Health Service processes
(OHS) and we are putting in place arrangements whereby a “no show” at the
second OHS appointment without explanation will result in a stoppage of pay.
The active involvement and accountabilities of managers in their staff who are
“no shows” is also being strengthened in this respect.” This change in policy
was implemented from 1 July 2015 so that missed appointments are charged

back to Directorates.

Improving the allocation processes for Section 106 monies

Page 171



In 2017, the Environment Scrutiny Committee conducted a Task and Finish
Inquiry on the ‘Management of Section 106 Funding for the Development of
Community Projects’ to provide Members with an opportunity to consider and
explore how Section 106 funding can be used to fund the development of

community projects.

The Committee recommended a single process arrangement/scheme for
assessing and allocating monies for community projects that would provide
local Councilors, residents and stakeholders with an opportunity to decide
how and where funds are spent in their wards. It was intended that the new
process should prevent monies from being spent on unwanted local projects,
and ensure that they tie in with local need. They would also provide planners
and developers with a list of pre-agreed projects so that money could be

linked to schemes as soon it became available.
Based on the Cabinet’s response to the inquiry report, the Committee’s
recommendations were accepted and cited as “a good starting point to

establish a robust process for capturing community derived / identified

projects”.

Improving staffing resources

Appointment of Volunteer Coordinator to harness volunteer capacity

The 2012 Litter Task and Finish Inquiry recommended that the Council should
provide more support to develop volunteer resources by specifically
establishing a single point of contact to provide comprehensive support for
volunteers and volunteer groups, identify areas for litter picks and

environmental improvement, as well as organise litter picks.

Page 172



Following this recommendation, in 2017 the service recruited a Volunteer
Development Coordinator on a fixed term basis. The work of the Volunteer
Coordinator has generated a significant contribution to improving litter in terms
of the volume of litter bags collected (9631 bags of litter) from litter picks. The
post has supported a total of 8864 volunteer hours offered by members of the

general public, equivalent to £75,985 when valued at the living wage.

Appointment of an Estates Manager with responsibility for the Central Market

A recommendation of the Economy and Culture Task and Finish Inquiry on
the Central Market and Historic Arcades (2014) highlighted the need for the
local authority to “put in place appropriate management arrangements to drive
and coordinate improvements” in the Cardiff Central Market. The progress
report update, brought to Committee in May 2016, cited that the service has
created a “new post of Estate Management officer with overall responsibility
for the management of the Market”. The update also cited that improvements
in the day to day operations, including enforcement of bylaws and operating

guidelines, had been achieved.

The service progress report also cited other improvements in resource
allocation, and investment made by the Council, which were directly linked to
the recommendations of the inquiry. These include: improvements in branding
of the Central Market; free Wi-Fi coverage in the Market, and investment in

improving relations with market tenants and representative groups.

Appointment of a permanent CSE Lead Officer and team

During the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Task and Finish Inquiry, Members
were made aware that the lead officer responsible for managing work around
CSE was a temporary appointment. A key recommendation of this inquiry was
for the appointment of a permanent lead officer at Operational Manager to
take a leadership and strategic role in implementing the local authority’s CSE

strategy. The evidence heard during the inquiry raised Members’ awareness,

Page 173



to support the allocation of funding from the Council’s annual budget to
establish a CSE prevention team and recruit to these posts. The budget
proposal for 2017/18 supported the recruitment of a permanent CSE lead
manager and the setting up of a dedicated team.

Appointing a leadership role

Assignment of a Cabinet Night Time Economy Champion

The findings of the Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee’s NTE
Task and Finish Inquiry highlighted the need for the local authority to appoint
a Cabinet Member to act as an NTE Champion, to provide strategic and
tactical leadership. At the time of the inquiry, the leadership responsibility for
NTE was shared across three Cabinet Member portfolios, several senior

officers and various partnership groups.

As a result of the inquiry’s recommendation on this issue, the Cabinet Member
for Skills, Safety and Engagement took on the role of Night Time Economy
Champion. This Cabinet Member portfolio no longer exists; it is currently

unknown who is the current NTE Champion.

Improving corporate responsibility and accountability

The CYP Scrutiny Committee and the previous Corporate Parenting Panel
conducted a joint task and finish inquiry in 2014 to address concerns on the
role, status and impact of the Corporate Parenting Panel as part of the
corporate governance arrangements. There were concerns that the Panel
“occupies a perversely marginalised position within the local authority, with the
Panel having no statutory, role or status or formal decision making powers”.

The inquiry reviewed the role and status of the Council’s Corporate Parenting

Page 174



Panel, and made recommendations in formalising its role and remit, raising its

profile and establishing clearer lines of accountability.

Following the inquiry, the Constitution Committee endorsed the
recommendation to establish a Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee that
would advise Council on the corporate parenting role. This Advisory
Committee would have a visible role and status within the Council.
Additionally, the Monitoring Officer’s report to Constitution Committee
confirmed that the inquiry’s specific recommendations had informed the final
terms of reference of the Advisory Committee, which had been refined in
consultation with respective Committee Chairs — CYP Committee Chair,
Corporate Parenting Panel and Constitution Committees. The Council
approved the establishment of a new advisory panel with a new set of terms
of reference that includes a specific remit around the development, monitoring
and review of the corporate parenting strategy, and ensures its effective

implementation.

Identifying workforce improvements

The findings of the CYP Scrutiny Committee’s Task and Finish Inquiry on
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) (2017), Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)
(2016) and Out of County Placements (2018) have highlighted the need to

further improve social worker staff knowledge and training.

The inquiry on CSE made a specific recommendation for on-going training for
social workers, so that they are able to provide professional and consistent
advice to service users and to members of the public. Specialist training on
this issue was also recommended for individuals and organisations, to
empower them to intervene at lower levels and assist in reducing referrals
made. The inquiry also recommended further that educational and guidance

materials are coordinated across agencies.

Page 175



The recommendations made by this inquiry have been accepted by the
Cabinet. The service has made progress in providing staff training, but
acknowledged that further work needs to be done to ensure that all statutory
agencies have trained their staff on this issue. The directorate update to
Committee on the implementation of the CSE strategy cited that various

agencies have now received training from the CSE coordinator and Manager.

Evidence received during the inquiry on Out of County placements had re-
emphasised the need for the service to address workforce and practice
improvement. Specific recommendations were made in relation to workforce
practices and resources, to ensure that there is a stability in the workforce,
enabling continuity of contact with young people in care, and the ability to
meet increasing caseloads. In response to this recommendation, the service
has committed to improving continuing support for the workforce, including
undertaking well-being assessments of the workforce and continuing the

recruitment campaign.

Improving availability of guidance materials for service users and

professionals

The CYP Task and Finish Inquiry on CSE highlighted the need for guidance
materials for service users, parents and practitioners. A progress report
submitted to the Committee cited that the service has now produced a CSE
Guide to Parents that will be circulated to agencies working with vulnerable
families. Additionally, a resource pack for professionals was completed and
circulated within Children’s Services and via the CSE Professional Interest
Group, which included professionals working across the City in organisations
such as Police, Education, Schools, Health, Youth Offending Service, Mental

Health, Housing, Probation and the Third Sector.

In response to the recommendation made on the provision of FGM training,

the service has committed that as part of the implementation of the broad

Page 176



CSE strategy, in this specific area training will be provided to avoid

duplication.

Highlighting best practice arrangements and service innovations

Developing partnership with BID to secure funding

Evidence presented to the Environment Scrutiny Committee’s Litter Task and
Finish Inquiry (2012) illustrated how partnership working between the
Swansea Business Improvement District and the City Council resulted in
improved cleansing resources for Swansea city centre. The inquiry
recommended that such practice should be considered and replicated in
Cardiff.

A recent interview with the service manager (Litter Research 2018) revealed
that Cardiff Council progressed its partnership arrangement with the ‘For
Cardiff BID — and the city has benefited from additional resources invested by
BID that helps to improve and maintain cleanliness in the city centre.

‘For Cardiff’ has invested an additional £150,000 from its own resources to
fund regular deep cleans and additional street cleansing in the city centre.
This additional street cleansing work is being delivered by Cardiff Council
staff.

Innovations in traffic enforcement capability

In 2013, the Environment Scrutiny Committee conducted a Task and Finish
Inquiry on problem and nuisance parking in Cardiff to support the work of the

service area and help find solutions to this problem in the city.
To improve capacity for enforcement, the inquiry recommended that the

Council should introduce a “car cam system” that would support the
enforcement of the traffic and parking regulations associated with the creation

Page 177



of the school safety zones. The inquiry highlighted various other benefits that
this would bring in terms of improving enforcement in other locations including

bus stops, pedestrian crossing zig zags and taxi ranks.

This recommendation was adopted by the Council and according to

Cardiff Council’s Annual Parking and Traffic Enforcement Report, (2017) the
introduction of two cars with camera technology is now a key part of its civil
enforcement tools. These cars are equipped with cameras that have number
plate recognition technology, enabling the authority to send parking tickets to
the registered vehicle owners. These vehicles specifically target illegal parking

around schools in bus lanes and other restricted areas.

The introduction of the cam car has enabled a greater coverage compared to
on foot enforcement officers and improved parking enforcement around
schools and some restricted areas in Cardiff. It has been cited in the Annual
Parking Report that the introduction of this enforcement tool has added a
significant surplus (approximately £367K from 2015-2018) to the parking

revenue account.

Highlighting innovative practice in sickness absence management

The findings of PRAPs Sickness Absence Task and Finish Inquiry in 2011
highlighted the benefits of preventative approaches in managing sickness
absence, as well as the benefits in shifting policy towards promoting health
and well-being at work and the provision of activities and initiatives that
support employee well-being. Research undertaken for this inquiry highlighted
effective strategies and outcomes achieved by other public sector bodies such
as the local authority in Bradford and public sector bodies such as Dyfed
Powys Police working with external bodies to pursue the well-being approach

to manage sickness absence in their organisation.
The preventative and well-being approach now features strongly in the new

Attendance and Well-being policy adopted in 2014. The progress report

submitted to the Committee in 2018 also highlighted the most recent initiatives

Page 178



that have been implemented to promote employee wellbeing such as
signposting to Council well-being services by GP surgeries, the flu vaccine
programme targeting frontline employees, and the physiotherapy massage

sessions made available in the workplace.

Improving Member and staff knowledge on benchmarking practice

In 2013, PRAP Committee Members wanted to shed light on the widely held
view that performance benchmarking was not feasible. Research was
undertaken to examine the feasibility of benchmarking Cardiff's performance
indicators with indicators from other local authorities in Wales, England and
other organisations in the UK. The findings of the research provided Members
and officers with a broad understanding of various types of benchmarking and
the associated methodologies and processes involved. The research also
highlighted the challenges and limitations of benchmarking as an approach for
reviewing performance, and provided information on key guidelines and
principles that would enable successful benchmarking. The report also
identified various benchmarking groups and networks that Council
directorates could join and benefit from. The research report has been useful
in helping Scrutiny Committee Members understand the concept of
benchmarking, its use and limitations. Furthermore, this has also raised
awareness amongst staff and has rectified some misconceptions about this

area of work.

Innovations in managing littering, dog fouling and fly tipping

The findings of the Litter Task and Finish Inquiry (2012) recommended
various arrangements and practices that Cardiff Council could adopt to
improve its work in dealing with flytipping. The Committee recommended that
the Council should make use of GPS technology in tracking and monitoring
flytipping incidents. The Cabinet’s response confirmed that the service has
adopted the use of GPS technology. More recently, the service has updated

and upgraded its recording and monitoring system in rolling out the use of a

Page 179



mobile APP that enables real time reporting, tracking and recording of fly

tipping incidents.

The inquiry also recommended that Dog Control Zones be introduced in
Cardiff. This year the service area has been making progress with addressing
key elements of the recommendation, with proposed implementation of Public
Space Protection Orders (PSPO) as a mechanism for dealing with dog fouling
issues. The service area has recently completed public consultation on the

implementation and specific provision of this order.

Page 180



Holding to account decision making in local authority

Challenging service performance targets

Improving performance targets on sickness absence

The PRAP Sickness and Absence Task and Finish Inquiry in 2011 challenged
the performance targets that had been set by the local authority. During that
period (2010-11), the sickness absence figure was 11.45 per FTE employee
per annum, with a target for the following year set at 10.73 days per FTE per
annum. The Committee recommended a target of 9.7 sickness absence days
per FTE for 2012-13 should be adopted instead and reducing to 8.5 days per
FTE in 2015/16.

This challenging recommended sickness absence target was accepted,
although the service advised that such level of reductions would only be
achieved with the impending changes in sickness absence policy. The service
committed to delivering a more realistic target of 10 sickness absence days
per FTE for 2012/13, and agreed to the challenging targets set for 13/14 and
14/15.

Scrutiny of budget proposals

Retention, and continued funding, of the Council’s Taxi Marshalls

The CASSC Task and Finish Inquiry on the NTE (2016) highlighted the
complementary role of various arrangements and mechanisms, including the
role of Taxis Marshalls, street pastors, the Alcohol Treatment Centre and the
police in helping to prevent crime and disorder during the NTE is Cardiff. A
recommendation made by the inquiry was on securing sustainable funding for
these essential mechanisms that work in Cardiff, which was acknowledged

and accepted by the Cabinet.

Page 181



Following this inquiry, a proposal was made to delete 4 FTE posts relating to
taxi marshalls in Cardiff. Atthe CASSC budget scrutiny in February 2016,
and in the subsequent letter sent to the Leader of the Council, Members
expressed their concern about this proposal and the negative impact this
would have in terms of safety and order within Cardiff’'s night time economy.
As a result of this scrutiny challenge, the proposal to delete the posts was
reversed, with the Council committing funding to this service for another year
until an alternative provision was put in place. A letter from the Leader of the
Council to the CASSC Committee Chair confirmed the Council’s commitment

to maintain the Taxi Marshall service.

Retention of Community Arts funding

As part of the annual Budget consultation process, the Economy and Culture
Scrutiny Committee considered the proposal to cut funding in respect of the
Artes Mundi, Cardiff Singer of the World and the Community Arts Grants (in
total £446,000) as part of budgetary savings in 2016-17. Members raised their
concerns over the impact of this proposed cut in funding. In their challenge of
the proposed cuts, the Committee’s letter to the Cabinet highlighted the
negative impacts of the proposal to Arts projects in Communities First areas,
and the number of individuals that would be affected by this, specifically no
less than 9,000 individuals participating in the projects and 29,000 benefiting
from it. The Committee also highlighted the benefits that continued Council
investment in arts funding brings in securing match funding for various
projects and stakeholders, in raising the City’s international profile, and in

benefits to the local economy.

As a result of this scrutiny, coupled with a more favourable budget settlement
from the Welsh Government, the Cabinet removed the proposed cuts
(£446,000) in respect of Artes Mundi, Cardiff Singer of the World and
Community Arts Grants from the 2016/17 budget savings proposals.

Page 182



Continued funding for older people’s day centre

As part of the CASSC scrutiny of budget proposals (2015-2016) on the
closure of day centres for older people, Committee Members wrote a letter to
Cabinet detailing concerns over the scale of the proposed savings for health
and social care, particularly in terms of its impact on vulnerable people in the
community. Members were particularly concerned with the proposed savings
from the closure of day centres for older people, the reorganisation of meals
on wheels and the proposed termination of the counselling services run by the
Drugs and Alcohol Team. As a result of this scrutiny, changes were made to
the final budget approved by full Council with regards to proposals around the
closure of day centres and counselling services. In the final budget, it was
confirmed that existing services would continue to be funded until alternative

arrangements were put in place by the local authority.

Reducing increase in cost of meals on wheels

Similarly, during the CASSC scrutiny of budget proposals in 2014-15,
Members raised their concerns on the impact of the proposed increase in the
charges for meals on wheels. As a result of the Scrutiny, the proposed

increase in cost was reduced by half in the final budget.

Scrutiny Call —in

Referral back of decision to sell Wedal Road

In March 2018, the Cabinet’s decision to dispose of the Wedal Road
Household Waste Recycling Centre in Cardiff by way of an off market sale to
Cardiff & Vale University Health Board was called in by a non-executive back
bench Councillor, and considered by PRAP. The decision was called in due to
concern that the off-market sale would not reflect market value or above

market value of the site.

Page 183



As part of this scrutiny, document based research was undertaken to inform
the lines of inquiry that Members could use. The research provided
comparative data on market prices and an alternative valuation of the property
in question, to inform Committee in challenging the valuation on which the

decision was partly based.

Following consideration of additional evidence from the call-in inquiry, the
Committee referred the decision back to the service area Director for further
consideration prior to consideration by Cabinet. The Committee
recommended that the local authority should ensure that future disposal of
Council property would maximise both social and economic benefits to be

gained.

A verbal update from the service has suggested that the call-in scrutiny of the
Wedal Road sale had further prompted the service area to refine its protocols

and processes around the disposal of Council owned properties.

Engaging the public in democratic debate about current and future of

public services

External Contributors to Scrutiny in Cardiff

Scrutiny and particularly its Task and Finish Inquiries provides an opportunity
for the Council and its Committee Members to engage with various
stakeholders and the general public and involve them in democratic debate

about the current and future delivery of Council services.
Tables 2 & 3 below provide a summary of the number of external groups and

individuals who have been involved and contributed to the scrutiny inquiries

undertaken by the Council’s 5 scrutiny Committees as presented in this report.

Page 184



Table 2 Number of External Contributors contributing to Selected

Inquiries

Scrutiny

Committee
2013

2016
2016

2014
2016

2017
2018

2014

Economy and

Culture
2016

2014
2012

_ 2013
Environment

Scrutiny

Committee
2017

Policy Review and [{olikE

Inquiry or Topic

Carers

Night Time Economy
Scrutiny Budget
Consultation — Closure of
Older people’s Homes
Corporate Parenting

Child Sexual Exploitation

Female Genital Mutilation

Out of County Placements (

Central Markets and Historic
Arcades

Budget Scrutiny Reduction
in Arts Funding

Alternative Delivery Models

Litter

Problem and Nuisance
Parking

Management of Section 106
Funding

Sickness Absence Inquiry.

Page 185

Number of External
Contributors
13
Research FGs &
Interviews = 29
13

16

17

7
6
Public Survey —
2048
Business Owners

Survey = 89

5

17
Survey = 2248

Research = 6
7



Scrutiny _ _ Number of External
. Inquiry or Topic .
Committee Contributors

Performance

Committee Benchmarking _
LGDU Interview =1

2018 Call-in of Wedal Road
HRWC Disposal

N/A

Table 2. above illustrates the number of external contributors who engage
with scrutiny inquiries and activities. The numbers of external contributors
vary depending on the scope of scrutiny inquiries and initiatives. The figures
above also illustrates the level of reach that research contributes to scrutiny in
engaging with the public and targeted stakeholders. The figures reported do
not include the involvement and contributions of Cardiff Council Officers and
Members to scrutiny activities.

Table 3. External Contributors to Scrutiny in 2017/18 and 2018/19

External Contributors 24 CRmiloliels
i 1- Q2), 2018/1
Committee (O1 - Q4) 2017/18 (Q1- Q2), 2018/19

CASSC 9 414 - Survey
Children and Young People 26 3
Economy and Culture 95 (72 emails to Chair) 8

24
Environment 38

20 4

Policy Review and

Performance

The results above show the total number of external contributors in the
previous municipal year 2017-2018, and for the period covering Q1 and Q2 in
2018-2019. The results show that scrutiny exceeded its targets during the
previous year, and early on in the current year.

Page 186



Research to engage with service users and the general public.

Various research projects involving the general public and selected
stakeholders have been undertaken to engage and bring forward their views
and perceptions as key evidence to inquiries, to inform recommendations

made by Scrutiny Committees.

For example, a key part of the evidence sets considered by Members during
the CASSC Carers Inquiry in 2013 was a result of research undertaken with
carers. Qualitative research using focus groups was undertaken to establish
Carers’ needs, aspirations, support requirements, challenges, and barriers in
accessing existing services. The conduct of this research enabled Members to
consider the range of views and perspectives from this service user groups

In 2014, the Economy and Culture Scrutiny Committee commissioned a
survey of the public into services and improvements to Cardiff Central Market
and Historic Shopping Arcades. Additional research established the views of
Market stallholders and shop owners in Cardiff’'s Historic Arcades. In total
2,048 members of the general public responded, the survey of Historic
Arcades shop owners had a 44% response rate, whilst the survey of stall
holders in Cardiff Central Market had a response rate of 87%. Further
research was also undertaken interviewing selected key stakeholders face to

face.

As part of the Litter Task and Finish Inquiry in 2012 the Environmental
Committee commissioned a survey to establish the perceptions of residents
and visitors on the impact of litter. The survey also looked at awareness of
existing litter regulations as well as the Council’s effectiveness on
enforcement. The survey was completed by 2,248 respondents. In the
summer of 2018, the Environmental Scrutiny Committee again commissioned
a similar survey to establish residents’ and visitors’ views on litter and

flytipping. The survey conducted this year (2018) had 3,343 respondents in

Page 187



total. Delivering the two surveys has allowed the Council the opportunity to
measure how public perception around litter has changed over a six year
period. In particular it has provided evidence that helps identify areas where
the litter policy has and has not worked successfully in recent years.

In addition to the public litter surveys, further work was undertaken on litter
and flytipping benchmarking. This involved a short-on line survey and
telephone interviews of selected local authorities in Wales, England, Scotland,
and Northern Ireland, to find out how they deal with litter and flytipping.

The findings of the research provided Members with information on current

innovative practices that are currently applied in the United Kingdom to

effectively manage of litter and flytipping.

Page 188



PRIMARY RESEARCH Appendix 4

Scrutiny Research Team

Assessing Scrutiny Impact

Research report for the
PRAP Committee

18 September 2019
N
NN

CARDIFF
CAERDYDD The City and County of Cardiff

a\

Page 189



Table of Contents

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Ta) (Yo [UTo1 (To] o PR 95
Quantitative Assessment of Scrutiny Qutputs and Impact.......c.cceeeveneen... 96

2.1. Number and Types of Scrutiny Committee Activities and Outputs....96
2.2. Type of Committee Engagement in the Policy Process......ccccv.o..... 97

Collection and Monitoring of Various Types of Committee
RECOMMENTALIONS ... e e 98

3.1. Number of Committee Recommendations (Committee, Panel and Call-

LY =T (T 0 S 99
3.2. Number of Task and Finish Inquiry Recommendations .................. 100
3.3. Types of Action that Recommendations Call for........ccccceevevviiiinens 101
3.4. Substantiveness of RecommendationS.......ceeeevevruiieereeriiieeressinseeeens 101

3.4.1. Alteration or Levels of Change that Recommendations Call for102
3.4.2. Level of Policy Significance that Recommendations Impact on103
3.4.3. Overall Substantiveness of RecommendationS ........cccvevvvevenn.. 104

Measuring Success, Influence and Impact of SCrutiny .......ccccevveevenenn. 106

4.1. Recording and Tracking of Acceptance and Implementation of

RECOMMENUALIONS ..uiieiiriiieeieiiiiieeeeerieeeeeant e e e erre e eeseer e e rerra e esesaans 106
4.1.1. Acceptance of Recommendations........cooeeevvveeeeievriiieeierineeneens 107
4.1.2. Implementation of RecommendationsS........ccccoeevvvveeeereeveieeeeennnn. 25

4.2. Accepted vs Implemented Recommendations........c..cccceeevveeeeeeennen. 113
4.3. Acceptance and Implementation of Recommendations by Types of

N ed (o] o I OF= 11 [ I o 114
4.4. Acceptance and Implementation by Extent of Policy Change Called

(0] 115
4.5. Acceptance and Implementation of Recommendations by

SUDSIANIIVENESS ... ceeevieeeeeereee et e e e rb e e e e e rba s 117
Engagement with Scrutiny Stakeholders .........cccovvieeiiiiieiiiiceieeeeis 118
Qualitative Evidence of Scrutiny Impact — Stakeholder Feedback........ 119

6.1. Evidence ContribUtiONS ........cceuuiiiiiiiiieieeeeic e e 28
6.2. New Analysis of Issues and EVIAENCE ........ccueevvviieiiiiieiiiieeiieeeeieees 29
OIS T I =1 17 0 =1 ] 100 121
6.4. SPOLHGNLING ....uuieiiieiie e e e e 30
SIS TR =Y 11 0] o PN 30

Page 190



7.

8.

ST ST (o ToT TSI STl 1101 0= 1] AT 31
6.7. HOIAING 10 ACCOUNL ... e 31
6.8. Context and RelatioNShiDS .. c..eeee e 31
6.9. Other Indirect and Less Tangible Scrutiny Impact .......coccevevveveeeeenn.. 32

Staff and Member Feedback on Effectiveness of Scrutiny Support........ 33

AppendiX 1. Definition Of TeIMNIS . cu.ce e 127
8.1. Types of Scrutiny Inquiry Engagement in PoOlicY .......ccovvvveeeiiiinnean.. 127
8.2. Types of Action that Recommendations Call for: .......ccoocovveveeeineenn.n. 39
8.3. Types of Change that Recommendations Call for: ......ccccevevvveeienean.. 41
8.4. Level Policy Significance that Recommendations will Impact on...... 41
8.5. ACCEPIANCE CaAlBUOMIES ...ueenees e et e e e e e e eeeens 42
8.6. IMPlementatioN CatBOOIES .. cu ettt e e ten e teareareaeneeareaeenns 42

Page 191



Introduction

The Policy Review and Performance (PRAP) Scrutiny Committee is currently
undertaking a Task and Finish Inquiry as a part of its 2019/20 work
programme looking into the impact of Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny function
during the current and previous political administrations.

The PRAP Committee Members has commissioned research to look into and
review the various approaches and methodologies used by local government
Scrutiny Committees, the National Assembly for Wales Committee and
Research Services, the UK’s Parliamentary Select Committees and related
organisations to assess the impact of scrutiny activity. Following the review of
these various documents, the PRAP Committee Chair further commissioned
this report, which presents a Scrutiny Impact Monitoring Approach and
methodologies that can be adopted by Cardiff Council to monitor and
establish the impact of its Scrutiny function. The findings presented in this
report have referenced and adapted some of the key the methodologies used
in scrutiny impact assessment by the various sources listed above.

This report is presented to PRAP Committee Chair and Members of the PRAP
Task and Finish Inquiry for consideration and review. A more simplified and
finalised version of the impact monitoring approach will be drafted and
adopted by Cardiff Council’s Scrutiny Services following a review of this
proposed version.

Page 192



Quantitative Assessment of Scrutiny Outputs and Impact

Number and Types of Scrutiny Committee Activities and Outputs

The collection of data on various scrutiny activities undertaken throughout the
year will provide a summary of the volume of work that has been achieved by
Scrutiny Committees. This information will involve the collection and listing of
numerical data on the various activities undertaken and tasks accomplished
as part of the scrutiny process in Cardiff. This data set will illustrate the
volume of workload and would be indicative of outputs achieved by each
Scrutiny Committee. This information will also be show the various work areas
where capacity and resources has been allocated to. Additionally, this will also
provide comparative data on Scrutiny Committee activities undertaken in the
year. An example of the tabulated summary of this data set is shown in the
Table below.

Table 1. Number and Types of Committee Activities Undertaken

Type of Scrutiny CYP | CASSC | Econ & Culture | Environment | PRAP
Activity

Committee Meetings

Task and Finish Inquiries

Task and Finish Meetings

Pre-decision Scrutiny
Items

Performance Monitoring
reviews

Panel Reviews

Call-ins

Other Scrutiny Activities

Total Scrutiny Activities

Additionally, a summary of the various types of reports or outputs that are
produced by the various scrutiny activities can also be collated. The reports
and outputs that produced as a result of the various scrutiny activities would
represent the Committees’ substantive intervention on the policy process. An
example of the tabulated summary of this data set is shown in the Table
below:

Page 193




Table 2. Year-end Summary of Number and Types of Scrutiny Outputs, by
Committee

Type of Scrutiny CYP CASSC | Econ & Environment PRAP
Outputs Culture

Committee Meeting
Letter to cabinet

Inquiry Report

Committee Briefing
paper/s

Panel report and/or
letter

Call-In Report of Letter

Other

Total

The data sets required for the summaries in Tables 1 and Table 2 should be
collected on a monthly basis so that annual summaries can easily be collated
and analysed.

Type of Committee Engagement in the Policy Process

A key role of scrutiny inquiries is to influence policy and hold the Cabinet to
account. Data could also be collected on the specific ways that Scrutiny
activities (Panel) and inquiries engage with the policy process. The collection
of this data set will illustrate how scrutiny engages policy. More specifically,
this will provide information on how much of the work undertaken by
Committees react to or shape the Council’s agenda or review progress that
has been made. The data will be indicative of how pro-active Committee’s
work in influencing policy or whether work is mainly reactive and driven by the
corporate agenda. An example of the tabulated summary of this data set is
shown in the Table below

Page 194




Table 3. Scrutiny Inquiries’ Engagement in Policy Process, by Committee

Type of Inquiry CYP | CASSC | Economy and | Environment | PRAP
Engagement in Policy Culture
Inquiry Title

Opening debate in new policy
areas or agenda

Examining proposals e.g.
policy, projects, strategies etc.

Responding to Failures

Responding to external policy
initiatives

Follow-up from previous
inquiry

The definition of the various categories of scrutiny engagement in policy
process outlined in Table 3, is described in section 8.1 in Appendix 1.

Collection and Monitoring of Committee Recommendations

Scrutiny Committee recommendations are regarded as the primary means by
which Committees can require the government to address a specific point,
consider a course of action, disclose or provide information to the public or
provide an update to the Committee on a particular area. The current Cardiff
Council guidance requires that the Cabinet and service areas or departments
must provide a formal response to Committee recommendations that require a
response, within 2 months.

The collection and monitoring scrutiny committee recommendations is key to
enabling a quantifiable assessment of the success, influence and impact that
scrutiny Committees. The quantitative approach used by the UCL'’s
Constitution Unit’s research work in determining the impact of Parliamentary
Select Committees in 2011, have been used as a key reference for this
component.

It is important that a consistent approach is adopted in collecting the different
types of data associated with scrutiny recommendations. It is therefore
proposed that data sets on Scrutiny Committee recommendations should be
collected on: (i) the number of recommendations by Committee (ii) the type or
nature these of recommendations. The data that should be on the nature of
recommendations, should establish the types of actions called for and the
substantiveness of each recommendation. The collection of these data sets is

Page 195




key to enabling a meaningful assessment and analysis of the types and levels

of influence that these recommendations are seeking to achieve.

The various data sets on the number and the nature of recommendations that
would need to be collected as well as examples of tabulated summaries are
presented in the following sections:

Number of Committee Recommendations (Committee, Panel and Call-in

Meetings)

Table 4. Year End Summary of the Number of Scrutiny Committee

Recommendations by Committee Meeting Activity

Committee

M1

M2

M3

M4 | M5

M6

M7

M8

M9

M10

Total

CYP

Committee

Call-In

Panel

Total

CASSC

Committee

Call-In

Panel

Total

E&C

Committee

Call-In

Panel

Total

Environment

Committee

Call-In

Panel

Total

PRAP

Committee

Call-In

Panel

Total

Page 196




Committee

M1

M2 | M3 | M4 | M5 | M6

M7 | M8 | M9 | M10

Total

Monthly
TOTAL

Number of Task and Finish Inquiry Recommendations

Table 5. Number of Recommendations Arising from Task and Finish Inquiries

Scrutiny Committee

Inquiry Title and Reporting
Date (Month and Year)

Number of
Recommendations

CYP

Inquiry 1

Inquiry 2

CASSC

Inquiry 1

Inquiry 2

Economy and
Culture

Inquiry 1

Inquiry 2

Environment

Inquiry 1

Inquiry 2

PRAP

Inquiry 1

Inquiry 2

Total Number

Page 197




Recommendations and the Types of Action called for

The collection of this data set will illustrate the types of actions, influence and
impact that Scrutiny Committees are seeking to achieve from its
recommendations.

Table 6. Year End Summary of Number of Committee recommendations and
the types of Actions Called for, by Scrutiny Committee

Types of Action Called for CYP | CAASC | E&C | Environment | PRAP

Legislative or Policy action

Guidance

Research or Policy review

Campaigns or Public Information

Disclosure

Funding

Attitude Change

Other

Total

The definition of the various categories of the types of action that
recommendations call for are described in section 8.2 in Appendix 1.

Recommendation Substantiveness

The UCL Constitution Committee’s research work (2011) prescribes using
recommendation “substantiveness” as a key quantitative measure in
assessing the level of impact or influence that a scrutiny recommendations
can have on the policy process.

The substantiveness of recommendations can be determined using the
following components:

e Alteration — level of policy change that recommendations call for; and

e Policy significance - the type (scope) of policy that this change will
be applied to

Combining these two components provides a measure the degree of

substantiveness of recommendations, which is explained in the succeeding
section.

Page 198




Alteration or Levels of Change that Recommendations Call for

The collection of this data set will provide a measure on the level of change
that recommendations are seeking to achieve. In differentiating
recommendations by level of change called for, it is suggested that the
following three categories are used: (i) no change or small change (ii) medium
change and (iii) large change or complete reversal of policy. These various
categories are allocated numerical values to enable a quantitative measure of
substantiveness.

Table 7.A and Table 7.B, below provide two examples of tabulated summaries
of the total number and the types of actions called for by recommendations
arising from the work of different Scrutiny Committees

Table 7.A PRAP Committee Inquiry Recommendations by Level of Change
Called for

PRAP Inquiry No or Medium | Large Not Clear
Recommendations Small Change | Change
Change
R1 X
R2 X
R3 X
R4 X
R5 X
Total Recommendations | 2 1 2

Table 7.B Total Number of Recommendations by Level of Policy Change
Called for, by Committee (Annual Summary)

Committee | No or Small | Medium Large Not Clear Total
Change Change Change

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Page 199




The definitions of the levels of change that recommendations call for are
described in section 8.3 in Appendix 1:

Level of Policy Significance that Recommendations Impact on

The second component required for determining substantiveness of
recommendations is a measure for ‘policy significance’, or the relative
importance of the policy that will be impacted on by the recommendation. In
measuring policy significance of recommendations, the following three
categories are suggested: (i) Minor Policy area; (ii) Medium Policy area and
(i) Major policy area. These various categories are also allocated numerical
values to enable a quantitative measure of substantiveness

Table 8.A and Table.B below are examples of tabulated summaries of the
total number of recommendations and the level of policy significance that
these will impact on.

Table 8.A.Total Number of PRAP Committee Recommendations by Policy
Significance (PRAP Committee letter)

PRAP Committee | Minor Policy Medium Policy Major Policy
Letter

Recommendation

R1 X

R2 X

R3 X
R4 X
R5 X
R6 X

Total 0 3 4
Recommendations

Page 200




Table 8.B Year-end Summary of Total Number of Committee
Recommendations by Policy Significance

Committee Minor Policy Medium Major Policy Total
Area Policy Area Area

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

The different measures of policy significance that recommendations will
impact on are also allocated numerical values: the numerical values
associated with these variables will enable the quantification of the
substantiveness of recommendations.

The definitions of the levels policy significance that recommendations will
impact on, are described in section 8.4 in Appendix 1

Overall Substantiveness of Recommendations

The use of the term ‘substantiveness’ refers to the overall policy importance of
scrutiny committee recommendations. This is a combined measure of the two
components that determine the policy importance of a recommendation.

Substantiveness = (Level of Policy Change called for) x (Policy Significance)

The substantiveness of a recommendation is calculated by multiplying the
values associated with the different categories of policy change called for and
the values associated with the different levels of policy significance that
recommendations would impact on.

Policy Change Categories | Value Policy Significance Categories | Value
No or Small Change 0 Minor Policy 1
Medium Change 1 Medium Policy 2
Large Change 2 Major Policy 3

Page 201




The resulting values and categories for ‘substantiveness’ of recommendations
are differentiated as follows:

Score | Substantiveness of Recommendations

0 Recommendations calling for no change or little change to policy (0)
regardless of the level of policy significance (1-3)

1 Recommendations calling for medium change (1) to a minor significance
policy (1)

2 Recommendations calling for a medium change (1) to a medium significance
policy (2) or a large change (2) to a minor significance policy (1).

3 Recommendations calling for a medium change (1) to a major policy (3)

4 Recommendation calling for a large change (2) to a medium policy (2)

6 Recommendations calling for a large change (2) to a major significance

policy (3)

The Tables below are examples of tabulated summaries on the
“substantiveness” or policy importance of recommendations made by Scrutiny
Committees

Table 9.A. Substantiveness Rating of Committee Recommendations
(Committee Letter)

PRAP Committee Meeting Substantiveness Rating
Recommendations

0 1 2 3 4 6
Committee Agenda 1, R1 X
Committee Agenda 1, R2 X
Committee Agenda 2 R1 X
Committee Agenda 3, R1 X X
Committee Agenda 4, R1 X
Committee Agenda 4, R2 X
Total 2 0 1 0 2 1

Page 202




The data on Table 9.1 will enable a comparative analysis on the number of
recommendations and the policy importance of recommendations made by
the different Scrutiny Committees.

Table 9.B Number of Committee recommendation by its substantiveness
(Annual Summary)

Committee Number of Substantive Recommendations Total | Percent of 0-2 Percent 3-6

0 1 2 3 4 6

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Measuring Success, Influence and Impact of Scrutiny

Recording and Tracking of Acceptance and Implementation of
Recommendations

The tracking of the acceptance and implementation of scrutiny
recommendations is an important aspect of determining the impact of scrutiny
as this provides evidence on the degree of success that scrutiny
recommendations have achieved in influencing Council Policy.

The Cabinet’s response to scrutiny recommendations (acceptance) provides
immediate confirmation of scrutiny’s influence on policy work within the local
authority.

The take-up or acceptance of recommendations however, only represents a
partial, and in some ways limited picture of committee influence and cannot
lead to a definitive conclusion on the impact of scrutiny. Nonetheless, the
success of recommendations is regarded as the only measure, which can
allow direct comparison between committees and avoid the more subjective
approach of judging influence based on anecdotes or case studies. The work
of Rush (1985a: 101) has previously described ‘tracing the fate of
recommendations’ as ‘no doubt the one of most important measure of the
impact of the Committee’.

Page 203




To rely solely on the acceptance of recommendations as a measure of
scrutiny influence suggests that the Cabinet’s response to scrutiny “is taken at
face” value and thus could overestimate the influence of scrutiny
recommendations. Scrutiny’s influence can be over-estimated when Cabinet
does not implement the accepted recommendations or when Scrutiny makes
recommendations that are less challenging and are more likely to be accepted
by the Cabinet.

Acceptance of Recommendations

The ‘acceptance’ of recommendations is defined as the degree to which the
Council’'s Cabinet responds favourably to a recommendation, including the
extent to which they attribute the idea to the Committee. It must be noted that
the monitoring of the acceptance or take-up of recommendations only
represents a limited measure of success that has been achieved by scrutiny
committees in influencing the policy process.

It is recommended that the acceptance of recommendations is tracked using
the Council’s formal response to a Scrutiny Committee report or Scrutiny
Letter to the Cabinet. A five-point scale is suggested to differentiate
acceptance categories that will be used in tracking the progress of
recommendations made. These categories are:

e Fully Accepted

e Partially Accepted

¢ Neither Accepted or Rejected
e Partially Rejected

¢ Rejected

The definitions of these acceptance categories are described in detail in
section 8.5 Appendix 1.

The Tables below provide examples of tabulated summaries of the
acceptance of scrutiny recommendations and examples of the types of
analysis that could be generated from using the data on acceptance status of
recommendations.

Page 204



Table 10.A Acceptance of PRAP Recommendations, Sickness Absence T&F
(Example Table)

PRAP Committee Accepted | Partially | Neither Partially | Rejected | Total
Recommendations Accepted | Accepted | Rejected

nor

Rejected
R1 X
R2 X
R3 X
R4 X
R5 X
R6 X
R7 X
Total 3 2 2
Percent 43% 28% 28%

Table 10.B Number of Accepted Recommendations by Substantiveness for
each Committee Meeting

PRAP Committee (Meeting Date or | Substantiveness of Acceptance categories

T&F Title) Recommendations recommendations

Committee R 1 2 Fully Accepted

Committee R 2 6 Fully Rejected

Committee R 3 4 No Response
- 1 ]

Acceptance of Recommendations | Number Percent

Accepted

Partially Accepted

Neither

Partially Rejected

Rejected

Substantiveness of Accepted Number Percent

Recommendations

0

1

2

3

4

6

Page 205



Table 10.C Acceptance of Recommendations by Committee (as Total Number

& Percent of recommendations) Annual Summary

Committee Accepted | Partially Neither Partially Rejected | Total % Fully
Accepted | Accepted | Rejected and
nor Partially
Rejected Accepted
CYP 10 45 75 65 (87%)
CASSC
E&C
Environment
PRAP
Total
Table 10.D Year End Summary on the Substantiveness of Accepted
Recommendations by Committee
Committee 1 2 |3 416 | Total Total % SubsRecs %SubsRecs
Accepted | Recommendations | (0-2) (3-6)
CYP 35 20 5|5 | 65 110 54% 46%
CASSC
E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

When recording and monitoring the Cabinet’s positive response to scrutiny
recommendations, where the Cabinet has cited that it is already taking steps
in line with the suggested scrutiny recommendation, it is important to establish
at what point in the scrutiny inquiry or review process have these steps been
undertaken.

The evidence should be sought whether work along the lines of the inquiry
recommendations has been undertaken prior to the inquiry or during the
conduct of the inquiry. This evidence will help to accurately establish
scrutiny’s influence on policy and avoid the danger of exaggerating scrutiny’s
influence by giving it credit for the things that the Council is already doing.

Page 206




Implementation of Recommendations

In addition to monitoring of the acceptance of scrutiny recommendations, it is
recommended that the extent to which recommendations were actually
implemented should also be monitored. This will useful in determining the
“true state of affairs” against the Cabinet’s initial assurances on the actions
that they have committed to undertake. The monitoring of the implementation
of recommendations provides further evidence on the degree of success that
recommendations have achieved and evidence of its longer-term influence.

The arrangements and processes for determining the implementation of
scrutiny recommendations within Cardiff Council would need to be further
explored and agreed between Scrutiny and the Cabinet. The types of
evidence required to confirm the implementation of recommendation should
also be looked into as well as the timescales for reporting on progress made
towards the implementation of recommendations.

The following implementation categories can be adopted:

e Implemented in full

e Implemented in part

¢ No evidence of implementation

e Not Implemented

e Opportunity to implement has not arisen

The definitions of these different implementation categories are described in
detail in section 8.6 in Appendix 1.

The following Tables provide examples of tabulated summaries of the

implementation status of scrutiny recommendations and the types of analysis
that could be undertaken using the various data sets collected.

Page 207



Table 11.A Number of Scrutiny Inquiry or Meeting Recommendations by
acceptance and implementation status, PRAP T&F Inquiry

Committee Inquiry and Date

Acceptance Status

Implementation Status

Recommendations

R1 Accepted Full

R2 Partially Accepted Not Implemented
R3 Accepted Partial

R4 Accepted No Evidence
Implementation of Accepted | Number Percent

Full

Partial

No Evidence of
Implementation

Not Implemented

No Opportunity

Total

Table 11.B Year End Summary of Implementation of the Accepted
Recommendations by Committee

Number of Full
Accepted
Recommendations

Committee

Partial | No

Evidence

Not

Implemented

No Total | % Fully and
Opportunity Part
Implemented

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Page 208




Table 11.C Implementation of PRAP’s Accepted Recommendations by Policy
Substantiveness

PRAP Committee (Meeting | Substantiveness of Accepted Implementation Status

Date or T&F Title) Recommendations categories

Recommendations

Committee R 1 2 Full Implementation

Committee R 2 6 Partial Implementation

Committee R 3 4 Not Implemented
- r [

Meeting Recommendations | Number Percent

Full Implementation

Partial

No Evidence

Not Implemented
No Opportunity
Total

|

Substantiveness of Number Percent
Accepted and Implemented
Recommendations

Ol WINF O

Table 11.D Year End Summaries on the Substantiveness of Implemented
Recommendations by Committee

Committee 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total Fully or Total | % %SubsRecs
Partially Recs | SubsRecs | (2-6)
Implemented (0-1)
recommendations

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Page 209



Accepted vs Implemented Recommendations

This data set will provide evidence on the degree of success that have been
achieved by various scrutiny committee recommendations in terms of its
acceptance and implementation. This however does not fully evidence and
illustrate the strength or extent of influence that scrutiny committee
recommendations have achieved and the areas of action called for where
recommendation have been successful.

Table 12.A Year End Summary of the acceptance and Implementation of
Scrutiny recommendation by Committee

Committee Total Number of Total Fully and Total Fully and
Inquiry or/and Meeting | Partially Accepted Partially Implemented
Recommendations
Total Percent | Total Percent
CYP
CASSC
E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

The data above will illustrate the distribution of accepted and implemented
recommendations against the total number of recommendations made. It also
provides comparative information on the acceptance rates and
implementation rates of recommendations between Scrutiny Committees.

Page 210




Acceptance and Implementation of Recommendations by Types of

Action Called for

The tabulated summary the in Table below illustrates the immediate success
that Scrutiny recommendations have achieved in relation to the types of
actions called for. It will illustrate action areas that have received a positive
response (or achieved some degree of immediate success) from the Cabinet
as well as the action areas where Scrutiny recommendations have limited or

NO SucCcess.

Table 13.A Acceptance of Scrutiny Recommendations (All or By Committee)
by Type of Action Called for

Accepted

Partially/
accepted

Neither
accepted
nor
rejected

Partially
rejected

Rejected

No
response

Total

% Fully/
partially
accepted

% Fully/
partially
rejected

Legislation

Guidance

Research or review

Campaigns

Disclosure

Funding

Attitude change

None

Total

Table 13.B Implementation of Recommendations by Types of Action Called

for
. No Evidence % Fully/
L R evidence not impl. LEREN part. impl.
Legislation
Guidance

Research or review

Campaigns/ public info

Disclosure

Funding

Attitude change

Several of the above

None of the above

Total

Page 211




The data on the Table below illustrates the specific action areas where
scrutiny has achieved some significant success and influence as confirmed by
the acceptance and implementation of these recommendations

Table 13.C Acceptance and Implementation (Only Full or Partial Acceptance
and Implementation) of Recommendations by Type of Actions Called for

Acceptance Implementation
Total Partially/fully Partially/fully
accepted implemented
Number Number | % of Total Number % of Total

Policy or legislative action
Guidance

Research or review
Campaigns/ public info
Disclosure

Funding

Attitude change

Several of the above
None of the above

Total

Acceptance and Implementation by Extent of Policy Change Called for

The data set on the Table below illustrates the immediate success that
Committees have achieved with regards to the types of change called for, as
demonstrated by the acceptance of Scrutiny recommendations. These data
sets should be collected by each Scrutiny Committee and can be summarised
for all the Committees too.

Table 14.A Year-end Summary of Acceptance of PRAP Recommendations by
Level of Change called for

Partially Neither Partially % Fully/ % Fully/

Level of Change Accepted accepted accepted rejected Rejected Total| partially partially

called for nor accepted rejected
rejected

No/ small change

Medium change

Large change

Not clear

Total

Page 212



Table 14.B PRAP Committee, Comparison of Acceptance and Implementation
Rates of Recommendations by Extent of Policy Change called for

Degree of Acceptance Implementation
Change
Total Number of Partially or Fully Partially or Fully
Recommendations | Accepted Implemented
Number | % of Total | Number | % of Total
No or Small
Change

Medium Change

Large Change

Not Clear

Total

The data set above will illustrate the relationship between and the acceptance
rates and the implementation rates of scrutiny recommendations in relation to
the level of change called. For example, accepted recommendations that call
for small change are more likely to be implemented that those calling for far
more substantial change.

To determine how impactful the different Scrutiny Committees are, a further
analysis (as shown in the following Table) can be undertaken using only the
data on the number of accepted recommendations that call for medium and
large change, in relation to the degree of implementation that these
recommendations have achieved.

The Table below will illustrate how many (or what proportion) of accepted
recommendations from each Committee calling for medium or large have
been implemented and to what extent these have been implemented by the
Council.

Table14.C Year End summary of the Degree of Implementation of Accepted
Recommendations Calling for Medium and Large Change Only, by Scrutiny
Committees

Committee Full Partial | Not No Total | % of Full and Part
Implemented Opportunity Implementation

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Page 213




Acceptance and Implementation of Recommendations by

Substantiveness

It recommended that a further analysis could also be undertaken on the
acceptance and the implementation of recommendations in relation to the
policy importance or substantiveness of recommendations.

The data set on the Table below illustrates the level of immediate success that
substantive recommendation have achieved.

Table 15.A PRAP Year End Summary of Acceptance of Recommendations by

Substantiveness
Partially Neither Partially % Fully/ % Fully/
Substantiveness | Accepted | accepted accepted rejected Rejected Total| partially partially
nor accepted rejected

rejected

D[R JW[N[F,TO

Total

The data on Table below would illustrate the level of immediate success
(acceptance rates) and the longer-term influence (implementation) that has
been achieved by substantive recommendations.

Table 15.B PRAP Year End Summary of Accepted and Implemented
Recommendations by Substantiveness

Substantiveness of
Recommendation

Acceptance

Implementation

Total Number of
Recommendations

Partially or Fully

Accepted

Partially or Fully
Implemented

Number | % of Total

Number | % of Total

|| WINF O

Total

Page 214




The analysis of data in the Table below would provide comparative
information on the longer-term impact or success that has achieved by
different Scrutiny Committees on more substantive recommendations that it

has made.

Table 15.C Year End Summary of the Implementation of Recommendations
with greater policy importance (Substantiveness rating 3-6) by Committee

Committee Full Partial | Not No Total | % of Full and Part
Implemented | Opportunity Implementation

CYP

CASSC

E&C

Environment

PRAP

Total

Engagement with Scrutiny Stakeholders

A key role of scrutiny is in engaging with the public and various stakeholders
and providing opportunities for their views and perspectives to be represented

and considered in decision making within the local authority.

The collection of the data as outlined in Table 16 below will evidence the
extent of stakeholder engagement that scrutiny has achieved through the
involvement of internal and external contributors to scrutiny activities.

Table 16.A Number of stakeholders and contributors represented in Scrutiny

activities

April Number of Number of Total Webcast Social
Committee External Internal Contributors media
Meeting Contributors | Contributors Hits

April Task
and Finish
Meeting

Number of
External
Contributors

Number of
Internal
Contributors

Total
Contributors

Page 215




Qualitative Evidence of Scrutiny Impact — Stakeholder Feedback

Various research reports have noted the limitations of tracking committee
recommendations the sole means for assessing Committee influence in the
local authority. The success rate of Scrutiny Committee recommendations
only accounts for part of a Committee’s influence. Various aspects of
Committee work such as the conduct and process of running an inquiry and
other non-inquiry work can effect change in the organisation.

Relying simply on tracking the take-up of recommendations can exaggerate
committee influence especially in cases where the committee has an eye to its
own influence. Committees can tailor recommendations to make them easier
for the government to accept, thereby inflating the acceptance rate.
Additionally, it must be recognised that a positive formal response from the
Cabinet to a Committee report or Committee letter to the Cabinet will not
necessarily translate into immediate action. It is also well known that some
committees (parliamentary select committees) are notoriously poor at
following up on progress that has been made by accepted recommendations
and thereby will not be able to track longer-term implementation and influence
that recommendations would have achieved. This phenomenon referred to as
the ‘delayed drop’, where a recommendation is initially rejected but emerges
later in some form or adopted in later years, resulting in an underestimation of
Committee’s influence or impact. It is also notable that within local
government there is generally no formalised system in place to track the
implementation and longer-term impact of scrutiny recommendations.

The assessment of the influence or impact of scrutiny, should therefore look
into various areas where scrutiny has influence or makes a contribution to
policy work in the authority. The research undertaken by the UCL Constitution
Committee, The Institute for Government (2015) and by CFPS and APSE
(2017), have identified and highlighted several key areas where scrutiny
makes significant positive contributions and impact on policy within local
government. It is recognised that most scrutiny activities will have contributed
to or achieved some success in at least one or a combination of these impact
areas. It is also noted that the extent to which these types of influence are
achieved varies between committees, varies over time and could be affected
by factors such as the nature of policy issues and the character of the
Committee Chair etc.

It is therefore recommended that the beneficial impacts and contributions of
scrutiny that should be monitored using the impact areas suggested below.

Page 216



These data sets can be collected by seeking confirmation from various
scrutiny stakeholders and participants on whether the scrutiny that they have
been involved in has been able to make an impact in these areas.

In seeking stakeholder views on these impact these areas, it is recommended
that responses must be sought from the three key actors involved in the
conduct of scrutiny: those conducting the scrutiny, those subject to scrutiny,

and other interested parties.

The data to establish the contributions and impact of scrutiny in these areas
could be collected using qualitative research methods such as focus groups or
interviews. For ease of data collection, it is suggested instead that a short
survey following each scrutiny inquiry and/or meeting can be sent out to
scrutiny Members and other participants or witnesses to seek their views on
how well scrutiny has achieved these various forms of influence and impact.

There are 7 key areas are outlined here where scrutiny makes significant
contributions and impact. There are a number of subcategories under each
heading. These sub-categories can be edited as required by Members and

key officers in the Council.

The areas where scrutiny makes a direct impact would include:

Evidence Contributions

This is about identifying new evidence that improves the Council’s evidence
base for decision-making, including related issues, risks or opportunities.

EVIDENCE CONTRIBUTION TO
DEMOCRATIC DEBATE

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON'T KNOW

Raised Member or Officer awareness and
contributed new, original or independent
information or evidence for consideration
in policy development or operational review

Presented new or original research on
policy in question

Brought forward new evidence from
stakeholders and service users who have
not been in contact with the Council

Highlighted best practice arrangements
from other public sector bodies

Raised Officer and Member understanding
of a key policy or operational issue or
problem

Page 217




EVIDENCE CONTRIBUTION TO
DEMOCRATIC DEBATE

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON'T KNOW

Raised Member and Officer awareness of a
key governmental consultation on a policy
area

Prompted the Council and its key partners,
to gather different or more up to date
evidence to inform policy and practice.

New Analysis of Issues and Evidence

This is about providing a new or different analysis of the available evidence
(including political opinion) which influences the Council’s view about what it is

doing.

NEW ANALYSIS OF ISSUES AND EVIDENCE

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON’T KNOW

Provided new analysis of evidence,
previously unrecognised trends in
evidence informing policy development

Highlighted a weight of opinion on the
evidence which the Council was unaware

Changed the understanding and
perspective of key decision makers
(Cabinet Members and Service area
Managers) on an issue

Transparency

This is about facilitating government openness by obliging Council Officers,
Managers and Cabinet Members to explain and justify what they have done

TRANSPARENCY or OPENESS

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON'T KNOW

Improved the quality of information that the
Council has made publically available

Increased the quantity of information and
breath of information provided by the
Council

Facilitated transparency or disclosure of
service plans, information and decision
making to the public.

Page 218




Spotlighting

This is about scrutiny’s particular role in drawing attention to policy issues that
may not be receiving adequate attention. These could be relatively smaller
areas of government policy, rather than large flagship policies (or they may
relate to overlooked details of more central policy topics). When committees
focus on these issues this can have the result of changing policy priorities
within the department. It has been noted in previous research that committees
can have the effect of putting the ‘spotlight on certain things and raising them
up the departmental and/or corporate agenda’.

SPOTLIGHTING TO DRIVE IMPROVEMENT YES NO UNSURE | DON’T KNOW

Made the Council, other stakeholders and
the public aware of a previously,
unrecognised issue

Enabled stakeholders to change or
broaden views or evaluation of an issue

Identifying improvements needed in
existing policies and strategies

Highlighted service user and stakeholder
needs that are relevant to policy and
service improvements

Learning

This is about the impact of scrutiny in identifying lessons and learning from
previous mistakes or successes by reviewing the development and
implementation of policy, operational processes, resources and expenditure.

LEARNING YES NO UNSURE | DON’T KNOW

Enabled the Council and its service areas
to review or question its own actions or
policies

Identified lessons or learning areas that
can improve policies and how they can be
implemented

Create a positive environment in which
lessons can be learned

Page 219




Process Impact

This is about scrutiny prompting higher standards or better processes in
government through the act of conducting effective scrutiny.

PROCESS IMPACT

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON'T KNOW

Identifying and facilitating improvements in

the Council or service area’s operational
processes, performance or policy
implementation.

Identifying improvements in staffing
resources or workforce development

Identifying improvements in guidance
materials for service users and frontline
staff and practitioners

Assisted the Council in identifying and
managing risks.

Made officers and cabinet prioritise and
review their effectiveness

Holding to Account

HOLDING TO ACCOUNT

YES

NO

UNSURE

DON’T KNOW

Challenged service performance and
performance targets

Provided opportunity for Cabinet and
Council managers to report on progress
made on policy development and
operational review

Enabled the representation of
stakeholders, public and other external
bodies and their views to support the
challenge of policy and operational
processes and have their views

considered by the Council and its services

Challenged decision making or decisions
made for reconsideration

Exposed wrong doing or poor policies or
operational practice

Page 220




Context and Relationships

CONTEXT AND RELATIONSHIPS YES NO UNSURE | DON’T KNOW

Helped build relationships or coalitions to
support or challenge an issue —brokering
role between Council and stakeholder
groups

Helped to improve stakeholders views,
relationship and trust in the Council

Other Indirect and Less Tangible Scrutiny Impact

Other less tangible and less measurable impacts that scrutiny has include:

Brokering between stakeholders - this is about Scrutiny’s role in mediating
between competing interests, and/or reviewing differing points of view to
identify mutually acceptable solutions. Committees can bring together in
discussion different perspectives into the public arena. This is not limited to its
“brokering role” between backbench members and the Cabinet and Senior
Managers but also involve brokering between the Council and external
stakeholders and key partners. For example, this can involve putting forward
to the Council a pressing case for policy change in behalf of external
stakeholder groups. This can also work in the way that the evidence
presented by the Committee can legitimise the Council’s position or
delegitimise the claims of critics.

“Generating fear” - This is has been cited as the least tangible impact of
scrutiny but is regarded as “perhaps the most important form of Committee’s
influence associated with its role in holding to account and in exposing poor
decision making, wrong doing or questionable policy in the public arena. This
impact area specifically relates to how the Cabinet, and its Officers (partners
or outside bodies) react and adjust their behaviours in anticipation to how the
Committee might responds or react should a certain course of action be
taken. This is regarded as a mainly negative form of influence in
“discouraging” the local authority (and to a certain extent, outside bodies) from
behaving in certain ways, for fear of how the relevant committee(s) may react
in the future”. For example, it has been cited that the anticipation of
“appearing before the Committee” has a much bigger influence with many
Officers wanting to avoid criticism from the Committee. The knowledge that
action or decision take by the Cabinet and Officers could lead to appearing

Page 221




and defending this before the Committee leads to some degree of “risk
management”. However, on some occasions this effect can also “encourage
to adopt a policy, when they know that it is likely to receive a backing” from
Committee Members.

Scrutiny’s “preventative influence” as a result of its capacity to “generate fear”
would be more difficult to assess and evidence. It is therefore suggested that
the use of more in-depth qualitative methods such as key informant interviews
and case studies would be useful tools in illustrating how “generating fear”
and “brokering between stakeholders” affect policy work and decision-making.

Staff and Member Feedback on Effectiveness of Scrutiny Support

The effectiveness and influence of the scrutiny process is also affected by the
level of support that is available to deliver scrutiny and its processes. It is
therefore important that feedback is sought on the effectiveness of the support
provided by the Scrutiny team to deliver the Scrutiny service. These data will
provide further evidence in determining the effectiveness and influence of
scrutiny. These measures are currently used by the Research and Committee
Services of the National Assembly for Wales to monitor the effectiveness of its
services.

Poor Rating Scale

Area of Support 0 112 |3 |4 |5
Poor Excellent

Committee Support

Overall support for Scrutiny Committees

Support for Committee meetings

Support for Task and Finish meetings

Research and independent evidence
collection support for Committee work

Support in developing Member skills in the
conduct of scrutiny

Engagement with the Public and
Stakeholders

Effectiveness in Engaging with Cardiff
Council service users and members of the
public to be involved in scrutiny

Effectiveness in engaging with external
partners and voluntary organisations

Effectiveness in promoting the work of
scrutiny on media and social media
platform. Championing scrutiny function
and service with stakeholders and partners

Page 222




Feedback on the effectiveness of support can be undertaken via a survey of
conducted on an annual basis. This data can also be used to set performance
targets on Officer and Member satisfaction with the support and delivery of

scrutiny services.

Page 223



Appendix 1. Definition of Terms

Types of Scrutiny Inquiry Engagement in Policy

Types of Scrutiny Engagement

Definition

Opening Debate

Where the committee proactively sought to
explore new policy directions, fact-find or open
debate. The issue did not need to be an obscure
or neglected one but could be something that
had become fashionable, and perhaps been
promoted by interest groups, but on which the
government had not yet reacted substantively
shape the agenda by bringing this under-
examined area to the attention of a new
administration.

Examining proposals

Inquiries responding to government
announcements of projects, plans, programmes
or funding packages, including publication of
initiatives and strategies, white papers, green
papers and occasionally legislation

Responding to perceived failures

Inquiries reacting to perceived failures of
government action or inaction/negligence.
Although other types of inquiry might have
identified failure during their investigations, this
category was only used for inquiries which were
explicitly motivated by a crisis or political storm

Responding to policy initiatives
by others

Inquiries which responded to reviews,
consultations or initiatives by other bodies, for
example Climate Change and the Stern Review:
The Implications for Treasury Policy

Responding to external events

Where the committee was responding to an
external event that was outside the government’s
control, Brexit, Grenfell

Picking up previous inquiries.

Where the purpose of the report was solely to
follow up a previous inquiry

Page 224




Types of Action that Recommendations Call for:

Types of Action

Definition

Legislative or policy
action

These are recommendations explicitly calling for policy
action or legislative action, including amendment or repeal
of existing policy or legislation.

Guidance

These recommendations call for guidance, information or
direction to be provided to any relevant bodies, including
the NHS, the Police, schools or voluntary organisation.
Again, although the word ‘guidance’ was not necessarily
required to be used in the recommendation, the
requirement for guidance or direction needed to be quite
explicit

Research or Policy
review

Recommendations which call on the government to
investigate, conduct research, evaluations or impact
assessments, or for example set up a task force to review
a policy area. Recommendations to government to
‘consider’ doing something were also often placed in this
category

Campaigns or public
information

This option applied to recommendations where the
committee suggested raising public awareness on a
particular issue, such as a new initiative or public health
crisis

Disclosure

Recommendations which ask government to make
information more readily accessible, clearer, or more
complete, or call for new disclosure of information to the
committee

Funding

These are recommendations explicitly calling for funding,
including the continuation of funding for existing
programmes or reallocation of funding. Recommendations
which might have required funding to implement, but did
not explicitly call for this, were not placed in this category

Attitude change

This refers to recommendations stated in general terms
and asking government to adopt a change in outlook or
attitude

None of the above

This category was used for any other recommendation
where the action required was clearly set out, but did not
fall into any of the other specified categories. However the
kind of recommendations placed in this category were
anyway very varied, including information sharing,
pressure, or the strengthening of relationships within and
between departments; changes in policy emphasis;
reorganisation or creation of government institutions; giving
new powers to associated bodies; diplomatic action; and
other recommendations which implicitly (but not
unequivocally) required legislation or funding. There
appeared to be no single obvious missing category

Page 225




Types of Change that Recommendations Call for:

Type of Change

Value

Definition

No change or only
small change

These are recommendations which support or
endorse existing Council policy or recommends at
most tweaking or small modifications.
Recommendations for disclosure are placed in this
category, particularly when this asks the Council to
set out its policy on something in its response. This
code is allocated to recommendations calling on the
Council to merely ‘consider’ something, as well as
those calling for a continuation of the status quo.

Medium Change

These are recommendations that go further, but fall
short of a reversal or near-reversal of a Council
policy. These recommendations call for new action
that is significantly different in terms of policy
direction, priority or resources, or call for exploration
in areas where policy did not currently exist.
Disclosure recommendations can be placed in this
category if they called for a change to the
department’s information policy or for the release of
information usually kept out of the public domain.

Large Change or
complete reversal of

policy

These are recommendations which significantly
deviates from current policy or explicitly calls for a
reversal of current policy, such as the shutting down
of programmes, dropping of targets, ending of
funding, or adopting new action in clear conflict with
existing policy direction

Page 226




Level Policy Significance that Recommendations will Impact on

Three different categories of policy significance are suggested as follows:

Policy Significance | Value Definition

Minor Policy Area 1 This refers to recommendations to policies that
are not referenced in the corporate plan or
partnership plan or manifestos of the current ruling
political group. These recommendations would
impact on policy areas that are not mentioned or
would fall within a broad/vague policy area.

Medium 2 This is applied to recommendations which are

Significance Policy associated with a policy area in the corporate plan

Area or the WAG policy area. These policy areas will
not fall under those that are considered as major
policy areas.

Major Policy Area 3 This are recommendations on policies that are

explicitly mentioned in the Corporate Plan, PSB
Plan and other key policy documents of the
Council or the WAG.

Page 227




Acceptance Categories

Categories

Definition

Fully Accepted

These refer to responses where the Cabinet expressed
agreement with the committee’s recommendation, explicitly
committed to taking the action requested, and made no
suggestion that they would have done so in any case. It also
includes ‘disclosure’ recommendations where the committee
requested information, which was provided in the response.

Partially Accepted

This is applied to responses which expressed agreement with
the general thrust of the recommendation but not to the level of
detail required by the committee, or accepted the
recommendation in part but ignored (but did not reject) another
part. This code is used in cases where the cabinet claims that
what the committee wanted was already in progress, but where
there was evidence that the action had been started only after
the committee’s inquiry began. The assumption in these cases
was that the Cabinet had anticipated the content of certain
recommendations from the inquiry, and acted prior to
publication of the report.

Neither Accepted
or Rejected

This was for recommendations which received a lukewarm
response, either to say that something was under
consideration, or that it was already being done (but with no
indication that it had recently begun, and expressed in neutral
terms). The code was also used for recommendations accepted
in part but rejected in part.

Partially Rejected

This is used for responses where the cabinet explicitly
described itself as ‘rejecting’ or ‘disagreeing’. It was restricted to
cases where the Cabinet says nothing positive or lukewarm at
all, and has not suggested it was doing something similar
already or that its position might change in the future

Rejected outright

This is used for responses where the Cabinet explicitly
describes itself as ‘rejecting’ or ‘disagreeing’. It is restricted to
cases where the cabinet says nothing positive or lukewarm at
all, and has not suggested it was doing something similar
already or that its position might change in the future

Page 228




Implementation Categories

Implementation Status

Definition

Clear evidence the recommendation has
been implemented in full

This is used in cases where there is clear
evidence of implementation. Evidence of
implementation can be provided by the
Cabinet as part of formal response and
periodical update to the Committee e.qg.
where recommendation call for disclosure of
information. Where recommendations call for
amended policy, amended guidance,
commissioned research, publication of
minutes, key evidence of this could be
required form the Cabinet.

Clear evidence the recommendation has
been implemented in part or limited
implementation

This would apply to recommendations, or
where evidence was provided where the
Cabinet had implemented the
recommendation but not to the degree of
specificity required by the committee. This
could also apply to evidence of some limited
attempts to implementation or where the
Cabinet has confirmed that steps are being
taken to implement but no further evidence is
available to confirm this.

No Evidence of Implementation

Evidence that recommendation has not been
implemented

This applies to instances where there is
evidence that had not been implemented.
Here a rejection in the government response
was not treated as sufficient evidence: we
required this to be verified by action. For
example a recommendation for information to
be included in the department’s next annual
review but such information not having been
published

Opportunity to implement has not arisen

This is used both for recommendations that
had not yet had a chance to be implemented
because they were made too recently, and
where implementation was conditional on
something else having happened first.

Page 229




References:

APSE (Association for Public Service Excellence) and CFPS (The Centre for
Public Scrutiny). (2017) Accountability and scrutiny - The issues for local
government in a changing political environment

Characteristics of Effective Scrutiny - A draft performance management
framework for local government scrutiny. Welsh Local Government Scrutiny
Officers

CFPS (The Centre for Public Scrutiny). Introduction to the self-evaluation
framework.

Greer, Scott L., Matthias Wismar, Monika Kosinsk (2015) Towards
Intersectoral Governance: Lessons Learned From Health System
Governance.

House of Commons, Communities and Local Government Committee.
Effectiveness of local authority overview and scrutiny committees. First Report
of Session 2017 — 19. Public Health Panorama. Vol 1 Issue 2 September
2015, p111-2014

National Assembly for Wales. Assembly Commission. Annual Report and
Accounts 2017-18. www.assembly.wales

Interview with National Assembly for Wales Committee and Research staff
(2019)

Russel M. and M. Benton (2011) Selective Influence: The Policy Impact of
House of Commons Select Committees. The Constitution Unit. University
College London.

Research Excellence Framework 2021. Consultation on the draft panel criteria
and working methods, REF 2018/02 July 2018

Weyrauch, V. (2012). Toolkit N°3: Design/Establishing the pillars of M&E
strategy. In: How to monitor and evaluate policy influence? Buenos Aires:
CIPPEC.

White, H. (2015) Select Committees under Scrutiny. The impact of

parliamentary committee inquiries on government. Institute for Government.
June 2015. www.instituteforgovernment.org.uk

Page 230


http://www.assembly.wales/

Scrutiny Services, Cardiff County Council
County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 2087 2296 Fax: 029 2087 2579
Email: scrutinyviewpoints@cardiff.gov.uk

Page 231



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11 March 2020

Forward Work Programme

Purpose of the Report

1. To update Members on the Committees provisional work programme for

April-June 2020, as set out in Appendix 1.

Way Forward

2. Members may wish to agree the content of the Forward Work Programme
update attached at Appendix 1, noting that the Committee’s work
programme will need to remain responsive to any updated Cabinet
Forward Plan, particularly where there are pre-decision items marked
Amber or Red.

Legal Implications

3. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal
implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the
matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications.
Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to
Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those
recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must

(a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any

Page 233



procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the
body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be
undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by
the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper

in all the circumstances.
Financial Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in
this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial
implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme.
However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under
review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with
recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

5. The Committee is recommended to consider and agree the provisional
agenda items for April-June 2020.

DAVINA FIORE

Director of Governance and Legal Services
5 March 2020

Page 234



Gee abed

Appendix 1

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - DRAFT FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

April = June 2020

Meeting Date ;’ype_of Title and Description of Report Invitees & Consultees
crutiny
April 2020 (No meeting programmed)
Property Strategy ClIr Russell Goodway, Cabinet Member
Investment & Development;
To consider a Cabinet report presenting the | Neil Hanratty, Director of Economic
- Council’s new 5 year Property Strategy Development;
2 ey FIE-EEEH0T Giles Parker, Strategic Estates Manager
Core Office ClIr Russell Goodway, Cabinet Member
Investment & Development;
To consider the full business case for the Clir Chris Weaver, Cabinet Member Finance,
development of a new core office building as Modernisation & Performance;
5 May Pre-decision | part of a Public Services Hub at Callaghan Neil Hanratty, Director of Economic
Square Development;
Chris Lee, Corporate Director of Resources;
Chris Barnett, Project Manager.
Virtual Assistant ChatBOT (tbc) Clir Chris Weaver, Cabinet Member
i . Modernisation and Performance
5 May - Demonstration of ChatBOT and briefing on | |sapelie Bignall, Chief Digital Officer
Briefing capabilities.

Rachel Bishop, Operational Manager Customer
Services




9gg abed

Appendix 1

To monitor outturn 2019/20 sickness
absence.

Meeting Date ;—g’r%?ig; Title and Description of Report Invitees & Consultees
Cardiff Public Services Board Cllr Huw Thomas, Leader
Paul Orders, Chief Executive
Annual Report 2019/20 Sarah McGill, Corporate Director People &
Communities;
10 June Monitoring | 70 undertake a statutory role conferred by ’
the Well-being of Future Generations Act to (Paarteth Nhgwgll, Head of Performance &
monitor progress in delivering the Well-being Ls;(;]iﬁrs Igr?ﬁers
Plan for Cardiff. gp '
Ask Cardiff 2020 Cllr Chris Weaver, Cabinet Member, Finance,
. _ _ Modernisation & Performance;
Consideration of consultation content pre- | ~pnris Rees Corporate Director Resources
Pre- publication. Gareth Newell, Head of Performance and
10 June , o
consultation Partnerships;
Sian Sanders, Operational Manager, Cohesion
and Community Engagement.
Sickness Absence ClIr Chris Weaver, Cabinet Member, Finance,
Modernisation & Performance;
Chris Rees, Corporate Director Resources;
10 June Monitoring Tracey Thomas, Acting Senior HR people

partner; Anita Batten, HR People Partner,
Employee relations.




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Digital Strategy
	Appendix 1 DigitalStrategy
	Appendix 2 Digital Strategy Summaries
	0000121 RC DS-Connected Businesses19jun2019
	PJ RC 12387DS-Connected Citizens Summary18june2019.pdf
	PJ RC 12404 DS-Connected Education Sum19june2019
	PJ RC 12405 DS-Connected MembersSum19 june 2019
	PJ RC 12444 DS-Connected ManagementSum 19 june2019
	0000018 RC DS-Connected Partners19june2019
	0000122 RC DS-Connected ServicesSum19june2019
	0000016 RC DS-Connected VistorsSum 19june2019
	PJ RC 12445 DS-Connected WorkforceSum19june2019


	5 Procurement Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Procurement Strategy 2017 -2020
	Appendix 2 -Socially Responsible Procurement Policy
	Appendix 3 - Procurement presentation

	6 Scrutiny Impact Assessment Model
	Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Impact Assessment T&F report

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - FWP Apr-June 2020




